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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 25th Annual Report on the operations of your Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2015
1.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
COMPANY STANDALONE
(` in Millions)
Particulars
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
TOTAL INCOME
Direct cost
Employee benefit expense
Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment Expenses
Finance cost
Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Less: Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Provision for taxes pertaining to previous year
Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement written off
Deferred Tax
PROFIT / (LOSS) OF THE YEAR

Year ended
2014-15
7,274.54
196.60
7,471.14
8,115.08
220.98
10.58
1,315.05
795.44
10,457.13
(2,985.99)

Year ended
2013-14
6,171.50
190.91
6,362.41
6,254.11
278.92
11.19
1,186.17
881.87
8,612.26
(2,249.85)

–
9.72
9.45
–
(3,005.16)

–
0.71
0.60
(2,251.16)

During the year under review the Company has incurred a loss of ` 3,005.16 million on account of the operating losses
primarily due to reduced margins from its movie releases as some co-produced movies were with limited rights and
included profit sharing arrangements.
There are no material changes and commitments which have occurred between the end of the financial year ended on
March 31, 2015 to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report, which may affect the financial
position of the Company.
Further, there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its operations in future.
Further, the Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the Company’s
existence is very minimal.
2.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:
It was a year of many changes for the country overall which continued to fuel the changes in the regulatory and
competitive environment making the Media and Entertainment industry an even more dynamic one. In this year the
Company has seen a great run at the Movies, a further consolidation of our lead in the Youth space in Television with
bindass and a new launch with bindass PLAY and a continuing endeavour to build our pipeline of Digital Games.
Studios:
2014 was a tough year for the industry at the box office, after many years this year the industry de-grew yet the
studio emerged as a leader in the box office with a fantastic run. With releases that ranged from 2 States, Heropanti,
Filmistaan, Kick, Haider and PK the Studio team not only had a great run at the box office but bagged all the top honours
and accolades at all the major awards.
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The studio continued to work with some of the best names in the industry and also launched and backed new talent
in this past year. With 2 States, Kick and PK we added three more ` 100 cr plus films to our kitty taking the total tally
upto eight, the only studio to have such an honor. PK not only set the Indian box office ringing but has created new
benchmarks for Indian films in almost all international markets. The latest being China where the film has grossed over
` 100 crore the biggest ever for an Indian film in that market.
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The Hollywood releases we distributed this year introduced a new universe of characters to Indian audiences with Big
Hero 6 & Guardians of the Galaxy both of which proved to be immensely popular while building further on the immense
popularity of Captain America with the 2nd film Captain America – The Winter Soldier and a live action movie around
the popular character of Cinderella.
Our releases in the south for the year started with Naan Sigappu Manithan, followed by the Mohanlal starrer Koothara,
Anjaan starring Suriya and the Vikram starrer Sigaram Thodu.
Our slate continued to reinforce our philosophy, which is that we want to back all kinds of movies, so long as they have
a great story to tell that can entertain audiences.
Broadcasting:
bindass reinforced its position as the leading youth entertainment brand in India that mirrors the lives and aspirations
of Young India. Understanding the pulse of India’s largest demographic, bindass is their friend and reflects of the
dynamic lives and realities of the world they live in. Reaching over 60% of Indian youth, bindass offers a unique blend of
storytelling which is purposive and themed around love & relationships and is home to the best known youth oriented
formats as Yeh Hai Aashiqui, Halla Bol and lots more.
For the past seven years bindaas has understood the dynamic mindset of India’s youth and become their friend and
companion while entertaining them with content that is both purposive and engaging. Celebrating its 7th anniversary,
the media networks business launched a refreshed channel offering - bindass PLAY with a promise to celebrate, inspire
and empower the youth of India through one of their core passions - Music.
While the underlying theme is music, bindass PLAY showcases distinct programming that continues to bring alive the
bindass experience with elements that revolve around music. Empowering fans to choose their brand of music, fans
can select and dedicate any song of their choice from the popular social networking platforms. In addition to these,
the channel focuses on presenting music that is in tune with their moods and desires mapped through the day through
different bands. bindass PLAY has also launched musically themed vignette series and short form storytelling to further
deepen the engagement with its audiences. The success that the channel has seen already leading the numbers when
it comes to the music genre way above all the other successful music channels is a testament of the strength of the
brand as well as this new offering.
UTV Action continues to showcase fast-paced action films dubbed in Hindi and has recently added popular action series
dubbed in Hindi into its repertoire. UTV Movies continues to offer both viewers and advertisers a direct experience of
the spirit of Bollywood through its programming and promotional engagements.
Games and Interactive:
Since early 2008 the digital arm of UTV is carrying forward the ideology of content creation in the space of mobile
games. It has emerged as a hub for creation and distribution of high-quality digital content reaching out to millions
of users in India via all mobile operators and various OEM app stores in India and also internationally. The team has
created innovative and popular products including the bestselling ‘Cricket Fever game franchise’ (with over 20 million
downloads), the official game of the ICC Cricket World Cup 2015 titled ‘ICC Pro Cricket 2015’ (with over 1 million
downloads), ‘PK – The game’ (with over 1 million downloads) and games around many of our films such as Kick. The
business also provides an interactive gaming experience across television screens through various DTH operators.
Leading gaming companies like Electronic Sports and Gameloft work closely with us to distribute their content to Indian
consumers.
3.

DIVIDEND & AMOUNT CARRIED TO RESERVES:
As the Company has incurred loss during the year, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2014-15.
There is no amount proposed to be transferred to the general reserve.

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
As at 31st March, 2015, the Company has the following subsidiaries viz.
(1) Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited) and its wholly owned
subsidiaries i.e. Genx Entertainment Limited and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV
Entertainment Television Limited) (2) Indiagames Limited (3) IG Interactive Entertainment Limited and its wholly
owned subsidiary; Ignition Entertainment Limited- UK and further its step down wholly owned subsidiaries i.e. Ignition
Entertainment Limited (USA) and Ignition London Limited (formerly known as Digi-Guys Limited) (4) UTV Communications
(USA) LLC (5) UTV Games Limited and its subsidiary True Games Interactive, Inc. (6) UTV New Media Limited.
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As at 31st March, 2015, IG Interactive Entertainment Limited, UTV Communications (USA) LLC and UTV Games Limited
are wholly owned subsidiaries of your Company.
As at March 31, 2015, Disney Entertainment (India) Limited - is 89.61% subsidiary of your Company and Indiagames
Limited is 56% subsidiary of your Company.
During the year under review UTV New Media Limited a wholly-owned subsidiary stands merged with the Company
pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble Bombay High Court vide its order dated July 03, 2015
which has become effective from July 24, 2015 i.e. the date on which it has been filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Mumbai, Maharashtra.
The audited Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account along with the Directors Report and Auditors Report of subsidiaries
of the Company i.e. (1) Indiagames Limited; (2) IG Interactive Entertainment Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary
Ignition Entertainment Limited – UK and further its step-down wholly-owned subsidiaries i.e. Ignition Entertainment
Limited (USA) and Ignition London Limited; (3) UTV Communications (USA) LLC; (4) UTV Games Limited and its subsidiary
True Games Interactive, Inc.; and (5) the consolidated financial statements of Disney Entertainment (India) Limited, as
per the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 have been attached with the Balance Sheet of the Company
and a statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 containing the salient features of the financial
statement of its subsidiaries are annexed to this Annual Report.
DISNEY ENTERTAINMENT (INDIA) LIMITED (“DEIL”) (formerly known as UTV GLOBAL BROADCASTING LIMITED):
DEIL was incorporated on June 6, 2007. DEIL continues to carry on the business of aggregating and distributing channels
outside India to various distribution platforms. DEIL has two wholly owned subsidiaries - namely Genx Entertainment
Limited (“Genx”) and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (“DBIL”) (formerly known as UTV Entertainment Television
Limited). Genx and DBIL are engaged in the business of uplinking and broadcasting of entertainment (non-news /
current affairs) channels from India. The channels ‘Bindass’ and ‘UTV Action’ are housed under Genx and channels
‘UTV Movies’, UTV Stars, UTV World Movies, and Disney Junior are housed under DBIL.
As at 31st March, 2015 DEIL, on standalone basis, posted revenue income of ` 15.80 million (Previous Year ` 4.30
million) and a net profit of ` 10.29 million (Previous Year net loss ` 82.61 million)
INDIAGAMES LIMITED (“Indiagames”):
Indiagames was incorporated on 1st February, 2000 and is into the business of online games and a global mobile game
publisher. Indiagames is engaged in publishing and developing games across various platforms.
As at 31st March, 2015 it posted sales of ` 1,814.46 million (Previous Year ` 1,266.79 million) and a net profit of
` 220.39 million (Previous Year net profit ` 29.22 million)
Your Company holds 56% stake in Indiagames as at 31st March, 2015 and balance 44% is held by The Walt Disney
Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Ltd., the parent company of your Company.
IG INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED (“IG”):
IG was incorporated on 6th September, 2004 and carries out Film Acquisition, Syndication and Distribution business in
the United Kingdom. As at 31st March, 2015 it posted sales of GBP 3,664,442 (Previous Year GBP 2,548,366) and a
net profit of GBP 109,742 [Previous Year net profit GBP 344,492]
As at 31st March, 2015, Ignition Entertainment Limited (UK) (“Ignition”) continued to be a 100% subsidiary of IG and
Ignition Entertainment Limited (USA) and Ignition London Limited continued to be a 100% subsidiary of Ignition.
UTV COMMUNICATIONS (USA) LLC (“UTV US”):
UTV US was incorporated on 26th April, 2004 and carries on film acquisition, syndication and distribution business in
the United States of America (North America) and other surrounding territories. As at 31st March, 2015 it posted sales
of USD 8,087,071 (Previous year USD 5,010,339) and a net loss of USD 935,123 (Previous Year loss USD 1,013,215).
UTV GAMES LIMITED (“UTV Games”):
UTV Games Limited is a 100% subsidiary of your Company and was incorporated on 5th September, 2008 to carry on
the principal activity of investment holding.
True Games Interactive, Inc. continued to be 100% subsidiary of UTV Games.
5.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 16th December, 2014 considered a proposal to
consolidate the business of its subsidiary UTV New Media Limited (“UNML”) into the Company. Pursuant to the Scheme
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of Arrangement (“Scheme”) under Sections 391 to 394 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
sanctioned by the Honourable Bombay High Court on 3rd July, 2015 the entire assets and business of UNML have been
transferred and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date viz. 1st April, 2014. The above order has
been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra on 24th July, 2015 and accordingly, the order has
become effective from that date.
6.

DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
During the year under review, Mr. Nimish Shah existing director of the Company was appointed as Whole-time Director of
the Company effective 5th September, 2014, Ms. Parul Tevatia was appointed as an additional woman director effective
18th March, 2015 and Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani were appointed as Independent Directors
with effect from 31st March, 2015.
Further during the year under review, Mr. Pawan Jaggi resigned as the Company Secretary with effect from 16th October,
2014 and Mr. Puneet Juneja was appointed in his place. The Board thanks Mr. Pawan Jaggi for his valuable contributions
to the Company.
Also, Mr. Siddharth Roy Kapur resigned as Managing Director of the Company with effect from September 5, 2014 and
Mr. Charles Jacob resigned from directorship of the Company with effect from 31st March, 2015. The Board places on
record its appreciation for the services rendered by Mr. Siddharth Roy Kapur and Mr. Charles Jacob during their tenure
with the Company.
Mr. Sujit Vaidya retires by rotation and your Directors recommend his re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Mr. Vishwas Joshi continues to be the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1st April, 2014
The Board seeks the support of the shareholders in confirming and regularizing the appointment of Mr. Nimish Shah,
Ms. Parul Tevatia, Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Number of Board Meetings and Declaration of Independent Directors
During the financial year 2014-15, eighteen board meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did not
exceed one hundred and twenty days.
The Company has received necessary declaration from the independent directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013, that each of them meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules thereunder.
Evaluation Mechanism
The annual performance evaluation of all the directors, Board including its committees was conducted based on the
criteria and framework adopted by the Board.

7.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Company has an adequately qualified Audit Cum Nomination and Remuneration Committee. As on 31st March,
2015 the committee comprises of Mr. Sujit Vaidya (Chairman) and Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and Mr. Narendra Kumar
Ambwani as members.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date and with effect from 27th July, 2015 Audit Cum Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has been splitted into two separate committees namely i.e. “Audit Committee” and “Nomination and
Remuneration Committee” with the same members as to its composition.
The Audit Committee primarily recommends appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company, review auditors independence, examine financial statement and auditors report, scrutinize inter-corporate
loans and investments, monitor end use of funds, overseeing vigil mechanism and such other functions as may be
entrusted by the Board, whereas Nomination and Remuneration Committee primarily identify persons who are qualified
to become directors and key managerial personnel, recommend to the Board their appointment, remuneration and
removal including carrying out evaluation of every directors and key managerial personnel’s performance.
The Company has a robust vigil mechanism whereby the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and directors
are adequately addressed.
The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining remuneration
and other matters provided under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is appended as Annexure A to this report.

8.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”):
The Report on Company’s CSR activities of the Company is furnished in Annexure B and attached to this report.
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9.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (“SR Committee”):
SR Committee is primarily responsible to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company.
As on 31st March, 2015 the committee comprises of Mr. Sujit Vaidya (Chairman) and Mr. Nimish Shah and Ms. Parul
Tevatia as other members.

10.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:
The relevant amounts which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years will be transferred by the Company,
on due dates, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of Information regarding
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid
and unclaimed amounts lying with the company as on 23rd September, 2014 (date of last Annual General Meeting) on
the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

11.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual at workplace.
The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment.
The Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace which aims to provide protection against
sexual harassment at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) was set up from the senior
management with women employees constituting majority. The ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to
sexual harassment.
During the year ended 31st March, 2015 no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

12.

COMPLIANCE WITH RBI CIRCULAR ON DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENTS:
Pursuant to the requirement of Circular No.01, bearing reference RBI/2013-14/117 dated 4th July, 2013 (the “Circular”),
issued by Reserve Bank of India, the Statutory Auditor had submitted their report for the period ended March 31, 2015.
Basis the report the downstream investments made by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2015 are in
compliance with the Circular i.e. compliance with the instructions on downstream investment and compliance with the
FEMA provisions.

13.

ISSUE OF ADDITIONAL SHARES:
Pursuant to the approval granted by the Foreign Investment Promotion Board (“FIPB”) on 30th July, 2014 to The Walt
Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited [“TWDC (SEA)”] for the further infusion of ` 1,100 crores in your Company
and subsequent to the approval granted by the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
23rd September, 2014, the Company has on 24th September, 2014 allotted 16,66,000 Non-Cumulative Compulsorily
Convertible Preference shares of a face value of ` 1,500/- each to TWDC (SEA) on preferential basis.

14.

FIXED DEPOSIT:
Your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposit in respect of the year under review.

15.

AUDITORS:
(a)
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Statutory Auditor

		

M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP, Chartered Accountants, the present statutory auditors of the Company
holds office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP,
have under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 furnished the certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.

		

The Audit cum Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 27th July, 2015 has also
recommended the re-appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP as Statutory Auditors of the
Company. Your directors also recommend their re-appointment from the conclusion of this annual general
meeting till the conclusion of next annual general meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

(b)
		

16.

Secretarial Auditor
The Board has appointed M/s. Robert Pavrey & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, to conduct the
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2014-15 as required under Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2014-15 forms part of this
Annual Report and is appended as Annexure C herewith.

AUDITORS REPORT:
(a)

Statutory Auditor

		

The Auditor report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification.

		

However, on the remark made by the auditors in annexure to their report, the Board has to say that as at
31st March, 2015, the net-worth of the Company has substantially eroded mainly due to accumulated losses.
Considering the future business plans of the Company, and the intended capital infusion based on the letter
of support from The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, these financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis.

(b)

Secretarial Auditor

		

The Secretarial Auditor report does not contain any qualification (except with respect to the delay in appointment
of internal auditor).

		

The delay is primarily on account of identifying the appropriate personnel to carry out the internal audit of the
Company and is merely procedural in nature as the defined scope and the consequential internal audit report has
been submitted to the Board.

17.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as
required under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is furnished in Annexure D and is attached to this report.

18.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
Particular of employees required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is enclosed as Annexure E and form part of this report.

19.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:
The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part
of the notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

20.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure F to this report.

21.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure G and is attached to this Report.

22.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:
The Board has adopted adequate procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detecting of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.
During the year, no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

23.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby states:—
(a)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
9
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24.

(b)

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c)

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e)

the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:
Your Directors would take this opportunity to thank all the stakeholders for their support and co-operation rendered to
the Company during the year under review.

By order of the Board of Directors
For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Nimish Shah					
Whole-Time Director				
DIN: 05250183					
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

3.11

-349.23

Share Reserves
Capital & Surplus

INR
INR
INR

31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15

1106.63
14.98
0.09
4.95
0.64
0.28
1317.74

789.84
1106.63
14.98
0.09
4.95
0.64
0.28
1317.74

789.84

99.82

356.68

4292.88

4292.88

503.58

-455.91

10.29
242.93

17.44
4.58
0
-149.75
2.37
1.05
235.82

-58.23

0

0
0

7.28
0
0
-0.05
0
0
68.73

0

Profit Provision
before
for
taxation taxation

-574.55

10.29
242.93

10.16
4.58
0
-149.8
2.37
1.05
220.39

-58.23

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Nimish Shah			
Whole-Time Director		
DIN: 05250183			

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

89.61

89.61
89.61

100
100
100
100
100
100
56

100

Amount in ` millions
Profit Proposed
% of
after Dividend Shareholding
taxation

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

0 3196.67

9872.05
15.8
0 1781.53

0 339.07
0
0.38
0
0
0
7.25
0
0
0
0
0 1814.46

592.5

Total
Total Investments Turnover
Assets Liabilities

28.87 10021.68 10090.01 10090.01
109.69
487.15 1213.61 1213.61

GBP 92.53 7770.54 -7095.51
GBP 92.53 5139.67 -5151.37
GBP 92.53
0.46
-1.2
USD 62.27
0.12 -2388.27
USD 62.27 1539.19 -1558.94
USD 62.27
747.86 -1820.76
INR
11.43 341.53

31-Mar-15 USD 62.27

UTV Communications (USA) LLC
IG Interactive Entertainment
Limited
Ignition Entertainment Limited, UK
Ignition London Limited
Ignition Entertainment Limited, USA
UTV Games Limited
True Games Interactive, Inc.
Indiagames Limited
Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited (formerly known as UTV
Global Broadcasting Limited)
Genx Entertainment Limited
Disney Broadcasting (India)
Limited (formerly known as UTV
Entertainment Television Limited)
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15
31-Mar-15

Reporting Reporting
Period Currency &
ended Exchange
Rate

Name of Subsidiary

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Annexure
Form AOC-I
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Annexure ‘A’
Policy on Nomination and Remuneration
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“2013 Act”) and the rules prescribed thereunder have made it mandatory for UTV
Software Communications Limited (the “Company”) to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company
has in pursuance of these statutory requirements, constituted an Audit cum Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the
“Committee”).
Objective of the Policy
The mission of the Company is to ensure compliance with legal requirements and set the standards for corporate governance
that would operate as guidelines for the working of the Committee. The objective of the policy is:
(i)

to ensure board diversity in order to help provide the maximum experience and access to knowledge that can be derived
from the board;

(ii)

to guide the board in relation to appointment and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and senior management;

(iii)

to retain, motivate and encourage talent and ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial person and create
competitive advantage;

(iv)

to develop a succession plan for the board and to regularly review the plan; and

(v)

that it may be aligned to the various HR policies, if any, of the Company in regard to appointment of key managerial
personnel and senior management.

Criteria for Evaluation of Performance
The performance evaluation should keep in mind factors such as attendance at meetings, contribution at such board or
board committee meetings and value addition that has been done by the directors, key managerial personnel or senior
management. The evaluation must also take in to consideration the future strategy to be adopted by the Company.
Criteria for Determination of Remuneration
The Committee shall determine the remuneration for its directors, the senior management and key managerial personnel
while keeping the following criteria in mind:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the remuneration shall be of such an amount that is in consonance with the services that are being provided to the
Company;
the remuneration is consummate with reference to remuneration paid to people in similar positions;
the remuneration consummate with the experience that the director or personnel brings to the Company;
the remuneration must be of a level that is sufficient to retain and motivate talented personnel in the market to work for
the Company;
the remuneration is a fair balance of perquisites and salary and also includes in the case of independent directors, any
sitting fees;
the remuneration must be decided while keeping in mind the structure of the Company and of the board;
the remuneration must co-relate to the clearly defined benchmarks for performance evaluation;
the remuneration is revised on the basis of the performance of the director/ personnel; and
the remuneration must be in accordance with the permissible law.

Dissemination
The details of this policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be published on the Company’s website and accordingly
disclosed in the Annual Report as part of the board’s report.
For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Nimish Shah					
Whole-Time Director				
DIN: 05250183					
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Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

ANNUAL
ANNUAL REPORT
REPORT 2014-15
2014-15

Annexure ‘B’
The Annual Report on CSR Activities to be included in the Board’s Report
1.

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
As a responsible Corporate, your Company has constantly endeavoured to contribute to the development and upliftment
of the social strata.
Your Company is a part of The Walt Disney Group and conducts various social activities that contribute to the wellness
of the society and the nature such as ensuring environmental sustainability by conserving green spaces, promoting
education through joyful learning and supporting health care by creating brighter spaces of care giving thereby ensuring
faster recoveries, fulfilling wishes of kids suffering from life threatening medical conditions thereby providing hope,
strength and joy to the kids and their families. The employees of the Company are encouraged to participate in CSR
activities undertaken by the Company.
CSR Projects implemented at the local/national level:
Disney Hospitals Support Program
Disney Friends For Change
Disney Wishes
Design For Change
The CSR activities are carried out directly by the Company or in association with a strategic partner.
Information: The contents of this CSR Policy are also available on the website of the Company that is www.utvgroup.com

2.

The Composition of the CSR Committee.
As on March 31, 2015, the CSR Committee is comprised of Mr. Sujit Vaidya (Chairman), Mr. Nimish Shah and Mr. Prem
Raj Mehta as members.

3.

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years:
The Company has incurred losses for the last three financial years.

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in Item 3 above)
Since the Company has no average net profits during the last three financial years, the requirement as to the minimum
spend of two percent as mandated by Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

5.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a)

Total amount to be spent for the financial year: N.A.

(b)

Amount unspent, if any: N.A.

(c)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: N.A.

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Sujit Vaidya					Nimish Shah					
Director						 Whole-Time Director				
DIN: 03287161					DIN: 05250183					
Chairman of CSR Committee
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Annexure ‘C’
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
UTV Software Communications Limited
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by UTV Software Communications Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:
(i)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and various rules (Rules) made thereunder;

(ii)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(iii)

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):- (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
(a)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (not applicable for the Audit Period).
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:
(i)

14

The appointment of the Internal Auditor was done on 18th March, 2015, beyond the permitted period of six
months from the date of commencement of the Act.

We note that the Company has constituted single committee namely Audit cum Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
which in our view should be constituted as separate committees, i.e., an Audit Committee in accordance with the provisions
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of Section 177 of the Act and a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 178
of the Act.
We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to
the Company:
•

Competition Act, 2002

•

Information Technology Act, 2000

•

Consumer Protection Act, 1986

•

Cinematograph Act, 1952

•

The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

•

Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and Prevention and Control of Pollution Act, 1981

•

Trade Marks Act, 1999

•

Copyright (Amendment) Act, 2012

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors as on March 31, 2015. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the Audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice has been given to all directors to schedule Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the
respective meetings of the Board or Committee thereof.
We further report that subject to the above observations, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.
For ROBERT PAVREY& ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 22, 2015

ROBERT PAVREY
Proprietor
FCS 2928 CP. No. 1848
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Annexure ‘D’
PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO COMPANIES RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014
A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
•

		

•
B.

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy:
The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, the Company has taken adequate measures
to reduce the energy consumption by using energy efficient hardware and other equipment. Air conditioners are
used only when required. Further the Company has spread awareness among the employees on the need to
conserve energy which is well adopted by the employees.
The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
•

The efforts made towards technology absorption and the benefits derived:

		

The Company keeps innovating, takes all measures necessary to absorb and adapt latest technology which has
reaped the following benefits:

		

-

In-house hosting of application leading to cost efficiency

		

-

Data security and integrity has been substantially enhanced

		

-

Effective turnaround to meet business requirements

•

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

C.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO: ` 256.07 million (Previous year ` 285.79 million)

D.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING: ` 968.00 million (Previous year ` 752.79 million)

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Nimish Shah					
Whole-Time Director				
DIN: 05250183					
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Amrita Pandey

Monisha S.
Shroff

Bhushan P.
Kapadia
G.
Dhananjayan
Prakash
Nathan
Rucha Pathak

Gaurav Verma

Vishwas
Gangadhar
Joshi
Amar Butala

Jyotika Ahuja

Manish
Hariprasad
Shikha Kapur

Suvonkar
Banerjee

2.

3.

4.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

14

13.

7.

6.

5.

Indrajit Ray

Employee
Name

1.

Sl. No.

41

38

39

37

41

51

37

45

45

51

48

51

36

40

Age

Qualification

Diploma In Flim &
Television Production
Director - Corporate
Post Graduate
Communications, PR &
Diploma In Sales &
Corporate Citizenship
Marketing
Senior Creative Director Studios Master of Business
Administration
VP and Head of Marketing SYBA, IATA
Studios, Interactive & Youth
and Movie Channels
Creative Director, Studios
BA

Creative Director, Studios

Senior Creative Director Studios Post Graduate in Social
Communication Media
Executive Director - Theatrical Masters in
Distribution, Studios
Management Studies
Head Finance - Studios
ICWA

Chief - South Business, Studios Masters in
Management Studies
Director - Operations, Studios MBA

Executive Director - Content
B.A
Group
VP and Head of Marketing and Post Graduate
Distribution, Studios
Diploma in Business
Management
Executive Director – Finance CA
& Content Acquisition, Disney
Interactive
Director - Taxation
CA

Designation

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

4-Aug-14

12-Sep-05

25-Sep-07

3-Nov-08

8-Oct-10

6-Jun-07

16-Nov-09

3-Apr-06

16-Apr-07

14-Jan-11

11-Aug-08

1-Feb-08

2-Jun-03

27-Jul-09

Nature of
Date of
Employment commencement
whether
of employment
contractual
or otherwise

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Date of
leaving

Mahindra &
Mahindra Ltd.
Moser Baer
Entertainment Ltd.
Moserbaer India Ltd.

Jet Airways

Benett, Coleman and
Company Ltd.

Balaji Teleflims

Last employment
held before joining
the Company

NA

7-Jul-14

NA

Zapak Digital
Entertainment Ltd.

Sahara Onemedia
and Entertainment
Ltd.
Viacom 18

NA

Imagine Television

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Nimish Shah			
Whole-Time Director		
DIN: 05250183			

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Whether any such
employee is a relative
of any director or
manager of the
company and if so,
name of such director
or manager
NA

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

8,634,344

609,116 30-Apr-14 Sony Entertainment
Television
1,016,276 30-Apr-14 Mukta Arts

8,124,398

3,389,292

8,506,289

1,716,140 3-Jun-14 PVR Pictures

2,256,769 2-Jun-14 PNC

6,839,226

15,506,577

6,535,461

7,825,221

23,123,359

10,830,106

Remuneration
(in ` )

UTV Software Communications Limited
Particulars of Employees forming part of the Director’s Report for the financial year 2014-2015
Information pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Annexure ‘E’

1

10

8

7

5

8

6

9

8

4

7

7

12

6

Disney
Experience
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UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

ANNEXURE ‘F’
FORM NO. AOC.2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2015, which
were not at arm’s length basis.

2.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
There are no material contracts or arrangements entered into during the year ended March 31, 2015 which were at
arm’s length basis.

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Nimish Shah					
Whole-Time Director				
DIN: 05250183					
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161
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ANNEXURE - G
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
Sr. No.
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company
Category / Sub-Category of the Company
Address of the Registered office and contact
details

U72200MH1990PLC056987
22/06/1990
UTV Software Communications Limited
Indian Non-Government Company Limited by Shares
1st Floor, Building No. 14, Solitaire Corporate Park,
Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (East),
Mumbai – 400 093
Tel No.: 022 6109 1000

vi.
vii.

Fax: 022 67421930
Whether listed company
No
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
and Transfer Agent, if any
Karvy Selenium Tower B,
Plot No. 31 & 32 Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad – 500 032
Tel No.: +91 040 67161513, 040-67161510, 040-67161512

II.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:SI. No. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the Product / service
services
1
Broadcasting and showing of original films,
99733201
sound recordings, radio and television
programme etc.

% to total turnover of
the Company
100
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III.

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl. No. Name and Address of the CIN/GLN
Company

N.A.

Holding/
% of
Applicable
Subsidiary/
shares Section
Associate
held
Ultimate Holding
99.7 Section 2(46)
Company
Intermediate
99.7 Section 2(46)
Holding Company
Immediate Holding
99.7 Section 2(46)
Company
Subsidiary Company
100 Section 2(87)

N.A.

Subsidiary Company

100 Section 2(87)

N.A.

Subsidiary Company

100 Section 2(87)

N.A.
N.A.

Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

100 Section 2(87)
100 Section 2(87)

N.A.
N.A.
U72900MH2000FLC123970
U32300MH2007PLC171337

Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

1

The Walt Disney Company

N.A.

2

Disney Enterprises, Inc.

N.A.

The Walt Disney Company
(Southeast Asia) Pte. Ltd.
4
UTV Communications (USA)
LLC
5
IG Interactive Entertainment
Limited
6
Ignition Entertainment Limited,
UK
7
Ignition London Limited
8
Ignition Entertainment Limited,
USA
9
UTV Games Limited
10
True Games Interactive, Inc.
11* Indiagames Limited
12* Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited (formerly known as UTV
Global Broadcasting Limited)
13** Genx Entertainment Limited
14** Disney Broadcasting (India)
Limited (formerly known as
UTV Entertainment Television
Limited)
15*** UTV New Media Limited

N.A.

3

*

U92142MH2007PLC167974 Subsidiary Company
U64200MH2007PLC170405 Subsidiary Company

U92413MH2007PLC174340

Subsidiary Company

100
100
56
89.61

Section 2(87)
Section 2(87)
Section 2(87)
Section 2(87)

89.61 Section 2(87)
89.61 Section 2(87)

100 Section 2(87)

T he Company along with its Immediate Holding Company “The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte.
Limited” holds the entire paid-up capital of Indiagames Limited and Disney Entertainment (India) Limited.

** D
 isney Entertainment (India) Limited holds 100% of the paid up capital of Genx Entertainment Limited and
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited.
*** UTV New Media stands merged with your Company pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the
Bombay High Court vide its order dated 3rd July, 2015 which has become effective from 24th July, 2015 i.e. the
date on which it has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.
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IV.

B.
1

2

A.
1

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

Public Shareholding
Institutions
Mutual Funds
Banks / FI
Central Govt.
State Govt(s).
Venture Capital Funds
Insurance Companies
FIIs
Foreign Venture Capital Funds
Others (specify)
Sub-total (B) (1):-

Total shareholding of Promoter
A = (A)(1) + (A)(2)

FOREIGN
NRIs–Individuals
Other-Individuals
Bodies Corporate
Banks / FI
Any other
Sub-total (A) (2):-

Promoters
INDIAN
Individual/ HUF
Central Govt.
State Govt(s).
Bodies Corporate
Banks/ FI
Any Other
Sub-total (A) (1):-

Category of Shareholders

-

51506659

51506659
51506659

-

-

-

-

- 51506659

- 51506659
- 51506659

-

-

-

-

99.7 51506659

-

-

-

- 51506659

- 51506659
- 51506659

-

-

99.7

99.7
99.7

-

-

Nil

Nil

-

-

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Demat
Physical
Total % of Total % Change
Shares during the
year

99.7 51506659
99.7 51506659

-

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
Demat
Physical
Total % of Total
Shares

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
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The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia)
Pte. Ltd.

1.

Sr.
No.

-

157000

Shareholding

% of total
% of Shares
Shares of the
Pledged/
company encumbered to
total shares
51506659
99.7
-

No. of
Shares

-

153751

153751

8917

-

-

157000

157000

9014

-

3249 51663659

-

3249

3249

97

-

100

-

0.31

0.31

0.02

-

Nil

-

Nil

Nil

Nil

-

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year
Reason
No. of
% of total
Shares
shares
of the
Company
N.A. 51506659
99.70

% of total
%of Shares
% change in
Shares of the
Pledged/
shareholding
company encumbered to during the
total shares
year
51506659
99.7
Nil

No. of
Shares

Shareholding at the end of the year

100 51660410

-

0.31

0.31

0.02

-

0.01
0
0.27

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

3237 51663659

-

3237

157000

10058

-

3911
268
142763

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Demat
Physical
Total % of Total % Change
Shares during the
year
3843
8
3851
0.01
Nil
268
268
0
Nil
140991
2876
143867
0.27
Nil

At the
% of total At the end % of total
Date of
Increase /
beginning
shares
of the year
shares
increase / Decrease in
of the year
of the
of the
decrease shareholding
Company
Company
The Walt Disney Company 51506659
99.70 51506659
99.70
N.A
Nil
(Southeast Asia) Pte. Ltd.

Name

iii. Change in Promoters Shareholding: (Equity)

1.

Sr. Shareholder’s Name
No.

51660422

-

153763

Total Public Shareholding
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)
Shares held by Custodian for
GDR’s & ADR’s
Grand Total (A + B + C)

97

9961
3237

-

-

153763

8
268
2864

3903
139899

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
Demat
Physical
Total % of Total
Shares

Sub-total (B) (2):-

Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate
Indian
Overseas
Individuals
Individual Shareholders holding nominal
share capital up to ` 1 lakh
ii. Individual Shareholders holding nominal
share capital in excess of ` 1 lakh
c. Others

a.
i.
ii.
b.
i.

ii. Promoter’s Shareholding (Equity)

C.

2

Category of Shareholders

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Pratibha Paliwal

Chander Pribhdas Tahiliani

Anmol Vanamali

Hemant P. Vissanji

Anand Dhundiraj Jog

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

1000

1000

1037

1050

1208

1208

1000
0

Ved Prakash Paliwal

4.

1329

11. Gautam Kumar
12. Sheel Kumar

Sunil Tulsidas Mehta

3.

1400

1000

Amita Rajeev Karia

2.

1500

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0
1000

1000

1000

1000

1037

1050

1208

1208

1329

1400

1500

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

At the
% of total At the end % of total
beginning
shares
of the year
shares
of the year
of the
of the
Company
Company

10. Ram Chander Malhotra

Byram Phiroze Shroff

Name

1.

Sr.
No.

Shareholding
Reason

0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
-1000.00 Transfer
1000.00 Transfer

Date of
Increase /
increase / Decrease in
decrease shareholding

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

0
1000

1000

1000

1000

1037

1050

1208

1208

1329

1400

1500

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year
% of total
No. of
Shares
shares
of the
Company
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*Charles Jacob

**Pawan Jaggi

Vishwas Joshi

Puneet Juneja

2

3

4

5

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

**Ceases to be a Company Secretary w.e.f October 16, 2015

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

At the
% of total At the end % of total
beginning
shares
of the year
shares
of the year
of the
of the
Company
Company

* Ceases to be a Director w.e.f. March 31, 2015

Nimish Shah

Name

1

Sr.
No.

Shareholding

v. Shareholding Pattern Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Reason

0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year
0.00 Nil Movement
during the year

Date of
Increase /
increase / Decrease in
decrease shareholding

1

1

1

1

1

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year
No. of
% of total
Shares
shares
of the
Company

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
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V.

INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding /accrued but not due for payment
Amount in ` millions

Secured Loans
Unsecured
excluding deposits Loans
Sr. No. Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i.
Principal Amount
ii.
Interest due but not paid
iii.
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii + iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
·     Addition
·     Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i.
Principal Amount
ii.
Interest due but not paid
iii.
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii + iii)

Total
Indebtedness

13,782.43

13,782.43

74.03
13,856.46

74.03
13,856.46

2,000.00
2,915.05
(915.05)

2,000.00
2,915.05
(915.05)

12,908.07

12,908.07

33.34
12,941.41

33.34
12,941.41

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and /or Manager:
Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD / Manager
*Siddharth Roy Kapur
Nimish Shah

Total Amount

Gross salary
(a) 	 Salary as per provisions contained in
Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2
Stock Option
3
Sweat Equity
4
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
N.A.
* Ceased to be Managing Director w.e.f. 05th September, 2014

l

1

Ni

VI.

Deposits

N.A.
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VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
B.

Remuneration to Other Directors:

SI. Particulars of
No. Remuneration

Prem Mehta
(appointed
w.e.f.
March 31,
2015)

Narendra
Ambwani
(appointed
w.e.f.
March 31,
2015)

Name of Directors
Charles Jacob Sujit Vaidya Parul Tevatia
(resigned
(appointed
w.e.f.
w.e.f.
March 31,
March 18,
2015)
2015)

1

Ni

l

Independent Directors
a. Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
b. Commission
c. Others, please specify
Total (1)
2
Other Non – Executive
Directors
a. Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
b. Commission
c. Others, please specify
Total (2)

Total
Amount

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SI. Particulars of Remuneration
No.
1

2
3
4

5

Gross salary
(a) 	 Salary as per provisions contained in
Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Incometax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Key Managerial Personnel
Company
Company
CFO
Secretary
Secretary
*Pawan Jaggi **Puneet Juneja Vishwas Joshi
Nil
2,078,834
7,587,135

*Ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f. 16th October, 2015
**Appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f 16th October, 2015
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Nil

-

600,528

Nil

-

-

-

2,078,834

8,187,663

Total
Amount
(in ` )
9,665,969
600,528

10,266,497
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VII.

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type
Section of the
Brief Description
Companies Act

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Details of
Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD/
NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal
made, if
any (give
Details)

Section 295(1) of
the Companies Act,
1956
read
with
Section 621A of the
Companies Act, 1956

Compounding Application C o m p o u n d i n g
for violation of Section Fees of ` 5,000/295(1)(a) of the Companies paid by Company
Act, 1956 in respect of
giving loans / advances to
Director of the Company

C o m p a n y N.A.
Law Board,
Mumbai
Bench

Section 295(1) of
the Companies Act,
1956
read
with
Section 621A of the
Companies Act, 1956

Compounding Application
for violation of Section
295(1)(a) of the Companies
Act, 1956 in respect of
giving loans / advances to
Director of the Company

Compounding
Fees of ` 5,000/paid by 3 Directors
and 1 Managing
Director

C o m p a n y N.A.
Law Board,
Mumbai
Bench

Compounding Application
for violation of Section
295(1)(a) of the Companies
Act, 1956 in respect of
giving loans / advances to
Director of the Company

Compounding
Fees of ` 5,000/paid by Company
Secretary

C o m p a n y N.A.
Law Board,
Mumbai
Bench

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
Section 295(1) of
the Companies Act,
1956
read
with
Section 621A of the
Companies Act, 1956

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Nimish Shah			
Whole-Time Director		
DIN: 05250183			

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of UTV Software Communications Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under including the accounting standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act
and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Opinion
8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015,
and its losses and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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9.

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.
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(c)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

(d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and
according to the information and explanations given to us:

		

i.

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2015 on its financial
position in its financial statements – Refer Notes 6 and 22 of the Financial Statements.

		

ii.

The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2015 for which there are no material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2015.

		

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2015.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration Number: 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

Mumbai
July 27, 2015						

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 046061
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ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of UTV Software Communications
Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015
i.

ii.

iii.

(a)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation,
of fixed assets.

(b)

The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year. The
discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of
account. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(a)

The inventory of raw stock of tapes and films has been physically verified by the Management during the year. The
inventory of completed/ acquired movie copyrights has been verified by the Management during the year, with
reference to title documents/ agreements. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b)

In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the Management are reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c)

On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company is maintaining proper
records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to two companies covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. The Company has not granted any unsecured loans to firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act.
(a)

Except for an amount aggregating ` 91.62 million outstanding from one of the Company’s subsidiary which has
significant accumulated losses, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular
in payment of interest as applicable.

(b)

In respect of the aforesaid loans, in the cases where the overdue amount is more than Rupees One Lakh, the
Company, in earlier year, has made a provision for doubtful loan receivable from a subsidiary aggregating ` 91.62
million, after taking reasonable steps for recovery.

iv.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and
fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records
of the Company, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have
been informed of, any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

v.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the
Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii.

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of service tax, tax
deducted at source, provident fund and profession tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including employees’ state insurance, sales tax, income tax,
wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there
are no dues of wealth tax, duty of customs and duty of excise which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, value added tax and lease tax as at March 31, 2015
which have not been deposited on account of dispute, are as follows:
Name of the
statute
Income Tax Act,
1961
Income Tax Act,
1961
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Nature of dues
Tax Deducted at
Source
Income tax

Amount Period to which the
(` in million) amount relates
1.99 Assessment Years 2008-09
to 2011-12
66.56 Assessment Years 2009-10

Forum where the
dispute is pending
Income Tax Officer (TDS)
Income Tax officer
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Name of the
statute
Income Tax Act,
1961
Income Tax Act,
1961
Bombay Sales Tax
Act, 1959
Bombay Sales Tax
Act, 1959
Bombay Sales Tax
Act, 1959
Maharashtra
Lease Tax Act,
1985
Uttar Pradesh
Value Added Tax
Act, 2008
(c)

Nature of dues
Income tax
Income tax
Sales Tax
Sales Tax
Sales Tax
Lease Tax
Value Added Tax

Amount Period to which the
(` in million) amount relates
24.82 Assessment Years 2007-08
& 2012-13
0.02 Assessment Years 2010-11
27.49 Financial Years 2003-04
and 2004-05
1.61 Financial Years 2001-02
and 2004-05
0.74 Financial Year 2008-09
106.29 Financial Year 2000-01 to
2004-05
0.20 Financial Year 2008-09

Forum where the
dispute is pending
Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Officer
Maharashtra Sales Tax
Tribunal
Dy. Commissioner of
Sales tax (Appeals) III
Dy. Commissioner of
Sales tax (Appeals) III
Dy. Commissioner of
Sales tax (Appeals) III
Addl. Commissioner of
Sales Tax (Appeals) V

There are no amounts required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder.

viii.

The Company has accumulated losses exceeding fifty percent of its networth as at the end of the financial year and it
has also incurred cash losses during the financial year ended on that date and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

ix.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or debenture holders as at the Balance Sheet
date.

x.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee
for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

xii.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of any such case by the Management.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration Number: 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

Mumbai
July 27, 2015						

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 046061
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UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET as at March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31, 2014

3
4

3,015.64
1,670.92
4,686.56

Non-current Liabilities
Long-term Borrowings
Long-term Provisions

516.64
4,865.84
5,382.48

5
6

500.00
19.86
519.86

Current Liabilities
Short-term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short-term Provisions

8,250.00
18.21
8,268.21

7
8
9
10

Total
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Intangible Assets

4,158.07
1,378.65
8,539.00
10.98
14,086.70
19,293.12

5,532.43
944.82
404.74
16.87
6,898.86
20,549.55

11
12

Non-current Investments
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Long-term Loans and Advances
Other Non-current Assets

13
14
15
16

4.39
16.61
21.00
11,069.73
1,057.05
1.40

2.40
24.81
27.21
9,635.19
1,664.59
0.35

12,149.18

11,327.34

4,326.82
662.40
116.15
1,961.03
77.54
7,143.94
19,293.12

5,953.82
889.02
81.97
2,212.22
85.18
9,222.21
20,549.55

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Cash and Bank balances
Short-term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

17
18
19
20
21

Total
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
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For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Nimish Shah
Whole-time Director
DIN: 05250183

Vishwas Joshi
CFO

Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Note
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
Direct Costs
Employee Benefit Expenses
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses
Loss before tax
Tax Expense
Tax Provision pertaining to earlier years
Minimum Alternative Tax credit entitlement written off
Loss for the year
Earning/(Loss) per Equity Share:
[Nominal Value per share: ` 10 (2014: ` 10)]
Basic (in Rupees)
Diluted (in Rupees)

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Year ended
March 31, 2014

24
25

7,274.54
196.60
7,471.14

6,171.50
190.91
6,362.41

26
27
28
29
30

8,115.08
220.98
1,315.05
10.58
795.44
10,457.13
(2,985.99)

6,254.11
278.92
1,186.17
11.19
881.87
8,612.26
(2,249.85)

9.72
9.45
(3,005.16)

0.71
0.60
(2,251.16)

(58.17)
(58.17)

(44.08)
(44.08)
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The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Nimish Shah
Whole-time Director
DIN: 05250183

Vishwas Joshi
CFO

Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2014

Year ended
March 31, 2015
A.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax

(2,985.99)

(2,249.85)

10.58

11.19

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Net Loss on Disposal of Tangible and Intangible Assets

-

7.53

Fixed assets written-off

-

5.62

(63.10)

(106.57)

Finance Costs

1,315.05

1,186.17

Amortisation of movie costs

5,989.06

3,922.49

255.29

(11.08)

Interest Income

Provision for doubtful debts/(written back)
Provision for diminution in the value of investments
Provision for doubtful loans and advances/(written back)
Bad debts written off
Provision for Contingencies
Unrealised foreign exchange loss
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

0.46

-

(132.14)

457.32

2.07

-

-

7.97

(5.91)

(48.67)

4,385.37

3,182.12

411.86

64.02

(367.28)

(334.33)

(16.50)

538.21

(4,361.49)

(5,284.86)

264.04

872.96

Adjustments for:
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other current/non-current liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in short-term loans and advances
(Increase)/Decrease in long-term loans and advances
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from/(used in) Operating Activities
B.

(353.32)
(1,315.20)

(178.38)

(224.70)

1,083.18

(1,539.90)

(4.26)

(24.67)

-

27.17

(1,480.00)

(2,025.99)

-

818.76

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible/intangible assets
Refund of Share Application Money
Investment/Share Application Money in Subsidiaries
Repayment of loan given to related parties (net)
Term Deposits with maturity more than 3 months
Interest received
Net cash from/(used in) Investing Activities

34

945.56
1,261.56

(17.50)

3.53

62.89

192.98

(1,438.87)

(1,008.22)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2015
C.

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares/preference share
Borrowing of Long-Term Loan
Repayment of Long-Term Loan
Borrowing/(Repayment) of Short-Term Loan (Net)
Interest paid
Net cash from/(used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents taken over on at April 1, 2014 (Refer
Note 2 below)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2014

2,499.00
2,000.00
(1,500.00)
(1,374.36)
(1,348.85)
275.79
(79.90)
80.27
97.63

1,767.28
1,667.46
(1,214.83)
2,219.91
(328.21)
400.94
7.54

98.00

80.27

0.70
97.30
98.00

0.35
79.92
80.27

Notes:
1.
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method set out in Accounting Standard- 3 on
Cash Flow Statements.
2.
Cash and cash equivalents of ` 97.63 million (Previous year ` 7.54 million) of erstwhile subsidiary companies have
been added on amalgamation and opening balances of other Balance Sheet items of erstwhile subsidiary companies
have been added in respective line items of above cashflow due to amalgamation (Refer Note 39).
3.
Previous year comparatives have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation, wherever applicable.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Nimish Shah
Whole-time Director
DIN: 05250183

Vishwas Joshi
CFO

Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
1.

General Information
UTV Software Communications Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated under the laws of India on June 22, 1990 in
Mumbai under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was listed with National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock
Exchange upto March 16, 2012 and has been delisted pursuant to take over by The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Film Distribution, Film (including Animation)
Production, Mobile Value Added Services and Content Development and Distribution.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
a)

Basis of preparation

		

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles
in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum
thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial
Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to
apply.

		

Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting
standards notified under Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

		

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and
the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 24 months for movie division and 12 months for all other divisions, for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

b)

Tangible Assets

		

Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried
at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		

Depreciation is provided on straight line method over the estimated useful lives of tangible assets as prescribed
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. On additions, depreciation is provided for the full month
irrespective of the date of addition during the month. On assets discarded, demolished or destroyed during the
month, depreciation is calculated upto the month of such deletions.

c)

Intangible Assets

		

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. On
additions, amortization is provided for the full month irrespective of the date of addition during the month. On
assets retired or disposed off during the month, amortization is calculated upto the month of such deletions.

		

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The useful lives for intangible assets used are:
Asset
Website
Computer Software

d)
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Useful Life (in years)
2
3

Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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e)
		

f)
		

g)

Impairment
Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and
intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of
the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their
recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or
cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.
Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date,
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified
as long term investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment
individually.
Inventories

		

(i)

Inventory is valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value.

		

(ii)

Raw Stock is stated at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value.

		

(iii)

Cost of completed/acquired movies is amortised over the movie life cycle based upon the ratio of the
current period’s revenues to the estimated remaining total revenues (Ultimate Revenues) for each movie.
If estimate of Ultimate Revenues decreases, amortization of movie cost is accelerated. Conversely, if
estimates of Ultimate Revenues increases, movie cost amortization is decelerated. Ultimate Revenues
include revenues from all sources that will be earned over a period not to exceed ten years from the date of
the first theatrical release.

		

(iv)

Acquired rights pertaining to movies, animation and other content, are amortised on the exploitation of
such rights based on the management estimates of revenue potential.

		

(v)

Projects in progress and Movies under Production are stated at cost. Cost comprises of material cost, cost
of services and other expenses. Costs get accumulated till the first theatrical release of the movie.

		

(vi)

The Company evaluates the realisable value and/or revenue potential of inventory on an annual basis and
appropriate write down is made in cases where accelerated write down is warranted.

h)

Foreign Currency Translations

		

The transactions in foreign exchange are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the date of the Balance Sheet.

		

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i)

Revenue recognition

		

(i)

Revenues on sale/licensing of television programmes and dubbing are recognised on delivery. The amount
recognised is at the predetermined price, the collection of which is reasonably assured.

		

(ii)

Revenues from sale of airtime (net of trade discount, as applicable) are recognised when the related
advertisements or commercials appears before the public, i.e. on telecast.

		

(iii)

Revenues from licensing and distribution of movies are recognised in accordance with the licensing and
distribution agreement or on delivery of the movies, whichever is later.

		

(iv)

Revenues from sales/ licensing of Interactive Media Content are recognised in accordance with the licensing
agreement.
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j)
		

(i)

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

		

(ii)

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

k)

Employee Benefits

		

Defined Contribution Plan: The Company contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employees' Provident
Fund, Employees' Pension Scheme and Employees' State Insurance Commission towards post employment
benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government authorities, and has no further obligation
beyond making its contribution, which is expensed in the year to which it pertains.

		

Defined Benefit Plan: The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan namely Gratuity (the “Gratuity Plan”) for all its
employees, which is funded. The Company provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with
the Gratuity Scheme. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method)
at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise. The fund is recognised by the Income tax authorities and administered through appropriate
authorities/insurers.

		

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed within 12
months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional liability of the Company
as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

		

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed beyond 12 months from the end of the
year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

l)
		

Employee Share-based Payments
Equity settled stock options granted by the Company are accounted using intrinsic value method as prescribed
by the Guidance Note on Employee Share-based Payments issued by the 'Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India'. The intrinsic value of the option being excess of market value of the underlying share immediately prior to
date of grant over its exercise price is recognised as deferred employee compensation with a credit to employee
stock option outstanding account. The deferred employee compensation is charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss on straight line basis over the vesting period of the option. The options that lapse are reversed by a credit to
employee compensation expense, equal to the amortised portion of value of lapsed option and credit to deferred
employee compensation expense equal to the unamortised portion of lapsed option.

m)
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Other Income

Current and Deferred Tax

		

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net
profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

		

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of
deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised. Deferred tax assets are not recognised in case there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward
of losses under tax laws, unless there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if
any.

		

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against
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liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes
on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
		

n)

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is
no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

		

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

		

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

o)
		

p)
		
q)
		

r)
		
s)
		

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in
which the results are known/materialize.
Leases
Lease rentals in respect of assets taken on Operating Lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as
per the terms of the lease agreement.
Segment Reporting
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
the Company. Further, inter-segment revenue have been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to
between segments which is primarily market based. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments
on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate
to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under
“Unallocated Corporate Income” and “Unallocated Corporate Expenses”, respectively.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
In the cash ﬂow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings
considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting
preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.		
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3.

Share Capital
Authorised:
Equity Shares
106,966,900 (March 31, 2014: 70,000,000) equity shares of ` 10 each
Preference Shares
7,333,500 (March 31, 2014: Nil) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of
` 1,500 each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
Equity Shares
51,663,659 (March 31, 2014: 51,663,659) equity shares of ` 10 each, fully
paid-up
Preference Shares
1,666,000 (March 31, 2014: Nil) 9% Non-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares of ` 1,500 each, fully paid-up
Total

(a)

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,069.67

700.00

11,000.25

-

516.64

516.64

2,499.00

-

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
(i) Equity Shares:
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2014
Numbers
Amount
Numbers
Amount
Balance as at the Beginning of the year
5,16,63,659
516.64
5,00,42,750
500.43
Add: Shares Issued during the year under
30,000
0.30
the Employees Stock Option Plan
Add: Shares Issued during the year to The
15,90,909
15.91
Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia)
Pte. Limited, Holding Company
Balance as at the end of the year
5,16,63,659
516.64
5,16,63,659
516.64
(ii) Preference Shares

Balance as at the Beginning of the year
Add: Shares Issued during the year to The
Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia)
Pte. Limited, the holding company
Balance as at the end of the year
Notes:
1.
2.
(b)

As at March 31, 2015
Numbers
Amount
1,666,000
2,499.00
1,666,000

2,499.00

As at March 31, 2014
Numbers
Amount
-

-

During the previous year, the Company had allotted 1,590,909 Equity Shares of ` 10 each at a premium of
` 1,090 per share to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the holding company and 30,000 Equity
Shares of ` 10 each at premium of ` 566 per share to various Employees under the Employee Stock Option Plans.
During the current year, the Company has allotted 1,666,000 9% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the holding company at ` 1,500 per share.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:
Equity Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
Preference Shares
The Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares are convertible into Equity shares of face value ` 10 per share with
premium, on or before September 30, 2015.
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(c)

Details of shares held by the Holding Company
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte. Limited
Preference Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte. Limited

(d)

As at March 31, 2014
Numbers
Amount

5,15,06,659

515.07

5,15,06,659

515.07

16,66,000

2,499.00

-

-

Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2014
Numbers
Amount
Numbers
Amount
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte. Limited, the Holding Company
5,15,06,659
515.07
5,15,06,659
515.07
(99.70%)
(99.70%)
Preference Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte. Limited, the Holding Company

(e)

As at March 31, 2015
Numbers
Amount

16,66,000
(100.00%)

2,499.00

-

-

Authorised Share Capital
(i) Equity Shares
The authorised share capital of ` 700 million comprising of 70,000,000 equity shares of ` 10 each has been
increased to ` 1,069.67 million comprising of 106,966,900 equity shares of ` 10 each, pursuant to the Scheme
of Amalgamation between the Company and its subsidiaries (Refer Note 39) sanctioned by the order of the Hon’ble
Bombay High Court dated April 11, 2014.
(ii) Preference Shares
The Company has further increased its authorised share capital by ` 11,000.25 million comprising of 7,333,500
preference shares of ` 1,500 each, pursuant to resolution passed at annual general meeting of the Company held on
September 23, 2014.
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4.

Reserves and Surplus
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Capital Reserve
390.98

390.11

-

0.87

390.98

390.98

12,074.49

10,323.42

-

1,751.07

12,074.49

12,074.49

Business Restructuring Reserve [Refer Note below]

1,500.00

1,500.00

General Reserve

4,253.27

4,253.27

(13,352.90)

(11,128.78)

(3,005.16)

(2,251.16)

(189.76)

27.04

(16,547.82)

(13,352.90)

1,670.92

4,865.84

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Reserve arising on account of Amalgamation (Refer Note 39)
Balance as at the end of the year
Securities Premium Account
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Amounts received pursuant to issue of Nil
(March 31, 2014: 1,620,909) equity shares of ` 10 each [Also refer Note 3 (a)]
Balance as at the end of the year

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Loss for the year
Less: Reserve arising on account of Amalgamation (Refer Note 39)
Balance as at the end of the year
Total

Note:
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 391 to 394 (read with Section 78 and Sections 100 to 103)
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, sanctioned by the Honourable Bombay High Court during
the Financial Year 2009-10, Business Restructuring Reserve has been created by transferring balance standing to the
credit of Securities Premium Account for adjustment of certain expenses and inventory as prescribed therein.
5.

Long-term Borrowings
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured Term Loans:
-

8,250.00

From a Related Party

500.00

-

Total

500.00

8,250.00

From Banks (Refer Note 9)

Nature of Guarantee and terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings
(a)

Nature of Guarantee:
Term Loan from Banks are supported by the letter of guarantee from Disney Enterprises, Inc.

(b)
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Terms of Repayment:
(i)

Loan from Banks are repayable after 3 years from the original drawdown date. Interest rates on above
borrowings ranges between Base Rate plus 35 to 50 basis points.

(ii)

Loan from a Related Party is repayable on or before 26th November 2017. Interest rate on the said
borrowing is 8.25% p.a.
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6.

Long-term Provisions
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 27):
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Compensated Absences
Provision for Contingencies [Refer Notes (a) and (b) below]
Total

7.

6.23
5.66
7.97
19.86

–
10.24
7.97
18.21

(a)

Provision with respect to Customs Duty on advance license made in accordance with the Company’s policy
stated in Note 2 (n):
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Opening Balance
6.35
Add: Additional provision made during the year
6.35
Less: Amounts used
Less: Provision Reversed
Closing Balance (Classified as non-current)
6.35
6.35
The timing and the amount of cash outflows, if any, that may arise from the above matters will be determined
only in future.

(b)

Provision with respect to Sales Tax payable for the financial years 2001-02 to 2004-05 in accordance with the
Company’s policy stated in Note 2 (n):
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Opening Balance
1.62
Add: Additional provision made during the year
1.62
Less: Amounts used
Less: Provision Reversed
Closing Balance (Classified as non-current)
1.62
1.62
The timing and the amount of cash outflows, if any, that may arise from the above matters will be determined
only in future.

Short-term Borrowings
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured:
From Banks [Refer Note below]
- Working Capital Loans (repayable on demand)
3,980.00
2,920.00
- Cash Credits
178.07
2,162.43
From a Related Party
450.00
Total
4,158.07
5,532.43
Note:
Loan from Banks aggregating ` 4,158.07 million (March 31, 2014: ` 5,082.43 million), are supported by the letter of
guarantee from Disney Enterprises, Inc.

8.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables (Refer Note 38)
Total

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,378.65
944.82
1,378.65
944.82
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9.

Other Current Liabilities
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
8,250.00
1.22
1.22
28.86
10.74
136.61
209.73
0.05
0.05
33.34
67.14
31.52
45.47
57.40
70.39
8,539.00
404.74

Current maturities of long-term debt from Banks (Refer Note 5)
Security Deposits from Distributors
Advance Billing to Customers
Advances from Customers
Unpaid Dividend [Refer Note below]
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Employee Benefits Payable
Statutory dues (including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source)
Total
Note:
There are no amounts due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956 as at the year end.
10.

Short-term Provisions
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for Employee Benefits: (Refer Note 27)
Provision for Compensated Absences
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Wealth Tax (Net of Advances)
Total

44

1.57
9.30
0.11
10.98

9.06
7.70
0.11
16.87

12.

11.

0.70
2.37
6.02
1.12
10.21
113.89

April 1,
2014

Gross Block
Addition as Additions Disposals March 31,
per Scheme of
2015
Amalgamation
0.70
2.29
0.08
4.26
4.90
5.49
0.11
0.19
0.97
0.04
4.26
7.38
7.24
0.15
- 103.68
10.21
1.96
4.96
0.89
7.81
95.46

April 1,
2014

Depreciation
Net Block
Addition as
For the Disposals March 31, March 31, March 31,
per Scheme of
year
2015
2015
2014
Amalgamation
0.70
0.70
0.37
2.29
0.04
0.04
0.41
1.89
4.90
1.95
3.54
1.06
0.12
0.19
0.86
0.11
0.23
0.04
2.38
7.38
2.85
4.39
2.40
0.04
8.64
96.29
7.81
2.40
18.43
-

Computer Software
Website
Total
March 31, 2014

Particulars

27.05
5.98
33.03
14.83

April 1,
2014

[Refer Notes 2 (c), 2 (d) and 2 (e) and 39]

Intangible Assets
Gross Block
Addition as Additions Disposals March 31,
per Scheme of
2015
Amalgamation
27.05
5.98
5.98
27.05
27.05
8.85
33.03
2.24
5.98
8.22
14.38

April 1,
2014

Amortisation
Net Block
Addition as
For the Disposals March 31, March 31, March 31,
per Scheme of
year
2015
2015
2014
Amalgamation
8.20
10.44
16.61
24.81
5.98
8.20
5.98
10.44
16.61
24.81
2.55
8.71
8.22
24.81
0.45

Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and its applicability for accounting periods commencing from April 1, 2014, the Company has,
wherever required, to reflect the actual usage, realigned the remaining useful lives of certain assets in accordance with the provisions prescribed under Schedule
II to the Act. As a result of change, depreciation for the current year is lower by ` 1.49 million and loss before tax for the current year is lower by ` 1.49 million.

Freehold Land
Plant and Machinery
Computers
Office Equipments
Total
March 31, 2014

Particulars

Tangible Assets
[Refer Notes 2 (b), 2 (d) and 2 (e) and 39]

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
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13.

Non-current Investments
[Refer Note 2 (f)]
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Trade Investments (valued at cost)
Long-term, Unquoted equity instruments
Investment in subsidiaries:
33,910,000 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 33,910,000) of GBP 1 each
held in IG Interactive Entertainment Limited [Net of provision for other than
temporary diminution aggregating to ` 2,969.62 million (March 31, 2014:
` 2,969.62 million)] [Refer Note (a) below]

-

-

5,000 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 5,000) of USD 10 each held in UTV
Communications (USA) LLC

2.27

2.27

12,000,000 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 12,000,000) of USD 1 each held
in UTV Games Limited [Net of provision for other than temporary diminution
aggregating to ` 570.27 million (March 31, 2014: ` 570.27 million)]
[Refer Note (a) below]

-

-

Nil equity shares (March 31, 2014: 4,500,000) of ` 10 each held in UTV
New Media Limited (Refer Note 39)

-

45.00

2,587,657 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 2,344,236) of ` 10 each held in
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited [Refer Note (b) below]

10,542.14

9,062.14

639,986 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 639,986) of ` 10 each held in
Indiagames Limited

259.19

259.19

45,423,665 preference shares (March 31, 2014: 45,423,665) of GBP 1 each
held in IG Interactive Entertainment Limited [Net of provision for other than
temporary diminution aggregating to ` 3,280.62 million (March 31, 2014:
` 3,280.62 million)] [Refer Note (a) below]

266.08

266.08

12,718,000 preference shares (March 31, 2014: 12,718,000) of USD 1
each held in UTV Games Limited [Net of provision for other than temporary
diminution aggregating to ` 584.88 million (March 31, 2014: ` 584.88
million)] [Refer Note (a) below]

-

-

Unquoted preference instruments
Investment in subsidiaries:
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13.

Non-current Investments [Contd..]
[Refer Note 2 (f)]
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Non-trade Investments (valued at cost)
Unquoted equity instruments
Investment in Others:
600,000 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 600,000) of ` 10 each held in
United Teleshopping and Marketing Company Limited
*
*
352,000 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 352,000) of USD .001 each held
in Homland Network Corporation
0.01
0.01
Quoted equity instruments
Investment in Others:
62,500 equity shares (March 31, 2014: 62,500) of ` 2 each held in Radaan
Mediaworks India Limited [Net of provision for other than temporary
diminution aggregating to ` 0.46 million (March 31, 2014: Nil)]
0.04
0.50
Unquoted preference instruments
Investment in Others:
125,000 preference shares (March 31, 2014: 125,000) of USD .001 each
held in Homland Network Corporation
*
*
Total
11,069.73
9,635.19
* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Gross)
0.50
0.50
Market Value of quoted investments
0.04
0.04
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (Gross)
18,475.08
17,040.08
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments
7,405.85
7,405.39
Notes:
a)
The Company has made applications to Reserve Bank of India seeking permission for write-off of investments
made by the Company in IG Interactive Entertainment Limited and UTV Games Limited. Subsequent to the year
end, the Company has received ‘No objection’ letter dated June 5, 2015 from Reserve Bank of India for write off
of investments in UTV Games Limited.
b)
During the year, Disney Entertainment (India) Limited issued 243,421 equity shares of ` 10 each to the Company
at the average security premium of ` 6,070 each.

14.

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
[Refer Note 2 (m)]
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Deferred Tax Assets
Depreciation on Fixed Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Provision for Doubtful Advances
Provision on Unabsorbed Depreciation and Business Losses
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Expenses disallowed under Section 35DD allowable in later years
Inventory Amortisation
Total

9.97
134.71
108.94
7.88
261.50

3.32
38.51
280.65
200.01
8.76
531.25

0.71
260.79
261.50
-

531.25
531.25
-

Note: Considering the virtual uncertainty, Deferred Tax Assets is restricted to the extent of Deferred Tax Liability.
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15.

Long-term Loans and Advances
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated):
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer Note 36)
Considered good
489.95
Considered doubtful loans and advances [Refer Note below]
111.95
301.15
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances
(111.95)
(301.15)
Security Deposit
0.40
0.40
Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Considered good
276.81
Considered doubtful
438.71
438.71
Less: Provision for doubtful advance/Share Application Money
(438.71)
(438.71)
Advance Income Tax [Net of provision of ` 482.37 million (March 31, 2014:
` 471.73 million)]
1050.30
891.08
Balance with Government Authorities
6.35
6.35
Total
1057.05
1664.59
Note:
These amounts pertains to interest free loans of ` 91.62 million given to UTV Communications (USA) LLC and of ` 20.33
million UTV Games Limited, both subsidiaries of the Company, for their working capital requirements. Considering
significant accumulated losses of both the subsidiaries, provisions were created towards doubtful recovery of these
loans.

16.

Other Non-Current assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1.40
0.35

Long-term deposits with banks with maturity period more than 12 months
[Refer Note below]
Total
1.40
0.35
Note:
Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 1.30 million (March 31, 2014: ` 0.35 million) are provided as security against various
bank guarantees given and Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 0.10 million (March 31, 2014: ` Nil) is provided as security
to the Sales Tax Authorities, Delhi.
17.

Inventories
[Refer Note 2 (g)]

Raw Stocks- Tapes and Films
Unamortised cost of Completed/ Acquired Movie Copyrights
Licensed Content Acquired
Movies Under Production
Total
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As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1.47
12.35
753.56
1,763.29
0.36
3,571.79
4,177.82
4,326.82
5,953.82
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18.

Trade Receivables
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Outstanding for a period less than 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Outstanding for a period less than 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Total

19.

119.58

391.80

542.82

497.22

387.47

116.47

1.78
1,051.65
389.25
662.40

2.19
1,007.68
118.66
889.02

Cash and Bank Balances
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Bank balances
		
- Current Accounts
		
- Exchange Earners’ Foreign Currency Account
		
- Deposits with less than 3 months maturity
Other Bank balances
Long-term deposits with maturity more than 3 months
but less than 12 months [Refer Note below]
Long-term deposits with maturity more than 12 months [Refer Note below]
Unclaimed Dividend Accounts

0.70

0.35

29.70
67.60
98.00

67.66
5.62
6.64
80.27

17.75
0.35
0.05
18.15
116.15

1.65
0.05
1.70
81.97

Total
Note:
Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 0.60 million (March 31, 2014: ` 1.55 million) are provided as security against various
bank guarantees given and Fixed Deposits amounting to ` Nil (March 31, 2014: ` 0.10 million) is provided as security
to the Sales Tax Authorities, Delhi.
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20.

Short-term Loans and Advances
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated):
Loans and advances to related parties [Refer Note (a) below]
447.16
344.00
Security Deposits
1.26
21.75
Other Loans and Advances
Advance to Suppliers
		
Considered good
1,240.75
1,636.14
		
Considered doubtful
530.83
473.78
		
Less: Allowance for doubtful advance to supplier
(530.83)
(473.78)
Prepaid Expenses
7.97
13.98
Balance with Government Authorities
261.82
195.58
Others
2.07
0.77
Total
1,961.03
2,212.22
Note:
This amount includes loan given to Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV Entertainment
Television Limited) of ` 417.26 million which is to be utilised for its general corporate purpose, working capital and capex
requirements. This loan carries rate of interest of 9.80% p.a. and it is repayable on or before September 12, 2015.
21.

Other Current Assets

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated):
Interest accrued on deposits with banks
Interest accrued on Loans to related Parties
		Considered good
		Considered doubtful
		
Less : Provision for doubtful interest
Unbilled Revenue
Total
22.

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
0.78

0.57

1.76
89.98
(89.98)
75.00
77.54

58.59
89.98
(89.98)
26.02
85.18

Contingent Liabilities
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Nature
a. Legal matters:
i. Legal cases filed against the Company not acknowledged as debts
3,651.99
654.84
b. Taxation matters:
i. Income Tax
103.30
46.27
ii. Value Added Tax (VAT)/ Sales Tax/ Lease Tax
135.18
134.97
Notes:
(a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
pending resolution of the respective proceedings.
(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

23.

Guarantees given by the Company
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Nature
Bank Guarantees issued favouring various Government Authorities
Bank Guarantees issued on behalf of group company towards its obligation to
Customs Authorities
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24.

Revenue from Operations
[Refer Note 2 (i)]
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Sales and Services Revenues (Net)
Television Content, Airtime Sales and Dubbing Services
Distribution and Licensing of Movies
Interactive Media
Total

25.

Year ended
March 31, 2014

54.79
8.31

103.15
3.42

132.14
1.36
196.60

164.27
153.19

11.08
62.54
7.82
2.90
190.91

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
116.74
578.43
746.51
543.12
300.18
382.72
124.41
162.32
824.95
642.37
5,989.06
3,922.49
13.23
22.66
8,115.08
6,254.11

Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries, Allowances and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds [Refer Note (a) below]
Gratuity [Refer Note (b) below]
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total
(a)

-

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Direct Costs

Footage, Programming and Other Acquisition Cost
Participation Costs
Print Costs
Royalty Expenses
Advertisement and publicity
Amortisation of movie costs
Miscellaneous expenses
Total
27.

522.41
5,600.75
48.34
6,171.50

Other Income

Interest Income:
- On Loans to Related Parties
- On Fixed Deposits and Others
Provision for doubtful debts written back
Less: Bad debts written off
Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances written back
Net Gain on Foreign Currency transaction and translation
Provision no longer required written back
Miscellaneous Income
Total
26.

19.81
7,218.78
35.95
7,274.54

Defined Contribution Plans
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Provident and Pension Fund
Employees State Insurance Commission
Total
Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
197.56
255.43
9.53
16.22
7.60
2.20
6.29
5.07
220.98
278.92

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
9.49
16.18
0.04
0.04
9.53
16.22
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(b)

Defined Benefit Plans
The Company provides long-term benefits in the nature of Gratuity to its employees, which is funded through the Life
Insurance Corporation of India.
The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss and funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the gratuity benefit plan:
(i)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year
22.26
24.58
On account of Merger/Amalgamation
1.04
Interest Cost
2.04
1.97
Current Service Cost
1.04
1.44
Benefits Paid
(8.04)
(5.95)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss
5.38
0.22
Balance at the close of the year
23.72
22.26
(ii)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Benefits Paid
Contributions by employer
Balance at the close of the year
(iii)

Reconciliation/Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Less: Fair Value of Planned Assets
Amount recognised as (Asset)/liability *
*Liability recognised as under
Long-Term Provision (Refer Note 6)
Short-Term Provision (Refer Note 10)

(iv)

6.23
9.30
15.53

7.70
7.70

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1.04
1.44
2.04
1.97
(1.27)
(1.66)
5.79
0.45
7.60
2.20

Actual Return on Plan Assets

Expected return on Plan Assets
Actuarial gain on Plan Assets
Actual Return on Plan Assets
52

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
23.72
22.26
(8.19)
(14.56)
15.53
7.70

Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in the year
Total Expenses
(v)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
14.56
19.08
1.27
1.66
(0.41)
(0.23)
(7.23)
(5.95)
8.19
14.56

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1.27
1.66
(0.41)
(0.23)
0.86
1.43
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(vi)

Investment details of Plan Assets
100% of the Plan Assets are invested in Insurer Managed Funds.

(vii)

Actuarial Assumptions
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(Per Annum)
(Per Annum)
Discount Rate
7.90%
8.75%
Salary Growth Rate
13.00%
12.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets
7.90%
8.70%
–
The discount rates reflects the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance
Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
–
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account, inflation,
seniority, promotions and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market.
–
The expected rate of return of plan assets is the Company’s expectation of the average long-term rate of
return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

(viii) Amounts recognised in current year and previous four years
As at
As at
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
Defined Benefit Obligation
23.72
22.26
Plan Assets
8.19
14.56
(Surplus)/Deficit
15.53
7.70
Experience adjustment in plan
liabilities - (Gain)/Loss
3.52
1.87
Experience adjustment in plan
assets - Gain/(Loss)
(0.41)
(0.23)

As at
March 31,
2013
24.58
19.08
5.50

As at
March 31,
2012
19.44
20.30
(0.86)

As at
March 31,
2011
17.93
16.06
1.87

(0.04)

5.41

1.45

(0.01)

0.36

0.16

(ix) Expected Contribution to the Funds in the next year
Gratuity

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
9.30
8.72

(c)

The Liability for Compensated Absences (Non-Funded) as at March 31, 2015 is ` 7.23 million (March 31, 2014:
` 19.30 million) recognised under:
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Long-Term Provision (Refer Note 6)
5.66
10.24
Short-Term Provision (Refer Note 10)
1.57
9.06
Total
7.23
19.30

(d)

Certain employees of the Company have been granted Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and Restricted Stock Units
(RSUs) of The Walt Disney Company, USA, the ultimate holding company. During the year ended March 31, 2015, the
Company has received debit note/information on the basis of recharge towards ESOPs/RSUs granted by the ultimate
holding company to its employees. Consequently, the Company has debited ‘Salaries, Allowances and Other Benefits’
for a sum aggregating ` 7.84 million (March 31, 2014 : ` 19.83 million) towards liability to its ultimate holding company.
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28.

Finance Costs

Interest on borrowing from banks
Interest on borrowings from others
Other borrowing costs
Total
29.

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation on Tangible assets
Amortization on Intangible assets
Total
30.

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,277.84
1,151.08
35.88
33.53
1.33
1.56
1,315.05
1,186.17

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.38
8.64
8.20
2.55
10.58
11.19

Other Expenses

Rent
Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Legal and Professional fees
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees
- Certification fees/Other services
- Reimbursement of Expenses
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Electricity Charges
Travel, Conveyance and Accommodation
Communication and Postage Expenses
Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Provision for diminution in the value of investments
Net Loss on Disposal of Tangible and Intangible Assets
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances
Central Support Expenses [Net of Recovery ` 21.90 million
(March 31, 2014: ` 68.80 million)] [Refer Note below]
Miscellaneous expenses
Total
Note:

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
10.39
51.38
19.09
18.02
40.07
44.90
4.50
0.35
0.05
206.62
2.86
0.90
17.50
3.12
255.29
2.07
0.46
45.07
167.12

5.00
0.88
0.05
57.40
16.07
9.31
19.00
6.63
7.53
457.32
147.86

19.98
795.44

40.52
881.87

‘Central Support Fee’ aggregating ` 167.12 million (March 31, 2014: ` 147.86 million) includes recoveries of costs
incurred by group companies for providing services such as business development, information technology system
support, financial and legal support, facility support and human resource consulting services. The charge for these
services is accounted based on the periodic debit notes received from group companies.
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31.

Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
[Refer Note 2 (l)]
Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2010 :
Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on October 14, 2010 and Postal Ballot resolution passed
by members on November 30, 2010, the Company had introduced Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 (“the 2010
scheme”) for permanent employees and directors of the Company and of its subsidiaries, as may be decided by the
Compensation Committee/Board.
The 2010 scheme provides that the total number of options granted there under will be 1,000,000. Each option, on
exercise, is convertible into one equity share of the Company having face value of ` 10. The options had been granted
at an exercise price which was higher than the market price as on the date of the grant. Accordingly, the Company had
not recognised any expense on account of grant of stock options.
The details of the activity under the Scheme during the year are as follows:
Particulars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(Numbers)
(Numbers)
Option Outstanding at the beginning of the year
30,000
Options Granted during the year
Options Exercised during the year
(30,000)
Options Lapsed during the year
Options Outstanding at the year end
-

32.

Expenditure in foreign currency
Royalty Expenses
Print Cost
Footage Cost
Advertisement and Business Promotion
Central Support Expenses
Other Expenses
Total

33.

Earnings in foreign currency
Sales and Service Revenues

34.

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (EPS)
[Refer Note 2 (s)]
Basic and Diluted
Loss after tax
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the year end (Nos.)
(for Basic EPS)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the year end (Nos.)
(for Diluted EPS)
Loss per share (Basic) (`)
Loss per share (Diluted) (`)
Nominal value of shares (`)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
119.49
150.18
44.98
20.43
8.32
6.79
13.63
1.16
42.86
86.46
26.79
20.77
256.07
285.79

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
968.00
752.79

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(3,005.16)
5,16,63,659

(2,251.16)
5,10,68,008

5,16,63,659
(58.17)
(58.17)
10.00

5,10,68,008
(44.08)
(44.08)
10.00
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35.

March 31, 2015
March 31, 2014

Secondary Segment: Geographical Segment

REVENUE
Within India Outside India
6,306.54
968.00
5,418.71
752.79

ASSETS
Total
Within India Outside India
Total
7,274.54 18,717.99
575.13 19,293.12
6,171.50 19,560.98
988.57 20,549.55

[Refer Note 2 (q)]
The Company has considered the business segment as the primary reporting segment on the basis that the risk and returns of the Company is primarily determined by the
nature of products and services. Consequently, the geographical segment has been considered as a secondary segment. The business segment have been identified on
the basis of the nature of products and services, the risks and returns, internal organisation and management structure and the internal performance reporting systems.
The business segment comprise of the following:
(a) Television Segment comprises television content, airtime sales and dubbing services;
(b) Movies segment comprises the film production, distribution and syndication business; and
(c) Interactive media segment comprises web and mobile content business.
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and outside India.
Primary Segment: Business Segment
March 31, 2015
March 31, 2014
Television
Movies
Interactive Media Unallocable
Total
Television
Movies Interactive Media Unallocable
Total
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations (External)
19.81
7,218.78
35.95
7,274.54
522.41 5,600.75
48.34
- 6,171.50
Revenue from Operations (Internal)
Less: Inter Segment revenue
Total
19.81
7,218.78
35.95
7,274.54
522.41 5,600.75
48.34
- 6,171.50
Segment Results - Profit/ (Loss)
(14.26)
(1,429.20)
(19.01)
(1,462.47) (186.42) (954.82)
(48.18)
- (1,189.42)
Unallocated Corporate Income
64.46
64.46
190.91
190.91
Unallocated Corporate Expenses
272.93
272.93
65.17
65.17
Finance Cost
1,315.05
1,315.05
1,186.17 1,186.17
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax
(2,985.99)
(2,249.85)
Less: Exceptional Items
Profi/ (Loss) before tax
(2,985.99)
(2,249.85)
Other Information
Segment Assets
1.22
6,285.41
13.17
6,299.80
35.49 8,284.28
17.62
8,337.39
Unallocated Corporate Assets
12,993.32
12,993.32
12,212.16 12,212.16
Total Assets
19,293.12
20,549.55
Segment Liabilities
50.05
1,259.19
40.37
1,349.61
48.98
915.28
28.62
992.88
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities
13,256.95
13,256.95
14,174.19 14,174.19
Total Liabilities
14,606.56
15,167.07
Capital Expenditure (Including Fixed Assets written off)
4.26
4.26
24.67
24.67
Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment Expenses
0.45
9.26
0.14
0.73
10.58
1.76
6.33
0.12
2.98
11.19
Non-cash expenditure other than Depreciation and Amortisation
Segment Non-Cash Expenditure
6,244.35
2.07
6,246.42
53.77 4,365.30
(2.35)
4,416.72
Unallocable Non-Cash Expenditure
0.46
0.46
60.21
60.21

Segment Reporting

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
36.

Related Party Transactions
(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
(i)
Ultimate Holding Company:
The Walt Disney Company^
(ii) Intermediate Holding Company:
Disney Enterprises, Inc.^
(iii) Immediate Holding Company:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited (TWDC)^
(iv) Subsidiaries of the Company:
UTV Communications (USA) LLC
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited
Indiagames Limited
Ignition Entertainment Limited, UK
Ignition London Limited
Ignition Entertainment Limited, USA
UTV Games Limited
True Games Interactive, Inc.
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)
Genx Entertainment Limited
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV Entertainment Television Limited)
UTV New Media Limited (merged with the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2014)
(v) Fellow Subsidiary Companies^:
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Disney Worldwide Services
The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
Buena Vista International Inc.
Walt Disney Pictures and Television
Walt Disney Entertainment - Walt Disney World Resort
(vi) Key Management Personnel:
Executive Director
Siddharth Roy Kapur (upto September 5, 2014)
Whole-time Director
Nimish Shah (w.e.f. September 5, 2014)
^ All the Global and other entities under the common control of The Walt Disney Company which do not have any
transactions with the Company during the year are not disclosed here.
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(b)
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Transactions during the year with and outstanding balances of related parties referred to in item (a) (i) to (vi)
above: (Contd.):
Holding Company/
Subsidiary Companies/
Intermediate Holding Company/ Fellow Subsidiary Companies/
Immediate Holding Company
Common Control Entities
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Sales and Services
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC
235.68
216.77
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited
216.02
161.54
- Genx Entertainment Limited
0.15
2.35
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
120.65
92.44
- UTV New Media Limited
0.15
- Indiagames Limited
16.72
13.86
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited
1.36
6.42
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
14.90
58.79
- Buena Vista International Inc.
27.41
Purchases
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
15.54
28.09
- Genx Entertainment Limited
13.45
12.46
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited
3.44
- Buena Vista International Inc.
117.79
150.18
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
5.49
15.51
Investment Activities
- Equity Shares in Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
1,480.00
2,024.91
- Refund of Share Application Money by IG Interactive Limited
27.17
Issue of Equity/Preference Shares (including Share
Premium)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited
2,499.00
1,750.00
Interest Income from
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
13.67
36.17
- Genx Entertainment Limited
26.31
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
41.12
40.67
Interest Expense
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited
22.04
33.53
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
13.84
Expenses Paid on behalf of
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC
6.78
7.92
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited
8.85
15.10
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
0.67
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
0.01
- The Walt Disney Company
2.16
- The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
0.18
0.53
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
116.77
Expenses Reimbursed to
- Walt Disney Entertainment - Walt Disney World Resort
0.76
- Buena Vista International Inc.
42.78
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television
1.51
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
0.14
(TWDC)
- The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
0.62
-
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(b)

Transactions during the year with and outstanding balances of related parties referred to in item (a) (i) to (vi)
above: (Contd.):
Holding Company/
Subsidiary Companies/
Intermediate Holding Company/ Fellow Subsidiary Companies/
Immediate Holding Company
Common Control Entities
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Central Support Fees paid to
- The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited

42.86
0.86
145.30

86.76
7.00
122.90

Central Support Fees recovered from
- Genx Entertainment Limited
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
- UTV New Media Limited
- Indiagames Limited
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited

4.30
4.70
4.30
1.70
6.90

17.30
19.70
0.30
5.90
25.60

Investments/Advances Provided for/(Reversed)
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC
- UTV TV Content Limited

(189.20)
-

65.08
(23.34)

Loans/Advances Given to
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited

29.90

-

Loans/Advances Repaid by
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
- Genx Entertainment Limited

173.30
344.00
-

92.96
725.80

Loans/Advances Received from
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited

500.00

-

Loans/Advances Repaid to
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited

450.00

-

20.48

-

20.48

-

561.16
0.13
1.35
121.09
0.88

169.62
456.47
1.19
76.03
-

263.93
0.58
1.57

123.66
-

Bank Guarantee Issued on behalf of
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Accrual for Equity share based compensation
(Refer Note 27(d))
- The Walt Disney Company

7.84

19.83

Outstanding Bank Guarantee Issued on behalf of
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Outstanding Corporate Guarantee taken from
- Disney Enterprises, Inc.
Outstanding Balance
- Net Payable to
- The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited
- Disney Worldwide Services
- The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
- The Walt Disney Company
- Buena Vista International Inc.
- Walt Disney Entertainment - Walt Disney World Resort
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television

16,850.00

2.29

14,800.00

-
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(b)

Transactions during the year with and outstanding balances of related parties referred to in item (a) (i) to (vi)
above: (Contd.):
Holding Company/
Subsidiary Companies/
Intermediate Holding Company/ Fellow Subsidiary Companies/
Immediate Holding Company
Common Control Entities
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Accrual for Equity share based compensation
- The Walt Disney Company
- Net Receivable from
(excluding Share Application Money)
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC (Net of Provision)
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited (Net of Provision)
- Indiagames Limited
- Genx Entertainment Limited
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
- The Walt Disney Company
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
- UTV New Media Limited
For Investments made in subsidiaries, refer Note 13.

13.88

-

19.83

51.47
219.61
9.73
2.51
-

605.32
127.58
8.24
17.09
393.85

485.60
-

462.39
2.62

2.11

Disclosure in respect of transactions with persons referred to in item (a) (vi) above:
Year ended
March 31, 2014

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Remuneration
- Siddharth Roy Kapur

-

Year ended
March 31, 2014

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Loans/ Advances Given to/ (Repaid by):
- Siddharth Roy Kapur
37.

60

61.47

-

(12.90)

Leases
Operating Lease [Refer Note 2(p)]:
The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are mainly in respect of office premises which are cancellable
in nature. The aggregate lease rentals payable on these leasing arrangements are charged as rent under “Other
Expenses” in Note 30. These leasing arrangements are for a period not exceeding 3 years and are in most cases
renewable by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms. Future lease rentals payable are as follows:
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
With respect to all operating leases:
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
10.39
51.38
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38.

The disclosures pursuant under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) are
as follows:
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
i)
the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal
- Interest due thereon
0.13
0.13
ii)
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year;
- Principal
0.05
4.80
- Interest
iii)
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
iv)
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year;
- Total interest Accrued during the year
0.02
0.02
- Interest remaining unpaid
0.02
0.02
v)
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
0.02

39.

Scheme of Amlagamation
a)
Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation between the Company and its subsidiary, UTV New Media Limited
(‘UNML’) sanctioned by the order of the Hon’ble Bombay High Court dated July 3, 2015 (the ‘Scheme’); all
assets, liabilities and reserves of these subsidiaries were transferred and vested in the Company with effect
from the appointed date of April 1, 2014. The Scheme has accordingly been given effect to in these financial
statements.
UNML was in the business of digital media.
The amalgamation has been accounted for under the ‘Pooling of Interests’ method as prescribed by Accounting
Standard 14 on ‘Accounting for Amalgamations’. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and reserves of this subsidiary
as at April 1, 2014 has been taken over at their book values. The Company’s investment in the equity share
capital of this subsidiary stand cancelled. There were no differences in Accounting Policies of the Company and
its above mentioned subsidiary. Pursuant to the Scheme, the difference being the excess of assets, liabilities
and reserves of a subsidiary over investment in a subsidiary is credited to Capital Reserve as follows:
Assets, Liabilities and Reserves of Subsidiary Companies
Less:
Investment as on April 1, 2014 by the Company
Amount transferred to Capital Reserve

UNML
45.00
45.00
-
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b)

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation between the Company and its subsidiaries namely First Future Agri &
Developers Limited (‘FADL’), UTV TV Content Limited (‘UTCL’), RB Entertainment Limited (‘RBEL’), UTV Tele Talkies
Limited (‘UTTL’), Vikatan UTV Content Limited (‘VUCL’) and Screenshot Television Limited (‘SSTL’) sanctioned by
the order of the Hon’ble Bombay High Court dated April 11, 2014 (the ‘Scheme’); all assets, liabilities and
reserves of these subsidiaries were transferred and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date
of April 1, 2013. The Scheme had accordingly been given effect to in the financial statements.
RBEL, UTTL, VUCL and SSTL were in the business of production and development of TV content. FADL and UTCL
were non-operating companies.
The amalgamation had been accounted for under the ‘Pooling of Interests’ method as prescribed by Accounting
Standard 14 on ‘Accounting for Amalgamations’. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and reserves of these
subsidiaries as at April 1, 2013 have been taken over at their book values. The Company’s investment in the
equity share capital of these subsidiaries stand cancelled. There were no differences in Accounting Policies of
the Company and its above mentioned subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Scheme, the difference being the excess of
assets, liabilities and reserves of a subsidiary over investment in a subsidiary was credited to Capital Reserve
as follows:
Assets, Liabilities and Reserves of Subsidiary
Companies (net)
Less:
Investment as on April 1, 2013 by the Company
Investment as on April 1, 2013 by UTCL
Share purchased from minority shareholders by
UTCL during FY 2013-14
Amount transferred to Capital Reserve

FADL
320.00

UTCL
0.50

RBEL
0.50

UTTL
0.50

VUCL
0.50

SSTL
0.50

320.00
-

0.50
-

0.30
0.02

0.26
0.02

0.26
0.02

0.25
-

-

-

0.18

0.22

0.22

0.25

40.

The Company has subsidiaries incorporated outside India. In accordance with fourth proviso to Rule 6 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Section 129 of the Act, the Company has availed exemption from preparing consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015.

41.

The previous year’s figures have been reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to confirm to current year’s
classification.

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161

Nimish Shah
Whole-time Director
DIN: 05250183

Vishwas Joshi
CFO

Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Eighth Annual Report on the operations of your Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2015.
UTV Software Communications Limited (“USCL”) holds 89.61% of the total paid-up capital of your Company and balance
10.39% is held by The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited [“TWDC (SEA)”]. TWDC (SEA) also holds 99.70% of
the total paid-up capital of USCL.
1.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Amount in ` millions)
Particulars

STANDALONE
2014-2015
2013-2014

CONSOLIDATED
2014-2015

15.80
38.59

4.30
46.26

4,461.54
43.52

12.93
13.68
0.31
17.18
44.10
10.29
10.29

12.87
22.77
36.17
3.70
45.05
120.56
(70.00)
12.61
(82.61)

3,504.32
358.35
227.10
7.19
610.81
4,707.77
(202.71)
(202.71)

10.29

(82.61)

41.45
118.64
(41.45)
(321.35)

Income
Revenue from operations (net)
Other income
Expenditure
Direct cost
Employee Benefit expenses
Finance Costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses
Total Expenditure
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional Item
Less: Exceptional Item
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Less: Provision for taxation
Current Tax
Reversal of Minimum Alternate Tax Credit
MAT Credit Entitlement
Profit/(Loss) for the year

There are no material changes and commitments which have occurred between the end of the financial year ended on
March 31, 2015 to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report, which may affect the financial
position of the Company.
Further, there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its operations in future.
Further, the Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the Company’s
existence is very minimal.
2.	BUSINESS OVERVIEW:
During the year under review, your Company discontinued the business of aggregating and distributing channels in
USA & Middle East. It now distributes UTV Movies, Bindass and Bindass Play (“Channels”) in APAC (viz. Nepal and
Australia). These channels target specific audiences. UTV Movies is India’s New Age Hindi Movie channel offering
both the viewers and advertiser a highly engaged audience. Bindass Play is a music channel which offers interactive
experience to its audience with shows like “Tweet Meri Beat”, “Tia’s Request Show”, “Selfie Waala Show”. Bindass, the
youth entertainment channel caters to Adults 15-24 years through various innovative show concepts and brand led
activations.
3.

DIVIDEND & AMOUNT CARRIED TO RESERVES:
In order to conserve the resources to augment future growth, your directors do not recommend any dividend for the
financial year 2014-15.
There is no amount proposed to be transferred to the general reserve.
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4.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
As at 31st March, 2015, your Company has the following two wholly owned subsidiaries viz. Genx Entertainment Limited
(Genx) and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (DBIL) (formerly known as UTV Entertainment Television Limited). Genx
and DBIL are engaged in the business of uplinking and broadcasting of entertainment (non-news / current affairs)
channels from India. The channels ‘Bindass’ and ‘UTV Action’ are housed under Genx and channels ‘UTV Movies’, UTV
Stars, UTV World Movies, and Disney Junior are housed under DBIL.
The consolidated accounts of your Company are presented as a part of this Annual Report in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and a statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013
containing the salient features of the financial statements of its subsidiaries are annexed to this Annual Report.
The audited accounts of DBIL and Genx are kept for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and copies will
be made available to the members on request.

5.

DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
During the year under review, Ms. Shalini Sethi resigned from directorship of the Company with effect from March 17,
2015 and Ms. Jyotika Ahuja was appointed in her place as an Additional Director of the Company.
The Board places on record its appreciation for the services rendered by Ms. Shalini Sethi during her tenure with the
Company.
The Board seeks the support of the shareholders in confirming and regularizing the appointment of Ms. Jyotika Ahuja
as Director in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Mr. Manas Mati retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. The Board
recommends his re-appointment.
Number of board meetings conducted during the year under review
During the financial year 2014-15, twelve board meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed
one hundred and twenty days.

6.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: (“CSR”)
The Report on Company’s CSR activities of the Company is furnished in Annexure A and attached to this report.

7.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual at workplace.
The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment.
The Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace which aims to provide protection against
sexual harassment at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) was set up from the senior
management with women employees constituting majority. The ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to
sexual harassment.
During the year ended March 31, 2015 no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

8.

ISSUE OF ADDITIONAL SHARES:
Pursuant to the approval granted by the members at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
September 23, 2014, the Company has, on September 24, 2014 allotted 243,421 Equity Shares of a face value of
` 10/- each at a premium of ` 6,070/- per share to UTV Software Communications Limited on a preferential basis.

9.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
Your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposits in respect of the year under review.

10.

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors
M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP, Chartered Accountants, the present statutory auditors of the Company
holds office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP,
have under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 furnished the certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.
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Your directors recommend their re-appointment from the conclusion of this annual general meeting till the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting.
11.

AUDITORS REPORT:
Statutory Auditor
The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification.

12.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange Earnings and outgo as
required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is furnished in Annexure B and is attached to this report.

13.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
There are no employees whose particulars are required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

14.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:
The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part
of the notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

15.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure C to this report.

16.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure D and is attached to this Report.

17.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby states:

18.

(a)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b)

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c)

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e)

the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your Directors would take this opportunity to thank all the stakeholders for their support and co-operation rendered to
the Company during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823
Date: July 27, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE ‘A’
The Annual Report on CSR Activities to be included in the Board's Report
1.

A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
As a responsible Corporate, your Company has constantly endeavored to contribute to the development and upliftment
of the social strata.
Your Company is a part of The Walt Disney Group and conducts various social activities that contribute to the wellness
of the society and the nature such as ensuring environmental sustainability by conserving green spaces, promoting
education through joyful learning and supporting health care by creating brighter spaces of care giving thereby ensuring
faster recoveries, fulfilling wishes of kids suffering from life threatening medical conditions thereby providing hope,
strength and joy to the kids and their families. The employees of the Company are encouraged to participate in CSR
activities undertaken by the Company.
CSR Projects implemented at the local/national level:
Disney Hospitals Support Program
Disney Friends For Change
Disney Wishes
Design For Change
The CSR activities are carried out directly by the Company or in association with a strategic partner.

2.

The Composition of the CSR Committee.
As on March 31, 2015, the CSR Committee is comprised of Mr. Anuraag Shroff (Chairman) and Mr. Manas Mati and Ms.
Jyotika Ahuja as members.

3.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
The Average net profit of the Company in the last three financial years is a loss

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above)
Since the Company has no average net profits during the last three financial years, the requirement as to the minimum
spend of two percent as mandated by Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

5.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a)

Total amount to be spent for the financial year: N.A.

(b)

Amount unspent, if any: N.A.

(c)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823
Chairman of CSR Committee

Manas Ranjan Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830

Date: July 27, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE ‘B’
PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO COMPANIES RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014
A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
•

		

•
B.

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy:
The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, the company has taken adequate measures
to reduce the energy consumption by using energy efficient hardware and other equipment. Air conditioners are
used only when required. Further the company has spread awareness among the employees on the need to
conserve energy which is well adopted by the employees.
The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
•

The efforts made towards technology absorption and the benefits derived:

		

The Company keeps innovating, takes all measures necessary to absorb and adapt latest technology which has
reaped the following benefits:

		

-

In-house hosting of application leading to cost efficiency

		

-

Data security and integrity has been substantially enhanced

		

-

Effective turnaround to meet business requirements

•

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

C.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO (on Standalone basis): ` 0.11 million (Previous year ` 8.09 million)

D.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING (on Standalone basis): ` 5.03 million (Previous year ` 4.30 million)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823
Date: July 27, 2015
Place: Mumbai

68

Manas Ranjan Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Annexure ‘C’
FORM NO. AOC.2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2015, which
were not at arm’s length basis.

2.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March,
2015, at arm’s length basis.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823

Manas Ranjan Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830

Date: July 27, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE - ‘D’
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

Sr.
No.
i.
CIN
ii. Registration Date
iii. Name of the Company
iv.
v.

vi.
vii.

II.

U32300MH2007PLC171337
6-Jun-2007
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (formerly known as
UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)
Category / Sub-Category of the Company
Indian Non-Government Company Limited by Shares
Address of the Registered office and contact details
1st Floor, Building No. 14,
Solitaire Corporate Park,
Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (East),
Mumbai – 400 093
Tel No.: 022 6109 1000
Fax No.: 022 67421930
Whether listed company
No
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Transfer Agent, if any
Karvy Selenium Tower B,
Plot No 31 & 32 Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad – 500 032
P : +91 040 67161513, 040-67161510, 040-67161512

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:SI.
No.
1
III.

Name and Description of main products/services
Broadcasting services

4

% to total turnover
of the company
100

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. Name and Address of the
NO Company
1
2
3

NIC Code of the
Product/service
99846310

The Walt Disney Company
Disney Enterprises, Inc.
*The Walt Disney Company
(Southeast Asia) Pte. Ltd.
UTV Software
Communications Limited

CIN/GLN
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
Applicable
shares
Section
held
Ultimate Holding Company
100
Section 2(46)
Intermediate Holding Company 100
Section 2(46)
Intermediate Holding Company 10.39 Section 2(46)

U72200MH1990PLC056987 Immediate Holding Company

89.61

Section 2(46)

* The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited directly owns 10.39 % of the paid up capital of the Company.
However, along with its subsidiary, UTV Software Communications Limited, it holds 100% of the paid up capital of the Company.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Shareholders

A.
1
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
2
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

B.
1
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
2
a.
i.
ii.
b.
i.

ii.

c.

C.

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year
Demat
Physical
Total
% of
Total
Shares

Promoters
INDIAN
Individual/ HUF
Central Govt.
State Govt(s).
Bodies Corporate
2344131
Banks/ FI
Any Other
Sub-total (A) (1):2344131
FOREIGN
NRIs–Individuals
Other-Individuals
Bodies Corporate
300000
Banks/ FI
Any other
Sub-total (A) (2):300000
Total shareholding of
2644131
Promoter A= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
Public Shareholding
Institutions
Mutual Funds
Banks / FI
Central Govt.
State Govt(s).
Venture Capital Funds
Insurance Companies
FIIs
Foreign Venture Capital Funds
Others (specify)
Sub-total (B) (1):0
Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate
Indian
Overseas
Individuals
Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share capital
up to ` 1 lakh
Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of ` 1 lakh
Others
Sub-total (B) (2):0
Total Public Shareholding
0
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)
Shares held by Custodian for
0
GDR’s & ADR’s
Grand Total (A+B+C)
2644131

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during
the year

105 2344236
105 2344236

88.655 2344131
88.655 2344131

243526 2587657
243526 2587657

89.611
89.611

- 300000
0 300000
105 2644236

11.345
300000
11.345
300000
100 2644131

- 300000
0 300000
243526 2887657

10.389
10.389
100

0.956
0.956
-0.956
-0.956
1.913

0
-

0
-

0
-

0
-

0
-

0
-

0
-

0
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

243526 2887657

100

1.913

105 2644236

100 2644131
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ii. Promoter’s Shareholding (Equity)
Sr. Shareholder’s
No. Name

1
2

UTV Software
Communications
Limited
The Walt Disney
Company
(Southeast Asia)
Pte. Limited

Shareholding at the beginning of the
Shareholding at the end of the year
year
No. of
% of total
% of Shares
No. of
% of total
%of Shares % change in
Shares
Shares of
Pledged/
Shares
Shares of
Pledged/
shareholding
the company encumbered
the company encumbered during the
to total
to total
year
shares
shares
2344236
88.655
2587657
89.611
0.956
300000

11.345

-

300000

10.389

-

-0.956

iii. Change in Promoters Shareholding (Equity)
Shareholding

Sr. Name
No.

1

UTV Software
Communications
Limited

2

The Walt Disney
Company
(Southeast Asia)
Pte. Limited

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year

At the % of total At the % of total Date of
Increase/
beginning shares
end of
shares increase/ Decrease in
of the
of the
the year
of the
decrease shareholding
year
Company
Company
2344236
88.65 2587657
89.61 24-Sep-14
243421.00

300000

11.35

300000

10.39

N.A.

Reason

Allotment of 243,421
Equity Shares of ` 10/each at a premium of
` 6,070/- per share
to UTV Software
Communications
Limited on preferential
basis
Nil
N.A.

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the
Company
2587657
89.61

300000

10.39

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding

Sr. Name
No.

At the % of total At the % of total Date of
Increase /
beginning shares
end of
shares increase/ Decrease in
of the
of the
the year
of the
decrease shareholding
year
Company
Company

Reason

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year
No. of % of total
Shares
shares
of the
Company

Reason

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year
No. of % of total
Shares
shares
of the
Company

Not Applicable
v. Shareholding Pattern Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding

Sr. Name
No.

At the % of total At the % of total Date of
Increase /
beginning shares
end of
shares increase/ Decrease in
of the
of the
the year
of the
decrease shareholding
year
Company
Company

Not Applicable

72

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Amount in `

Sr.
No.
i.
ii.
iii.

i.
ii.
iii.

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

0
0
0
0

344,000,000
57,020,000
0
401,020,000

0
0
0
0

344000000
57020000
0
401020000

0
0
0
401,020,000
0 (401,020,000)

0
0
0

0
401020000
-401020000

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
•
Addition
•
Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

0
0
0
0

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Gross salary
(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

2
3
4

5

Total Amount

ble

1

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager
N.A.

applica

Particulars of Remuneration

not

SI.
no.
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
B. Remuneration to Other Directors:
Name of Directors
Anuraag
Shroff

1
a.
b.
c.
2
a.
b.
c.

Manas Mati

Independent Directors
Fee for attending board/committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1)
Other Non – Executive Directors
Fee for attending board/committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (2)

Total
Amount

Jyotika
Shalini
Ahuja
Sethi
(appointed
(resigned
w.e.f. March w.e.f. March
17, 2015)
17, 2015)

nil

SI. Particulars of Remuneration
No.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

2
3
4

5

74

CFO
N.A.

ble

Gross salary
(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c)	Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Company
Secretary
N.A.

applica

1

Key Managerial Personnel

not

SI. Particulars of Remuneration
no.

Total Amount
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Section of the
Companies Act

Brief
Description

Authority [RD/
NCLT / COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give
Details)

not

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

applica

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Details of
Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

ble

Type

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823

Manas Ranjan Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830

Date: July 27, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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Genx Entertainment
Limited
Disney Broadcasting
(India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV
Entertainment Television
Limited)

Name of Subsidiary

Amount in ` millions

31-Mar-15

99.82

356.68 4292.88

4292.88

Date: July 27, 2015
Place: Mumbai

Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

INR

-455.91

Manas Ranjan Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830

0 3196.67

0

-574.55

Nil

100

Reporting Reporting Share Reserves
Total
Total Investments Turnover
Profit Provision
Profit Proposed
% of
Period Currency Capital
& Assets Liabilities
before
for
after Dividend Shareholding
ended
&
Surplus
taxation taxation taxation
Exchange
Rate
31-Mar-15
INR 109.69
487.15 1213.61 1213.61
0 1781.53 242.93
0 242.93
Nil
100

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form AOC-I

Annexure

Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
(“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”), and its jointly controlled entity, (refer Note 1 to the attached consolidated financial
statements), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the
Consolidated Financial Statements”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
2.
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including jointly
controlled entity in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Holding Company’s
Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary
for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its jointly controlled entity are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its jointly controlled entity respectively and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
Auditors’ Responsibility
3.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.
4.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act
and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
5.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.
6.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, other than the financial information as certified by the management
and referred to in sub-paragraph 9 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Opinion
7.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
and its jointly controlled entity, as at March 31, 2015, and their consolidated loss and their consolidated cash flows for
the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter
8.
We draw your attention to Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements regarding applications made by the
Company’s subsidiaries to seek approval from Ministry of Information and Broadcasting for appointment of independent
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directors and CFO. Accordingly, these appointments as required by Companies Act, 2013 have not been made by the
Company’s subsidiaries. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Other Matters
9.
We did not audit the financial information of 1 jointly controlled entity whose financial information reflect, total revenue
of ` 369 million and net profit of ` Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. This financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management, and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of this jointly controlled entity and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it
relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entity, is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, this financial information is not
material to the Group.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the financial information certified
by the Management.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding
company, subsidiary companies, and jointly controlled entity incorporated in India, (refer Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements), we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.
11. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries
included in the Group, and jointly controlled entity incorporated in India, including relevant records relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and records of the Holding Company.
(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained by
the Holding Company, its subsidiaries included in the Group, and jointly controlled entity incorporated in India
including relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2015
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
(f)
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:
		
i.
The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2015
on the consolidated financial position of the Group, refer Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
		
ii.
The Group had long term contracts as at March 31, 2015 for which there are no material foreseeable
losses. The Group did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2015.
		
iii.
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entity incorporated in
India during the year ended March 31, 2015.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration Number: 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants
Place: Mumbai
July 27, 2015
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited (formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited) on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2015
i.

ii.

(a)

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, are maintaining proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b)

The fixed assets of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India have been physically verified
by the Management of the respective companies during the year. The discrepancies noticed on such verification
were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

(a)

The Holding Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold an inventory.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3 (ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Holding Company.

		

The inventory has been physically verified (Programming and Film Rights verified with reference to title documents/
agreements) by the respective Managements of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b)

In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the respective Managements of the
Company’s subsidiaries, are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the aforesaid subsidiaries, and
the nature of their respective businesses.

(c)

On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company’s subsidiaries, are
maintaining proper records of inventory. No discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records.

iii.

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, have not granted any loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)(b) of the said Order are not applicable to the aforesaid Holding Company and
its subsidiaries.

iv.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, and the nature
of their respective businesses for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of services. Further, on the
basis of our examination of the books and records of the aforesaid Holding Company and its subsidiaries, as furnished
to us, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been
informed of, any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

v.

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, have not accepted any deposits from the public within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act for any of the services of the Holding Company.
We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in India in
respect of services where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost
records has been specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and based on such review, are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made
a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.

(a)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India examined by us, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in India examined by us, there are no dues of sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs
and value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of income
tax as at March 31, 2015 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the
Company

Relationship Name of
Nature of
the statute dues

Genx
Entertainment
Limited
Disney
Broadcasting
(India) Limited

Subsidiary

c)

Subsidiary

Income Tax Income Tax
Act, 1961 (Withholding
taxes)
Income Tax Income Tax
Act, 1961

Amount Period to which
(` in Million) the amount
relates
7.90 Assessment Year
2008-09

Forum where the
dispute is pending
Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

19.27 Assessment Year
2011-12

Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

There are no amounts required to be transferred by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and the rules made thereunder.

viii.

The accumulated losses of the Holding Company, did not exceed fifty percent of its net worth as at March 31, 2015.
The accumulated losses of the Holding Company’s subsidiaries exceeded fifty percent of its net worth as at March 31,
2015. The aforesaid Holding Company and one of its subsidiary has incurred cash losses in the financial year ended on
that date and in the immediately preceding financial year. The other subsidiary has not incurred any cash losses in the
financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

ix.

The Holding Company and one of its subsidiaries incorporated in India, do not have any borrowings from any financial
institutions or banks nor have they issued any debentures as at the Balance Sheet date. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the aforesaid Holding Company and one of its subsidiaries.
According to the records of one of the Company’s subsidiary, examined by us and the information and explanation given
to us the aforesaid subsidiary, has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or debenture
holders as at the balance sheet date.

x.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries
incorporated in India, have not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable to the aforesaid Holding Company and
its subsidiaries.

xi.

The Holding Company and one of its subsidiaries incorporated in India have not raised any term loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the aforesaid Holding Company and the above mentioned
subsidiary.
In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans obtained by one of the
Holding Company’s subsidiary have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

xii.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Holding Company,
and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the respective Managements of the aforesaid Holding Company and its subsidiaries.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration Number: 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
July 27, 2015
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consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Note

As at
March 31, 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

3
4

28.87
1,334.51
1,363.37

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term Borrowings
Long-term Provisions

5
6

980.00
33.18
1,013.18

Current Liabilities
Short-term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short-term Provisions

7
8
9
10

395.04
1,962.43
630.69
3.09
2,991.25
5,367.81

Total
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Intangible Assets
Capital work-in-progress

11

Long-term Loans and Advances

12

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Cash and Bank balances
Short-term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

13
14
15
16
17

12.48
138.95
9.60
161.03
519.36

2,451.09
1,672.34
161.55
395.43
7.01
4,687.42
5,367.81

Total
The notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Manas Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830
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Note

Year ended
March 31, 2015

REVENUE
Revenue from Operations (Net)
Other Income
Total Revenue

19
20

4,461.54
43.52
4,505.06

EXPENSES
Direct Cost
Employee Benefit Expenses
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

21
22
23
24
25

3,504.32
358.35
227.10
7.19
610.81
4,707.77

Loss before Exceptional Item and tax
Exceptional Item

(202.71)
-

32

Loss before tax
Tax Expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Reversal of Minimum Alternate Tax Credit
MAT Credit Entitlement
Loss for the year
Loss per equity share: [Nominal Value per
share: ` 10
Basic / Diluted (in `)
The notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.

(202.71)
41.45
118.64
(41.45)
(321.35)
27
(116.00)

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

82

For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Manas Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

A.

B.

C.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Amortisation of programmes and films
Loss on Disposal of Investment in Joint Venture
Loss on Disposal of Tangible and Intangible Assets
Sundry Creditors Written Back
Interest Income
Interest Expenses
Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Provision for Contingencies for Direct tax
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Compensated Absences
Provision no longer required written back
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in liabilities and Provisions
(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from / (used in) Operating Activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible/intangible assets
Interest received
Sale of tangible/ intangible assets
Sales of Investments made in Joint Venture
Net cash from Investing Activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Borrowing / (Repayment of borrowings)
Interest paid
Net cash from / (used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended
March 31, 2015
(202.70)
7.19
1,311.19
0.51
25.88
(0.29)
(9.54)
227.10
37.14
0.47
2.32
5.89
(14.20)
(31.90)
1,359.07
1,126.95
80.06
(48.83)
8.28
(1,050.06)
(1,592.22)
(116.76)
(86.37)
(203.13)
(48.31)
9.54
25.88
(0.12)
(13.01)
1,480.00
(1,115.13)
(263.95)
100.93
(115.21)
246.76
131.55

As at March 31, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on hand
0.08
Balances with Banks
131.47
Total
131.55
Notes:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method set out in Accounting Standard- 3 on Cash
Flow Statements.
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Anuraag Shroff
Director
DIN: 06386823

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Manas Mati
Director
DIN: 06483830
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1

General Information
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (Formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited) ("DEIL/the Company") was
incorporated in India as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956 on June 6, 2007. The name of the
Company was changed to Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (DEIL) from UTV Global Broadcasting Limited (UGBL)
on June 17, 2015. The Company became a subsidiary of UTV Software Communications Limited (“UTV”) with effect
from August 8, 2008. The Company provides International distribution services to television channels owned by group
companies. The Company has following subsidiaries (collectively referred as "the Group").				
A.

Subsidiaries
Name of the Subsidiary

Date of
Country of
Incorporation Incorporation
India

Percentage
stake of the
Company
100%

India

100%

Date of
Country of
Incorporation Incorporation

Percentage
stake of the
Company
26%

Genx Entertainment Limited

February 19,
2007
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (Formerly known as UTV
April 28,
Entertainment Television Limited)
2007

B.

Joint Venture
Name of the Subsidiary
IndiaCast UTV Media Distribution Private Limited

C.

2

India

Disclosures mandated by Schedule 3 of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information
Name of the Entities
Net Assets i.e. total assets
Share in profit / (loss)
minus total Liabilities
As a % of
Amount (` in
As a % of
Amount (` in
consolidated
millions)
consolidated
millions)
net assets
profit/(loss)
Parent:
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (Formerly
737.18%
10,050.55
3.20%
10.29
known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)
Subsidiary:
Genx Entertainment Limited
43.78%
596.84
75.60%
242.93
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (Formerly
33.48%
456.50
-178.80%
(574.55)
known as UTV Entertainment Television Limited)
Joint Venture:
IndiaCast UTV Media Distribution Private Limited
-

Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1

84

December 4,
2012

Basis of preparation

		

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles
in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014, till the Standard of Accounting or any addendum
thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial
Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue
to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with
the accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 [Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and the other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

		

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
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Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.
		

The Consolidated Financial statements relate to Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (Formerly known as UTV
Global Broadcasting Limited) and its Subsidiary Companies and have been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible
in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

		

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

		

i.

In respect of Subsidiary Companies, the financial statements have been consolidated on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like item of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses, after
fully eliminating intra-group balances and unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions as per
Accounting Standard - AS 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

		

ii.

The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in the Subsidiary Company over the Company’s share
of net assets of the subsidiary company is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill, which will be
tested for impairment at year end. The excess of Company’s share of net assets of the subsidiary company
over the cost of acquisition is treated as Capital Reserve.

		

iii.

The results of operations of a subsidiary are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date
on which the parent-subsidiary relationship comes into existence. The results of operation of a subsidiary
with which the parent-subsidiary relationship ceases to exist are included in the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss until the date of cessation of the relationship. The difference between the proceeds from the
disposal of investment in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as on the date of
disposal are recognised as profit or loss on disposal of investment in the subsidiary.

		

iv.

The Notes and Significant Accounting Policies to the Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to
serve as a guide for better understanding of the Group’s position. In this respect, the Group has disclosed
such notes and policies, which represent the requisite disclosure.

		

v.

In respect of Joint Ventures, the group’s interest in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
proportionate consolidation. The group combines its share of the joint venture’s individual income and
expenses on a line by line basis with similar items in the group’s financial statements.

2.2

Tangible Assets

		

Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried
at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		

Depreciation is provided on Straight line method over the estimated useful lives of tangible assets as prescribed
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. On additions, depreciation is provided for the full month
irrespective of the date of addition during the month. On assets discarded, demolished or destroyed during the
month, depreciation is calculated upto the month of such deletions. Useful life of Tangible assets is stated below:

		

Asset

		

Furniture and Fixtures

10

		

Plant and Machinery

15

		

Office Equipments

5

Useful Life (in years)

		Computers

3

		

6

2.3
		

Server & Networks
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. Useful life
of intangible asset is stated below:
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Useful Life (in years)

		Computer Software

3

		

EPG License

10

		

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.4
		

2.5

Impairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and
intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of
the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their
recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or
cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.
Inventories

		

Inventories comprise of commissioned programs, acquired/ licensed programs and films. The cost of inventories
comprises cost of purchase and other significant costs incurred in bringing the inventories to a state of being
telecast. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (cost less accumulated amortization/ impairment) and net
realisable value.

		

Company amortises the cost of commissioned programs on telecast based on management estimate of revenue
potential. The cost of acquired/ licensed programs and films is amortised over the license period from the date of
commencement of license period/ acquisition.

		

The Company evaluates the realisable value and/ or revenue potential of inventory on an annual basis, based on
market conditions and future demand and appropriate write down is made in cases where accelerated write down
is warranted.

2.6

Foreign Currency Translation

		

The transactions in foreign exchange are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the date of the Balance Sheet.

		

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.7

86

Asset

Revenue recognition

		

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

		

a)

Advertisement sales revenue (net of trade discount, as applicable) is recognised when the related
advertisement or commercial appears before the public i.e. on telecast.

		

b)

Subscription income for the distribution of the channels is recognised when the services are provided
in accordance with the terms of the agreement and for which there is reasonable certainty of ultimate
collections.

		

c)

Income from exploitation of interactive rights is recognised in accordance with the terms of the agreement
with the service providers and/or intermediary.

		

d)

Revenue from syndication of program is recognised on delivery of the program to the Licensee.
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2.8
		
2.9

Other Income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.
Employee Benefits

		

Defined Contribution Plan: The Group contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employees’ Provident
Fund, Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund and Employee State Insurance Commission towards post employment
benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government authorities, and has no further obligation
beyond making its contribution, which is expensed in the year to which it pertains.

		

Defined Benefit Plan: The Group has a Defined Benefit Plan namely Gratuity (the “Gratuity Plan”) for all its
employees. The Group provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment. The Group’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at
the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise.

		

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed within 12
months from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount
expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

		

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed beyond 12 months from the end of the
year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Group’s liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2.10 Current and Deferred Tax
		

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net
profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

		

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of
deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised. Deferred tax assets are not recognised in case there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward
of losses under tax laws, unless there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if
any.

		

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against
liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes
on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

		

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is
no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

2.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
		

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.
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Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

2.12 Use of Estimates
		

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in
which the results are known/materialize.

2.13 Leases
		

Lease rentals in respect of assets taken on Operating Lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
terms of the lease agreement.

2.14 Cash and Cash Equivalents
		

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks.

2.15 Earnings Per Share
		

88

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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3.

Share Capital
As at March 31,
2015
Authorised:
3,000,000 equity shares of ` 10 each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
2,887,657 equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid-up
Total

(a)

Reconciliation of Number of Shares
Equity Shares:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued to UTV Software Communications Limited,holding company
Balance as at the end of the year

(b)

(c)

4.

30.00
28.87
28.87

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015
Numbers
Amount
2,644,236
26.44
243,421
2.43
2,887,657
28.87

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
Details of shares held by the Holding Company and Intermediate holding company/ shareholders holding more
than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015
Numbers
Amount
Equity Shares:
UTV Software Communications Limited, the Holding Company and it’s nominees
2,587,657
25.87
(89.61%)
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the Intermediate
300,000
3.00
Holding company
(10.39%)
Reserves and Surplus

Securities Premium Account
Add: Amounts received pursuant to issue of 243,421 equity shares of ` 10 each
at a premium of ` 6,070 per share
[Also refer Note 3 (a)]
Balance as at the end of the year
Capital Reserve
Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Loss for the year
Balance as at the end of the year
Total

As at
March 31, 2015
8,385.99
1,477.57

9,863.56
7.20
(8,214.90)
(321.35)
(8,536.25)
1,334.51
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5.

Long-term Borrowings
As at
March 31, 2015
Unsecured:
Loan from Fellow Subsidiaries
980.00
Total
980.00
Nature of terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings
(a) Terms of Repayment:
	Loans from Fellow Subsidaries are repayable after 3 years from the original drawdown date. Interest rate on
borrowing from Fellow Subsidaries is 8.25% per annum.

6.

Long-term Provisions
As at
March 31, 2015
Provision for employee benefits: [Refer notes 22(b) and 22(c)]
- Provision for Gratuity
- Provision for Compensated Absences
Provision for Contingencies for Indirect tax
(Refer note (a) below)
Provision for Contingencies for Direct Tax
(Refer note (b) below)
Total
(a)

5.24
33.18

As at
March 31, 2015
9.00
9.00

Provision for Contingencies for Direct Tax :

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additional provisions made during the year
Amounts used
Unused amounts reversed during the year
Carrying amount at the end of the year

90

9.00

Provision for Contingencies for Indirect Tax :

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additional provisions made during the year
Amounts used
Unused amounts reversed during the year
Carrying amount at the end of the year
(b)

14.64
4.30

As at
March 31, 2015
2.91
2.32
5.24
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7.

Short-term Borrowings
As at
March 31, 2015
Unsecured:
Working Capital Demand Loan from Bank (Refer note 7(a))
350.00
Cash Credit facility from Banks
45.04
Total
395.04
(a) Nature of Guarantee:
	Working Capital Demand Loan from Bank aggregating ` 350 million has been guaranteed by Disney Enterprises,
Inc., USA.

8.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables
Total
9.

As at
March 31, 2015
1,962.43
1,962.43

Other Current Liabilities

Current maturity of long term debt
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Payable towards Fixed Assets
Income received in advance
Advance from customers
Payable to Group Companies
Employee Benefits payable
Statutory dues (including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source)
Other liabilities
Total

As at
March 31, 2015
417.26
29.26
0.15
10.89
71.39
8.05
9.20
79.64
4.85
630.69

10. Short-term Provisions
As at
March 31, 2015
Provision for employee benefits: (Refer notes 22(b) and 22(c))
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Compensated Absences
Total

1.91
1.18
3.09
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11.

Fixed Assets (Refer notes 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4)
Particulars
April 1,
2014
Tangible Assets (Own Assets)
Plant and Machinery
58.19
Freehold Land
0.43
Office Equipments
0.97
Computers and Servers
10.38
Total
69.97
Intangible Assets (Own Assets)
Computer Software
7.42
EPG License
11.04
Goodwill
131.57
Total
150.03
Capital work-in-progress
-

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

36.16
36.16
-

12.83
12.83
-

Gross Block
Additions
Disposals

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements

7.42
11.04
131.57
150.03
-

22.03
0.43
0.96
23.21
46.63

March 31,
2015

6.77
2.55
9.32
-

31.02
0.36
7.62
39.01

April 1,
2014

0.65
1.11
1.76
-

1.27
0.17
3.99
5.43
-

10.28
10.28

7.42
3.66
11.08
-

22.01
0.53
11.61
34.15

Depreciation/ Amortisation
For the
Disposals
March 31,
year
2015

0.00
7.38
131.57
138.95
9.60

0.02
0.43
0.43
11.60
12.48

Net Block
March 31,
2015

Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
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12.

Long-term Loans and Advances
As at
March 31, 2015
Unsecured and considered good (unless otherwise stated):
Security Deposits
Other Loans and Advances
- Advance Income Tax [Net of provision of ` 166.75]
MAT Credit Entitlement
Balance with Government authorities
Total

13.

438.06
48.11
15.70
519.36

Inventories

Unamortised cost of Programs and films
Total
14.

17.49

As at
March 31, 2015
2,451.09
2,451.09

Trade Receivables
As at
March 31, 2015
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Others
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Others
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Total

15.

10.67
1,661.68

112.87
8.58
1,793.79
121.45
1,672.34

Cash and Bank Balances
As at
March 31, 2015
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Bank balances:
- In current accounts
- Demand Deposits (less than 3 months maturity)
Other bank balances
Long term deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
Total

0.08
26.67
104.80
131.55
30.00
161.55
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16.

Short-term Loans and Advances
As at
March 31, 2015
Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated:
Security Deposits
Receivable from related parties
Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers
Balance with Government Authorities
Total

17.

11.54
10.48
35.41
60.50
277.50
395.43

Other Current Assets
As at
March 31, 2015
0.11
5.99
0.91
7.01

Interest Accrued on Deposits
Unbilled revenue
Receivable from related party
Total
18.

Contingent Liabilities (Refer Note 2.11)
As at
March 31, 2015
Legal matters:
i.
Claims against the
Company not
acknowledged as debts
Taxation matters:
i. Disputed income tax demands
(Withholding taxes)

Damages claimed against the Group.

15.47

Appeal before Income tax Appellate
7.90
Tribunal for the Assessment Years 200809 and 2009-10 for withholding taxes in
respect of band placement charges.
19.27
ii. Disputed income tax demands
Appeal before Commisioner (Appeals) of
(Withholding taxes)
Income tax for Assessment Year 201112 for certain disllowances made by
Assessing Officer
(a) 	It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective proceedings
(b) The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
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(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
19.

Revenue from Operations (Net)

Advertisement Sales
Subscription Income
Revenue from exploitation of interactive rights
Program Syndication
Total
20.

Other Income

Interest income
Liability written back to the extent no longer required
Provision for Doubtful Debts Written Back
Miscellaneous Income
Total
21.

Year ended
March 31, 2015
1,311.19
38.31
699.52
761.57
133.01
134.41
7.72
283.33
135.27
3,504.32

Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries, Allowances and Bonus
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds
Gratuity [Refer note (b) below]
Staff Welfare Expenses [Net of Recoveries of ` Nil (Previous Year ` 2.50 Million)]
Total
(a)

Year ended
March 31, 2015
9.54
25.33
6.57
2.08
43.52

Direct Cost

Amortisation of Programmes and films
Programming Costs
Distribution Costs
Distribution Fees
Other Direct Cost
License Fees
Distributor Commission
Transmission and Uplinking Costs
Agency Fees
Total
22.

Year ended
March 31, 2015
2,605.06
1,744.07
20.17
92.24
4,461.54

Year ended
March 31, 2015
329.09
15.08
5.89
8.29
358.35

Defined Contribution Plans
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Provident Fund
Contribution to Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund
Contribution to Employee State Insurance Commission
Total
* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the group.

March 31, 2015
15.08
-*
15.08
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(b)

Defined Benefit Plans
The Group provides long-term benefits in the nature of Gratuity to its employees.
(i) Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Benefits Paid
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss
Balance at the close of the year
(ii)

Gratuity
(Non Funded)
March 31, 2015
14.62
1.28
2.05
(3.96)
2.56
16.55

Fair Value of Plan Assets
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Benefits Paid
Contributions by employer
Balance at the close of the year

March 31, 2015
-

(iii) Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets
Amount recognised as liability *
* Recognised under
Long Term Provision (Refer Note 6)
Short Term Provision (Refer Note 10)
Total

March 31, 2015
16.55
16.55
14.64
1.91
16.55

(iv) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss
Total Expenses
(v)

March 31, 2015
2.05
1.28
2.56
5.89

Actuarial Assumptions
March 31, 2015
Per Annum
Discount Rate
7.90%
Salary Growth Rate
10% - 11%
Attrition Rate
19.00%
The discount rates reflects the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account, inflation, seniority,
promotions and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market.
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(vi) Amounts recognised in current year and previous four years
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
Defined Benefit Obligation
16.55
14.61
Plan Assets
(Surplus)/Deficit
16.55
14.61
Experience adjustment in plan liabilities
0.64
1.20
Experience adjustment in plan assets
(c)

23.

March 31, 2015
4.30
1.18
5.48

Certain employees of the Group have been granted Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and Restricted Stock Units
(RSUs) of The Walt Disney Company, USA, the ultimate holding company. During the year ended March 31, 2015,
the Group has received debit note / information on the basis of recharge towards ESOPs / RSUs granted by the
ultimate holding company to its employees. Consequently, the Group has debited ‘Salaries, Allowances and Other
Benefits’ for a sum aggregating ` 4.45 million towards liability to its ultimate holding company.
Finance Costs

Interest on long term borrowings
Interest on other borrowings
Total
24.

March 31,
2012
8.13
8.13
(3.08)
-

The liability for Compensated absencesLong Term Provision (Refer Note 6)
Short Term Provision (Refer Note 10)
Total

(d)

March 31,
2013
12.31
12.31
(0.51)
-

Year ended
March 31, 2015
68.35
158.75
227.10

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation on Tangible assets
Amortisation of Intangible assets
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2015
5.43
1.76
7.19

97

Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
25.

Other expenses

Rent
Rates and taxes
Electricity Charges
Insurance
Repairs - others
Printing and stationery
Postage and freight
Legal and professional fees
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees
- Reimbursement of Expenses
Travel, Conveyance and Accommodation
Marketing and Advertisement Costs
Central Support expenses
Sales Commission
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
Net Loss on Disposal of Tangible Assets
Bad debts written off
Provision for Contingencies for Direct tax
Provision for doubtful debts
Loss on Disposal of Investment in Joint Venture
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2015
12.35
37.04
1.51
10.89
19.96
0.45
11.35
52.70
4.40
0.08
29.77
251.10
74.80
18.55
5.44
25.88
0.48
2.32
37.14
0.51
14.09
610.81

26.

Segment Reporting
The Group is mainly engaged in “Broadcasting business” which is considered the only reportable business segment
as per Accounting Standard – AS 17 “Segment Reporting”. Geographical segment is considered based on sales within
India and outside India.
Secondary Segment: Geographical Segment
India
Outside India
Total
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015
External Revenue
4,280.49
181.05
4,461.54
Carrying amount of Segment Assets
5,303.93
63.87
5,367.81
Addition to Tangible Assets
12.82
12.82

27.

Loss Per Share
Year ended
March 31, 2015
Basic & Diluted
Loss after tax
Loss attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the year end (Nos.)
(for Basic/ Diluted EPS)
Loss per share (Basic/ Diluted) (`)
Nominal value of shares (`)
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28

Related Party Transactions
(a)

Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

(i)

Ultimate Holding Company:

		

The Walt Disney Company

		

* All the Global and other entities under the common control of The Walt Disney Company which do not have any
transactions with the Company during the year are not disclosed here.

(ii)
		
(iii)
		
(iv)

Intermediate Holding Company :
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited
Holding Company:
UTV Software Communications Limited
Subsidiaries of the Company:

		

Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (Formerly known as UTV Entertainment Television Limited)

		

Genx Entertainment Limited

(v)

Fellow Subsidiaries of the Company:

		

Indiagames Limited

		

UTV New Media Limited

		

The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited

		

UTV Communications (USA) LLC

		

Buena Vista International Inc.

		

The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Limited

		

Lucas Film Limited LLC

		

Walt Disney Pictures

		

United Home Entertainment Private Limited

(vi)
		

Joint Venture
Indiacast UTV Media Distribution Private Limited (w.e.f. April 1, 2013 upto June 6, 2014)

(vii) Key Management Personnel :
		

Managing Director : M. K. Anand (upto December 31, 2013)

		

Directors : Anuraag Shroff

				

Shikha Kapur (upto April 30, 2014)

				

Jyotika Ahuja (w.e.f. March 17, 2015)

				

Manas Mati (from April 30, 2014)
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(b)

Purchase of programs & movies
UTV Software Communications Limited
Buena Vista International, Inc
Lucas Film Limited LLC
Expenses incurred on behalf of group Co
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Reimbursement of Expenses from
UTV Software Communications Limited
The Walt Disney Company
Reimbursement of Expenses to
The Walt Disney Company
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Share of Common Expenses Recharged by
UTV Software Communications Limited
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Share of Common Expenses Recharged to
UTV Software Communications Limited
Unsecured Loan repaid to
UTV Software Communications Limited
Unsecured Loan taken from
Indiagames Limited
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Sale of Program & Services
Walt Disney Pictures
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Program Syndication
UTV Software Communications Limited
Advertisement Sales
UTV Software Communications Limited
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited

Transactions during the year

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

0.01
9.00
0.86

-

1.42
4.08
-

-

1.92
27.07
-

-

-

344.00

120.80
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Holding Company
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31,
March 31, 2014
2015

-

Ultimate Holding Company
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31,
March 31, 2014
2015
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1.98

0.45
1.41

230.00
750.00

-

85.30

5.64

-

199.10
115.54

26.30
0.71

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fellow Subsidiaries
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31,
March 31, 2014
2015

Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)

(b)

Distribution Cost
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Advertisement Cost
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Interest Charged by
UTV Software Communications Limited
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Indiagames Limited
Purchase of Fixed Assets
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Issue of Equity Shares
UTV Software Communications Limited
Accrual for Equity share based compensation
The Walt Disney Company
Outstanding Balances (Net)
Payable to
UTV Software Communications Limited
The Walt Disney Company
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Indiagames Limited
Buena Vista International Inc.
Lucas Films Limited LLC
Receivable from
The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific) Limited
UTV Communications (USA) LLC

Transactions during the year (continued)

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

54.79
1,480.00
-

487.23
-

-

-

0.37

18.39
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Holding Company
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31,
March 31, 2014
2015

-

Ultimate Holding Company
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31,
March 31, 2014
2015
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-

-

766.90
472.22
236.50
16.98
0.61
0.13
10.59

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

28.98

21.19
6.50

10.26
18.79

500.69
224.14

Fellow Subsidiaries
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31,
March 31, 2014
2015
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29.

Leases
As a lessee - Operating Lease
The Company has operating leases for premises. These lease arrangements range for a period between 11 months
and 7 years, which include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for further
period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses.
Year ended
March 31, 2015
With respect to all operating leases:
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
13.03
With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as
follows:
As At
March 31, 2015
Not Later than one year
10.58
Later than one year and not later than five year
17.63
Later than five year
-

30.

720,000 share warrants of ` 10 each fully paid have been issued by the Company to The Walt Disney Company
(Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s Board of Directors on February 16,
2008. The Company has terminated the shareholder agreement between the Company and the warrant holder pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Company’s Board of Directors and Company has transferred the amount of share warrants
to Capital Reserve.

31.

In the year 2012-13, the Company had invested ` 13 million in joint venture of Indiacast UTV Media Distribution Private
Limited for distribution of television channels. As a consequence of changes in TRAI regulation in February 2014,
management of the Company has decided to curtail operation of joint venture company and undertook review of its
investments. Accordingly the Company has recognized provision of ` 12.61 million for other than temporary diminution
in value of investments in the year 2013-14. In the current year, the Company has sold the investments.

32.

The Company has proposed the candidature of Mr. Prem Mehta and Mr. Narendra Ambwani to be appointed as independent
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries Genx Entertainment Limited and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited to Ministry
of Information and Broadcasting in terms of the policy guidelines for uplinking of television channels from India dated
December 5, 2011, which is subject to receipt of approval. The Company’s subsidiaries Genx Entertainment Limited and
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited will proceed with the appointment of Mr. Prem Mehta and Mr. Narendra Ambwani as
Independent Directors after receipt of approval from Ministry of Information and Broadcasting.
The Company has proposed the candidature of Mr. Nitin Dadoo to be appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company’s subsidiary Genx Entertainment Limited to Ministry of Information and Broadcasting in terms of the policy
guidelines for uplinking of television channels from India dated December 5, 2011, which is subject to receipt of
approval. The Company’s subsidiary Genx Entertainment Limited will proceed with the appointment of Mr. Nitin Dadoo
as Chief Financial Officer after receipt of approval from Ministry of Information and Broadcasting.

33.

Previous Year Figures
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared from current year as per the requirements of Companies Act,
2013 and hence, no comparatives figures are presented.

The notes are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Balance
Sheet and Profit & Loss Account on the operations of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.
UTV Software Communications Limited (“USCL”) holds 56% of the total paid-up capital of the Company and the balance is
held by The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited [“TWDC (SEA)”]. TWDC (SEA) also holds 99.70% of the total
paid-up capital of USCL.
1.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Amount in ` millions)
Particulars
Income
Expenditure
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Tax Expenses
Profit/(Loss) After Tax

2014-2015
1,853.59
1,617.77
235.82
66.38
220.39

2013-14
1,306.54
1,251.86
54.68
25.46
29.22

There are no material changes and commitments which have occurred between the end of the financial year ended on
March 31, 2015 to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report, which may affect the financial
position of the Company.
Further, there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its operations in future.
Further, the Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the Company’s
existence is very minimal.
2.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:
Your Company was incorporated on February 1, 2000 and is India’s benchmark mobile and DTH Games Company and
one of the leading global mobile game publishers. The Company is engaged in publishing and developing games across
various platforms. The Walt Disney Company, incorporated under the law of United States of America is an ultimate
holding company of your Company and it manages its interactive business in India through Indiagames Limited.
Your Company’s Interactive business is a hub for aggregation, creation and distribution of high-quality digital content
reaching out to millions of users in India. It is responsible for development and delivery of multiplatform games and
digital products including apps for multi-brands under The Walt Disney Company - Indiagames, UTV, Disney, Marvel,
and Disney Pixar and distributes the content via all mobile operators and various OEM app stores in India and also
internationally. The team has created innovative and popular products like ‘ICC Pro Cricket 2015, Cupcake Dreamland,
Cricket Card Battle, Arjun – Price of Bali, P.K., ABCD 2 and many others (with over 25 million downloads), Disney favorites
- Mickey Skating Frenzy, Aladdin, Cars and more. The business also provides an interactive gaming experience across
television screens through various DTH operators. Leading gaming companies like Electronic Sports and Gameloft work
closely with Disney India to distribute their content to Indian consumers. The business believes in making Interactive
moments into Disney Memories for the Indian audience.

3.

DIVIDEND & AMOUNT CARRIED TO RESERVES
In order to conserve the resources to augment future growth, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the
financial year 2014-15.
There is no amount proposed to be transferred to the general reserve.

4.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

5.

DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, Ms. Lavina Tauro resigned from directorship of the Company with effect from July 31,
2014 and Ms. Diana Goiporia was appointed in her place as Additional Director of the Company. The Board places on
record its appreciation for the services rendered by Ms. Lavina Tauro during her tenure with the Company.
Further, during the year under review, Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani were appointed as
Independent Directors with effect from March 31, 2015.
Also, Mr. Vishwas Joshi has resigned as Director of the Company with effect from July 27, 2015 and Ms. Monisha Shroff

104

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

was appointed in his place as Additional Director of the Company. The Board places on record its appreciation for the
services rendered by Mr. Vishwas Joshi during his tenure with the Company.
The Board seeks the support of the shareholders in confirming and regularizing the appointment of Ms. Diana Goiporia, Ms.
Monisha Shroff, Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani as Directors in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Mr. Bhushan Kapadia retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. The
Board recommends his re-appointment.
Number of board meetings and declaration of Independent directors
During the financial year 2014-15, Twelve Board meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed
one hundred and twenty days.
The Company has received necessary declaration from the independent directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013, that each of them meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules thereunder.
6.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The company has an adequately qualified Audit cum Nomination and Remuneration Committee. As on March 31, 2015
the Committee comprises Mr. Vishwas Joshi (Chairman) and Independent Directors Mr. Prem Mehta and Mr. Narendra
Ambwani as other members.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date and with effect from 27th July, 2015 Audit cum Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has been splitted into two separate committees namely i.e. “Audit Committee” and “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee” with Ms. Monisha Shroff as the Chairperson and Mr. Prem Mehta and Mr. Narendra Ambwani as other members.
The Audit Committee primarily recommends appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company, review auditors independence, examine financial statement and auditors report, scrutinize inter-corporate
loans and investments, monitor end use of funds, overseeing vigil mechanism and such other functions as may be
entrusted by the Board, whereas Nomination and Remuneration Committee primarily identify persons who are qualified
to become directors and key managerial personnel, recommend to the Board their appointment, remuneration and
removal including carrying out evaluation of every directors and key managerial personnel’s performance.
The Company has a robust vigil mechanism whereby the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and directors
are adequately addressed.
The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining remuneration
and criteria for evaluation of performance and other matters provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
is appended as Annexure A to this report.

7.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: (“CSR”)
The Report on Company’s CSR activities of the Company is furnished in Annexure B and attached to this report.

8.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual at workplace.
The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment.
The Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace which aims to provide protection against sexual
harassment at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) was set up from the senior management with women
employees constituting majority. The ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment.
During the year ended March 31, 2015 no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

9.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
Your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposits in respect of the year under review.

10.

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors
M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP, Chartered Accountants, the present statutory auditors of the Company
holds office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP,
have under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 furnished the certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.
The Audit cum Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on July 27, 2015 has also recommended
the re-appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. Your
directors also recommend their re-appointment from the conclusion of this annual general meeting till the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting.
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11.

AUDITORS REPORT:
Statutory Auditor
The Auditor’s report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification.

12.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange Earnings and outgo as
required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is furnished in Annexure C and is attached to this report.

13.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
Particular of employees required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is enclosed as Annexure D and form part of this report.

14.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part
of the notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

15.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure E to this report.

16.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure F and is attached to this Report.

17.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:
The Board has adopted adequate procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detecting of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.
During the year, no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

18.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby states:—

19.

(a)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b)

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c)

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e)

the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your Directors would take this opportunity to thank all the stakeholders for their support and co-operation rendered to
the Company during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bhushan Kapadia				
Director						
DIN: 02492753					

106

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Diana Goiporia
Director
DIN: 01177652

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Annexure ‘A’
Policy of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“2013 Act”) and the rules prescribed thereunder have made it mandatory for
Indiagames Limited (the “Company”) to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has in
pursuance of these statutory requirements, constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”).
Objective of the Policy
The mission of the Company is to ensure compliance with legal requirements and set the standards for corporate governance
that would operate as guidelines for the working of the Committee. The objective of the policy is:
(i)

to ensure board diversity in order to help provide the maximum experience and access to knowledge that can be derived
from the board;

(ii)

to guide the board in relation to appointment and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management;

(iii)

to retain, motivate and encourage talent and ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial person and create
competitive advantage;

(iv)

to develop a succession plan for the board and to regularly review the plan; and

(v)

that it may be aligned to the various HR policies, if any, of the Company in regard to appointment of key managerial
personnel and senior management.

Criteria for Evaluation of Performance
The performance evaluation should keep in mind factors such as attendance at meetings, contribution at such board or
board committee meetings and value addition that has been done by the directors, key managerial personnel or senior
management. The evaluation must also take in to consideration the future strategy to be adopted by the Company.
Criteria for Determination of Remuneration
The Committee shall determine the remuneration for its directors, the senior management and key managerial personnel
while keeping the following criteria in mind:
•

the remuneration shall be of such an amount that is in consonance with the services that are being provided to the
Company;

•

the remuneration is consummate with reference to remuneration paid to people in similar positions;

•

the remuneration consummate with the experience that the director or personnel brings to the Company;

•

the remuneration must be of a level that is sufficient to retain and motivate talented personnel in the market to work for
the Company;

•

the remuneration is a fair balance of perquisites and salary and also includes in the case of independent directors, any
sitting fees;

•

the remuneration must be decided while keeping in mind the structure of the Company and of the board;

•

the remuneration must co-relate to the clearly defined benchmarks for performance evaluation;

•

the remuneration is revised on the basis of the performance of the director/personnel; and

•

the remuneration must be in accordance with the permissible law.

Dissemination
The details of this policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be published on the Company’s website and accordingly
disclosed in the Annual Report as part of the board’s report.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bhushan Kapadia				
Director						
DIN: 02492753					

Diana Goiporia
Director
DIN: 01177652

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Annexure ‘B’
The Annual Report on csr Activities to be included in the Board’s Report
1.

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
As a responsible Corporate, your Company has constantly endeavored to contribute to the development and upliftment
of the social strata.
Your Company is a part of The Walt Disney Group and conducts various social activities that contribute to the wellness
of the society and the nature such as ensuring environmental sustainability by conserving green spaces, promoting
education through joyful learning and supporting health care by creating brighter spaces of care giving thereby ensuring
faster recoveries, fulfilling wishes of kids suffering from life threatening medical conditions thereby providing hope,
strength and joy to the kids and their families. The employees of the Company are encouraged to participate in CSR
activities undertaken by the Company.
CSR Projects implemented at the local/national level:
Disney Hospitals Support Program
Disney Friends For Change
Disney Wishes
Design For Change
The CSR activities are carried out directly by the Company or in association with a strategic partner.
Information: The contents of this CSR Policy are also available on the website of the Company that is www.indiagames.com

2.

The Composition of the CSR Committee:
As on March 31, 2015, the CSR Committee is comprised of Mr. Vishwas Joshi (Chairman) and Mr. Bhushan Kapadia and
Mr. Narendra Ambwani (Independent Director) as other members. Subsequent to the Balance date with effect from July
27, 2015, the CSR Committee has been reconstituted with Ms. Monisha Shroff (Chairperson) and Mr. Bhushan Kapadia
and Mr. Narendra Ambwani (Independent Director) as other members.

3.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
` 45.15 million

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)
` 0.9 million

5.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
a)

Total amount to be spent for the financial year:

		` 0.9 million
b)
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Amount unspent, if any:
Nil
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C)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(1)
(2)
S. No CSR project
or activity
identified

(3)
Sector in
which the
Project is
covered

(4)
Projects or
programs (1)
Local area or
other
(2) Specify the
State and district
where projects
or programs was
undertaken

1

Disney
Hospitals
Support
Program

Supporting
health care
by creating
brighter
spaces of
care giving

Bangalore,
Karnataka

TOTAL

(5)
Amount outlay
(budget)
project or
programs wise
(in `)

(6)
Amount spent
on the projects
or Programs
Subheads:
(1) Direct

(7)
Cumulative
expenditure
upto to the
reporting
period

(8)
Amount
spent: Direct
or through
implementing
agency

Expenditure
on projects or
programs
(2) Overheads:
(in `)
1,002,948.25 Direct:
1,002,948.25

1,002,948.25 Direct –
through
contractors

1,002,948.25

Responsibility Statement
The Responsibility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is
reproduced below:
‘The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and
Policy of the Company.’

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indiagames Limited
Monisha Shroff					
Director						
DIN: 05220951					
Chairman of CSR Committee

Bhushan Kapadia
Director
DIN: 02492753

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Annexure ‘C’
Particulars Pursuant to Companies Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
•

		

•
B.

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy:
The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, the company has taken adequate measures
to reduce the energy consumption by using energy efficient hardware and other equipment. Air conditioners are
used only when required. Further the company has spread awareness among the employees on the need to
conserve energy which is well adopted by the employees.
The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
•

The efforts made towards technology absorption and the benefits derived:

		

The Company keeps innovating, takes all measures necessary to absorb and adapt latest technology which has
reaped the following benefits:

		

-

In-house hosting of application leading to cost efficiency

		

-

Data security and integrity has been substantially enhanced

		

-

Effective turnaround to meet business requirements

•

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

C.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO: ` 162.63 million (Previous year ` 191.03 million)

D.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING: ` 37.55 million (Previous year ` 45.50 million)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indiagames Limited
Bhushan Kapadia				
Director						
DIN: 02492753					
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Diana Goiporia
Director
DIN: 01177652

Annexure ‘D’

Cyril Augustine Ferry

Kunal Mukherjee

Sameer Ganapathy

Hrishi Parminder Oberoi

2

3

4

Employee Name

1

Sl. No.

39

37

36

43

Age

Executive
Director Distribution,
Disney
Interactive
Executive
Director Business
Intelligence,
Strategy,
Marketing
& Alliances,
Disney
Interactive
Vice
President
– Disney
Interactive
Director
- Games
Studio,
Disney
Interactive

Designation

Payroll

MSC

B.com

Payroll

Payroll

19-Sep-02

9-Apr-07

1-Dec-09

21-May-01

NA

NA

NA

NA

Date of
leaving

Sahara
One Media
Entertainment
Network
NA

Zoom

Indiabulls

Last
employment
held before
joining the
Company

NA

NA

NA

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Bhushan Kapadia		
Diana Goiporia
Director			Director
DIN: 02492753		
DIN: 01177652

13

8

6

Whether any
Disney
such employee Experience
is a relative of
any director
or manager of
the company
and if so,
name of such
director or
manager
NA
14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Indiagames Limited

7,719,316

34,240,354

7,438,548

12,452,176

Nature of
Date of
Remuneration
Employment commencement
(in `)
whether
of employment
contractual
or otherwise

Post
Payroll
Graduation
Diploma in
communication
magt

MBA

Qualification

Information pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Particulars of Employees forming part of the Director’s Report for the financial year 2014-2015
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Annexure – ‘E’
Form No. AOC.2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)
1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2015, which
were not at arm’s length basis.

2.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March,
2015, at arm’s length basis.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indiagames Limited
Bhushan Kapadia
Director
DIN: 02492753
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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Diana Goiporia
Director
DIN: 01177652
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Annexure - F
Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
Sr.
No.
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

vi.
vii.

II.

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company
Category/Sub-Category of the Company
Address of the Registered office and contact details

U72900MH2000FLC123970
1-Feb-2000
Indiagames Limited
Indian Non-Government Company Limited by Shares
1st Floor, Building No. 14,
Solitaire Corporate Park,
Guru Hargovindji Marg,
Chakala, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 093
Tel No.: 022 6109 1000
Fax No.: 022 67421930
Whether listed company
No
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. C-13,
Transfer Agent, if any
Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West),
Mumbai - 400 078
Tel No.: 022 25963838
Fax No.: 022 25946969
Email: accounts@linkintime.co.in

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:SI.
No.
1

III.

Name and Description of main products/services
On-line games

NIC Code of the
Product/service
99843910

% to total turnover
of the company
100

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S.
No
1
2
3
4

Name and Address of the Company

Cin/Gln

Holding/
Subsidiary /
Associate
The Walt Disney Company
N.A.
Ultimate Holding
Company
Disney Enterprises, Inc.
N.A.
Intermediate
Holding Company
*The Walt Disney Company N.A.
Intermediate
(Southeast Asia) Pte. Ltd.
Holding Company
UTV Software Communications U72200MH1990PLC056987 Immediate
Limited
Holding Company

% Of
Applicable
Shares
Section
Held
100
Section 2(46)
100

Section 2(46)

44

Section 2(46)

56

Section 2(46)

* The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited directly owns 44.00 % of the paid up capital of the Company.
However, along with its subsidiary, UTV Software Communications Limited, it holds 100% of the paid up capital of the
Company.
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a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

c.

ii.

a.
i.
ii.
b.
i.

C.

2

B.
1
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.

2

A.
1
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

639986 55.998635
639986 55.998635

5 1142860

-

-

-

-

100 1142855

-

-

5 1142860

-

-

100

-

-

-

5
5

-

639981
639981

502874 44.001365
502874 44.001365
5 1142860
100

639986 55.998635
639986 55.998635

-

-

-

-

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Total % of Total % Change
Demat Physical
Shares
during
the year

502874 44.001365
502874
502874 44.001365
502874
5 1142860
100 1142855

5
5

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
Demat Physical
Total % of Total
Shares

Promoters
INDIAN
Individual/HUF
Central Govt.
State Govt(s).
Bodies Corporate
639981
Banks/FI
Any Other
Sub-total (A) (1):639981
FOREIGN
NRIs–Individuals
Other-Individuals
Bodies Corporate
502874
Banks/FI
Any other
Sub-total (A) (2):502874
Total shareholding of Promoter A = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 1142855
Public Shareholding
Institutions
Mutual Funds
Banks/FI
Central Govt.
State Govt(s).
Venture Capital Funds
Insurance Companies
FIIs
Foreign Venture Capital Funds
Others (specify)
Sub-total (B) (1):Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate
Indian
Overseas
Individuals
Individual Shareholders holding nominal share
capital up to ` 1 lakh
Individual Shareholders holding nominal share
capital in excess of ` 1 lakh
Others
Sub-total (B) (2):Total Public Shareholding (B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2)
Shares held by Custodian for GDR’s & ADR’s
Grand Total (A + B + C)
1142855

Category of Shareholders

i) Category-wise Share Holding

IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

indiagames Limited
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ii. Promoter’s Shareholding
Sr. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the
No.
year
No. of
% of total % of Shares
Shares
Shares
Pledged/
of the
encumbered
company to total shares
1
The Walt Disney
502874 44.001365
Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte. Ltd.
2
UTV Software
639986 55.998635
Communications
Limited

Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of
Shares
502874

% of total % of Shares % change in
Shares
Pledged/
shareholding
of the
encumbered during the
company to total shares
year
44.001365
Nil

639986

55.998635

-

Nil

iii. Change in Promoters Shareholding:
Shareholding

NI

L

Sr. Name
No.

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year
At the % of total At the % of total Date of
Increase/ Reason No. of % of total
beginning shares
end of
shares increase/ Decrease in
Shares
shares
of the
of the the year of the decrease shareholding
of the
year
Company
Company
Company

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding

Sr. Name
No.

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year
At the % of total At the % of total Date of
Increase/ Reason No. of % of total
beginning shares
end of
shares increase/ Decrease in
Shares
shares
of the
of the the year of the decrease shareholding
of the
year
Company
Company
Company
Not Applicable

v. Shareholding Pattern Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding

Sr. Name
No.

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year
At the % of total At the % of total Date of
Increase/ Reason No. of % of total
beginning shares
end of
shares increase/ Decrease in
Shares
shares
of the
of the the year of the decrease shareholding
of the
year
Company
Company
Company
Not Applicable
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

i.
ii.
iii.

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

-

-

-

l

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year
Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii + iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
·     Addition
·     Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii + iii)

Unsecured
Loans

Ni

Sr.
No.
i.
ii.
iii.

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits
-

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

5
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le
ab
lic
pp

Gross salary
(a) 	 Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) 	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) 	 Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Name of MD/WTD/Manager
N.A.

tA

2
3
4

Particulars of Remuneration

No

SI.
No.
1

Total Amount

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
B. Remuneration to Other Directors:
Name of Directors

1
a.
b.
c.
2
a.
b.
c.

Independent Directors
Fee for attending board/
committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1)
Other
Non–Executive
Directors
Fee for attending board/
committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (2)

Bhushan
Kapadia

Vishwas
Joshi

Lavina
Tauro
(resigned
w.e.f. July
31, 2014)

Diana
Goiporia

l

Prem
Narendra
Mehta
Ambwani
(appointed w.e.f.
March 31, 2015)

Total
Amount

Ni

SI. Particulars of
No. Remuneration

-

-

-

-

-

-

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than md/Manager/wtd
Total
Amount

No

tA

pp

lic

ab

le

SI. Particulars of Remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel
No.
Company Secretary
CFO
1
Gross salary
N.A.
N.A.
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Incometax Act, 1961
2
Stock Option
3
Sweat Equity
4
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Details of
Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority [RD/
NCLT/COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give
Details)

pl

ic

ab
le

Brief
Description

Ap

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Section of the
Companies Act

No
t

Type

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bhushan Kapadia		
Diana Goiporia
Director			Director
DIN: 02492753			
DIN: 01177652
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIAGAMES LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indiagames Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act
and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Opinion
8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015,
and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
9.

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.
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(d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and
according to the information and explanations given to us:

		

i.

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2015 on its financial
position in its financial statements – Refer Note 17 of the Financial Statements.

		

ii.

The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2015, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The Company did not have any
derivative contracts as at March 31, 2015.

		

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2015.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration Number: 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants
Uday Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 046061
Mumbai
July 27, 2015

Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Indiagames Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015.
i.
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(a)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation,
of fixed assets.

(b)

The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

ii.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 4(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)(b) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of fixed assets
and for the sale of services. Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

v.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the
Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii.

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of tax deducted at
source, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
value added tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)
(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dues of sales tax, duty of customs, value added tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax and service tax as at March 31, 2015 which have not been
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
Name of the statute

Nature of
Amount
Period to which the
dues
(` In million)
amount relates
Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Deducted
1.81
Financial years 2005at Source
06, 2007-08 and
2008-09
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax
3.91
Financial years 200607 to 2010-11
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax
0.31
Financial year 2011-12
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax

(c)

2.17

Financial years 200809 to 2010-11

Forum where the dispute is
pending
The Income Tax Officer (TDS)
Commissioner of Central
Excise (Appeals)
Deputy Commissioner of
Service Tax, Div-V, Mumbai –II
Additional Commissioner of
Service Tax, Mumbai –II

There are no amounts required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder.

viii.

The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred any cash losses in
the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

ix.

As the Company does not have any borrowings from any financial institution or bank nor has it issued any debentures
as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee
for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

The Company has not raised any term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

xii.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of any such case by the Management.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration Number: 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants
Uday Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 046061
Mumbai
July 27, 2015
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Note

As at
March 31, 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

3
4

11.43
341.53
352.96

11.43
121.14
132.57

Non-current Liabilities
Long-term Provisions

5

15.28
15.28

11.42
11.42

Current Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short-term Provisions

6
7
8

837.70
81.31
30.49
949.50
1317.74

598.62
91.42
10.23
700.27
844.26

22.40
4.28
26.68
50.95
406.94
2.52
487.09

12.92
12.92
167.53
2.52
182.97

264.52
165.85
97.04
303.24
830.65
1,317.74

150.82
229.76
60.86
219.85
661.29
844.26

Total
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Intangible Assets

9

Deferred Tax Assets
Long-term Loans and Advances
Other Non-current Assets

10
11
12

Current Assets
Trade Receivables
Cash and Bank Balances
Short-term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

13
14
15
16

Total
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
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As at
March 31, 2014

For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Bhushan Kapadia
Director
DIN: 02492753

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Vishwas Joshi
Director
DIN: 03035208
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Note
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations (Net)
Other Income
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
Direct Costs
Employee Benefit Expenses
Depreciation Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2015

18

19
20
21
22

Profit before tax
Tax Expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit for the year
Earning per equity share: [Nominal Value per
25
share: ` 10 (2014: ` 10)]
Basic and Diluted (in `)
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

Year ended
March 31, 2014

1,814.46
39.13
1853.59

1,266.79
39.75
1306.54

1,198.72
159.66
7.68
251.71
1617.77

817.95
244.88
9.65
179.38
1251.86

235.82

54.68

66.38
(50.95)
220.39

25.46
29.22

192.84

25.57

For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Bhushan Kapadia
Director
DIN: 02492753

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Vishwas Joshi
Director
DIN: 03035208
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Year ended
March 31, 2015

A.

Year ended
March 31, 2014

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax
235.82
54.68
Adjustments for:
Depreciation Expense
7.68
9.65
Interest Income on deposits with banks
(16.54)
(11.11)
Interest on Loan to Related Party
(6.50)
Fixed Assets Written Off
1.73
Fixed assets discarded
1.49
Provision for doubtful debts written back
(6.26)
(18.09)
Bad debts written off
0.35
1.01
Sundry Balances Written Off
0.02
0.03
Provision for Employee benefits Compensated Absences written back
(2.37)
(3.82)
Provision for Employee benefits Gratuity
2.81
6.40
Provision for Onerous Contract of Rent
22.85
Provision no longer required written back
(0.14)
(0.71)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss
0.08
0.09
Operating profit before working capital changes
239.29
39.86
Adjustments for:
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
212.91
177.46
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
(15.92)
21.37
Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions and short-term provisions
0.83
(12.63)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(102.69)
65.36
(Increase)/Decrease in short-term/ long term loans and advances
(61.14)
(8.80)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets
(2.02)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
(77.04)
(59.20)
Cash generated from operations
196.24
221.40
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
(24.84)
(72.83)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities
171.40
148.57
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets
(21.99)
(8.08)
Interest Income on deposits with banks
16.69
10.89
Loan to Related Party
(230.00)
Net cash (used in)/from Investing Activities
(235.30)
2.81
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash from Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)
(63.90)
151.38
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
229.76
78.38
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
165.86
229.76
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on hand
0.03
0.03
Balances with Banks
165.82
229.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
165.85
229.76
Notes:
1.	The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” set out in Accounting Standard-3
on “Cash Flow Statement”.
2.	Previous year comparatives have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation, wherever applicable.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

124

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Bhushan Kapadia
Director
DIN: 02492753

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Vishwas Joshi
Director
DIN: 03035208
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
1.

General Information
Indiagames Limited (the ‘Company’) is engaged in diversified businesses primarily making games available across
mobile, PC (through an online environment) and Interactive TV. The Company has its base in India and distributes
games across the globe through operators and original equipment manufacturers (OEM). The Company is an un-listed
public limited company.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1

Basis of preparation

		

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles
in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014, till the Standard of Accounting or any addendum thereto
are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting
Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 (the “Act”) shall continue
to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with
the accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 [Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and the other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

		

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.

2.2

Tangible Assets

		

Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried
at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		

Depreciation is provided on on Straight line method over the estimated useful lives of tangible assets as
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. On additions, depreciation is provided for the full
month irrespective of the date of addition during the month. On assets discarded, demolished or destroyed during
the month, depreciation is calculated upto the month of such deletions. Useful life of Tangible assets is stated
below:

		

Asset

		

Furniture and Fixtures

10

		

Office Equipments

5

Useful life in years

		Computers

3

		

6

2.3

Server and Networks
Intangible Assets

		

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life. Useful life
of Intangible assets is stated below:

		

Asset

		Computer Software
		

2.4
		

Useful Life (in years)
3

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment
Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
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inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets,
is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount
of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are
written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net
selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at
each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in
prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.
2.5

Foreign Currency Translations

		

The transactions in foreign exchange are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the date of the Balance Sheet.

		

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.6

Revenue recognition

		

Revenue from Operations comprise revenue from distribution of mobile content to the telecom operators,
subscription to gaming library/bunch of games and advertisement revenue.

		

Revenue from distribution of mobile content and subscription is recognised in accordance with the terms of
revenue sharing agreements entered by the Company with telecom operators/ISPs and on the basis of receipt
of download/subscription reports by the Company. Until the receipt of download or subscription report from the
telecom operators/ISPs revenue is recognised on a fair estimates by the Company. Revenues are stated at net of
applicable taxes.

		

Revenue from advertisement is recognised when advertisements are served.

2.7
		

Other Income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

2.8

Employee Benefits

		

Defined Contribution Plan: The Company contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employee's Provident
Fund, Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund and Employee's State Insurance Commission towards post employment
benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government authorities, and has no further obligation
beyond making its contribution, which is expensed in the year to which it pertains.

		

Defined Benefit Plan: The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan namely Gratuity (the “Gratuity Plan”) for all its employees,
which is funded. The Company provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Gratuity
Scheme. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.
The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.
Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

		

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed within 12
months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional liability of the company
as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

		

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed beyond 12 months from the end of the
year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.
2.9 Current and Deferred Tax
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Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net
profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of
deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised. Deferred tax assets are not recognised in case there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward
of losses under tax laws, unless there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if
any.

		

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against
liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes
on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

2.10 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
		

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

		

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

		

Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote,
no provision or disclosure, as specified in Accounting Standard 29 – ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’, is made.

2.11 Use of Estimates
		

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in
which the results are known/materialize.

2.12 Leases
		

As a Lessee:

		

Lease rentals in respect of office premises taken on Operating Lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss as per the terms of lease agreement.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
		

In the cash flow statament, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks.

2.14 Earnings Per Share
		

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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3.

Share Capital
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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Authorised:
1,250,000 (March 31, 2014: 1,250,000) equity shares of ` 10 each

12.50

12.50

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
1,142,860 (March 31, 2014: 1,142,860) equity shares of ` 10 each (fully paid-up)
Total

11.43
11.43

11.43
11.43

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares:
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2014
Number of
Amount
Number of
Amount
Shares
Shares
Balance as at the Beginning of the year
1,142,860
11.43
1,142,860
11.43
Total additions during the year
Balance as at the end of the year
1,142,860
11.43
1,142,860
11.43
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares
The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
Shares held by ultimate holding company and subsidiary of ultimate holding company
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2014
Numbers
Amount
Numbers
Amount
Equity Shares of ` 10 each:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
502,874
5.03
414,987
4.15
Asia) Pte Limited - Intermediate Holding
Company
UTV Software Communications Ltd 639,986
6.40
639,986
6.40
Holding Company and its nominees
Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2014
Numbers
Amount
Numbers
Amount
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
502,874
5.03
414,987
4.15
Asia) Pte Limited - Intermediate Holding
(44.00%)
(36.31%)
Company
UTV Software Communications Ltd 639,986
6.40
639,986
6.40
Holding Company and its nominees
(56.00%)
(56.00%)
CSI BD (Mauritius)
87,887
0.88
(7.69%)
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4.

Reserves and Surplus

Securities Premium Account
(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Balance as at the end of the year
Total
5.

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
233.19
233.19
(112.05)
220.39
108.34
341.53

(141.27)
29.22
(112.05)
121.14

Long-term Provisions
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for Employee Benefits [Refer Note 20(b) and 20(c)]
Provision for Gratuity
8.02
4.85
Provision for Compensated Absences
4.50
4.64
Provision for Withholding taxes deducted (Refer Note (a) below)
2.76
1.93
Total
15.28
11.42
(a) Disclosure of movement in provision as required by AS 29 - “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” is as given below:
Provision for Withholding taxes deducted:
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
1.93
Additional provisions made during the year
0.83
1.93
Amounts used
Unused amounts reversed during the year
Carrying amount at the end of the year
2.76
1.93

6.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables (Refer Note 29)
Total
7.

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
837.70
598.62
837.70
598.62

Other Current Liabilities

Advance from customers
Employee Benefits payable
Statutory dues (including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source)
Payable towards Fixed Assets
Payable to related party
Total

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
11.33
6.47
4.50
38.26
56.70
40.84
0.94
7.84
5.85
81.31
91.42
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8.

Short-term Provisions
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for employee benefits: [Refer Note 20(b) and 20(c)]
Provision for Gratuity
5.62
5.98
Provision for Compensated Absences
2.02
4.25
Provision for Onerous Contract of Rent (Refer Notes (a and b) below)
22.85
Total
30.49
10.23
(a) The company has made provision for ` 22.85 (Previous year “NIL”) towards payment in respect of non cancellable
lease agreement as per AS 29 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. Though the premises
has been vacated, the terms of agreement require payment of rent during the pre-agreed tenure of agreement.
(b)

Disclosure of movement in provision as required by AS 29 - “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” is as given below:
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for Onerous Contract of Rent:
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additional provisions made during the year
22.85
Amounts used
Unused amounts reversed during the year
Carrying amount at the end of the year
22.85
-
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9.

-

2.47
6.58
9.05

Gross Block
Additions Disposals

5.27
5.27

-

April 1,
2013

17.66
17.66

Gross Block
Additions Disposals

2.54
25.09
27.63

April 1,
2014

March 31,
2014

5.27
5.27

0.07
36.17
36.24

March 31,
2015

April 1,
2013

0.99
0.99

-

1.83
5.73
7.56

0.99
0.99

0.06
13.78
13.84

4.28
4.28

0.01
22.39
22.40

Depreciation/Amortisation
Net Block
For the
Disposals March 31, March 31,
year
2014
2014

-

0.01
6.68
6.69

Depreciation/Amortisation
Net Block
For the
Disposals March 31, March 31,
year
2015
2015

1.88
12.83
14.71

April 1,
2014

Tangible Assets (Own Assets)
Leasehold Improvements
5.34
5.34
5.09
0.24
5.34
Furniture and Fixtures and Office Equipments
14.97
12.43
2.54
13.32
0.99
12.43
1.88
0.66
Computers and Servers
20.74
15.11
10.76
25.09
15.18
8.42
10.77
12.83
12.26
Total
41.05
15.11
28.53
27.63
33.59
9.65
28.53
14.71
12.92
Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and its applicability for accounting periods commencing from April 1, 2014, the Company
has, wherever required, to reflect the actual usage, realigned the remaining useful lives of certain assets in accordance with the provisions prescribed under
Schedule II to the Act. As a result of change, depreciation for the current year is lower by ` 1.54 million and profit before tax for the current year is higher by ` 1.54
million.

Particulars

Tangible Assets (Own Assets)
Furniture and Fixtures and Office Equipments
Computers and Servers
Total
Intangible Assets (Own Assets)
Computer Software
Total

Fixed Assets
[Refer Notes 2.2 , 2.3 and 2.4]
Particulars

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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10.

Deferred Tax Assets

Depreciation and Amortisation
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of India
Disallowances under section 40a of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of India
Provision for Onerous contract
Total
11.

As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
3.80
8.11
31.27
7.77
50.95
-

Long-term Loans and Advances
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured and considered good (unless otherwise stated):
Advance Income Tax [Net of provision of ` 148.77 million
(March 31, 2014: ` 82.39 million)]
Loan to Related Party*
Total

176.94

167.53

230.00
406.94

167.53

Note :
*This amount pertain to loan given to Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV Entertainment
Television Ltd) which is to be utilised for its general corporate purpose and working capital requirements. The loan
carries rate of interest of 8.25% p.a. and is repayable on 26th November 2017 or date the of termination of agreement
as mutually agreed between the parties, whichever is earlier.
12.

Other Non-current Assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.52
2.52

Long Term Deposits with banks with maturity period more than 12 months
(Refer Note below)
Total
2.52
2.52
Note :
Out of the above 1.99 million (Previous Year ` 1.99 million) held as lien by bank against Bank Guarantees (Refer Note 17)
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13.

Trade Receivables
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period less than 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date
they are due for payment
Others
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Total

14.

264.52

150.82

15.66
2.53
282.71
18.19
264.52

14.78
9.67
175.27
24.45
150.82

Cash and Bank Balances
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Bank balances
In current accounts
In Exchange Earner’s Foreign Currency Accounts
Deposits with less than 3 months maturity
Total

15.

0.03

0.03

6.48
1.64
157.70
165.85

74.12
0.41
155.20
229.76

Short-term Loans and Advances
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated:
Security Deposits
		Considered good
		Considered doubtful
		 Less: Allowance for doubtful security deposits
Prepaid expenses
Advance to Related Party
Advances to Suppliers
Balance with Government Authorities
Others
Total

16.

16.72
0.60
(0.60)
6.02
1.30
43.31
29.65
0.04
97.04

15.73
0.70
(0.70)
6.73
17.32
20.98
0.10
60.86

Other Current Assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unsecured, considered good:
Interest accrued on deposits
0.51
0.66
Interest accrued but not due from related party*
6.50
Unbilled Revenue
295.37
219.19
Receivable from related party
0.86
Total
303.24
219.85
Note:
*This amount pertain to interest on loan given to Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV
Entertainment Television Ltd).
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17.

Contingent Liabilities (Refer note 2.10)
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Taxation matters:
i.
Tax deducted at source
1.81
4.36
Show-cause notice and demand notices for non/short deduction/payment
of TDS for the period FY 2005-06, FY 2007-08 and FY 2008-09.
ii. Service tax
6.39
13.08
Show-cause notices for service tax applicability on various services
including testing and other fees paid by the Company outside India for the
period from FY 2006-07 to FY 2011-12.
Bank Guarantee given by the Company
1.99
1.99
(a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
pending resolution of the respective proceedings.
(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
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Other Income

Interest Income on deposits with banks
Interest on Loan to Related Party
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Rent Income
Provision/ Liabilities no longer required written back
Net Gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
Provision for Doubtful Debts written back
Miscellaneous Income
Total
19

Direct Costs

Royalty/License Fees
Other Direct Cost
Total
20

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,122.62
781.13
76.10
36.82
1198.72
817.95

Employee Benefit Expenses (Refer note 2.8)

Salaries, Allowances and Bonus
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds [Refer note (a) below]
Gratuity [Refer note (b) below]
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total
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Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
16.54
11.11
6.50
6.56
5.14
4.65
0.14
0.71
3.13
6.26
18.09
0.05
39.13
39.75

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
141.54
224.49
8.30
11.11
2.81
6.40
7.01
2.88
159.66
244.88
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(a)

Defined Contribution Plans
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Provident Fund
Contribution to Employee’s State Insurance Commission
Contribution to Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund
Total
(b)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
8.23
10.95
0.06
0.14
0.01
0.02
8.30
11.11

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Obligation and gratuity fund assets are being controlled by a separate independent
trust Indiagames Limited Employee’s Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme (The Trust). The Trust maintains assets
for the Company and the funds of the same are managed by the LIC. The provision and contribution towards the
fund are made based on the Actuarial Valuation report.
(i) Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Gratuity
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year
15.61
21.69
Interest Cost
1.37
1.73
Current Service Cost
1.09
1.39
Benefits Paid
(4.71)
(13.09)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss
0.55
3.89
Balance at the close of the year
13.91
15.61
(ii)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Benefits Paid
Contributions by employer
Balance at the close of the year

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
4.78
9.91
0.42
0.86
(0.22)
(0.24)
(4.71)
(13.09)
7.34
0.27
4.78

(iii) Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Less: Fair Value of Planned Assets
Amount recognised as liability
Recognised under:
Long-term Provision (Refer note 5)
Short-term Provision (Refer note 8)
Total

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
13.91
15.61
(0.27)
(4.78)
13.64
10.83
8.02
5.62
13.64

4.85
5.98
10.83
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(iv) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in the year
Total Expenses

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
1.09
1.40
1.37
1.73
(0.42)
(0.86)
0.77
4.13
2.81
6.40

(v)

Investment details of Plan Assets
Insurer Managed Funds
(vi) Actuarial Assumptions

100%

100%

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Per Annum
Discount Rate
7.90%
8.75%
Salary Growth Rate
11.00%
10.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets
7.90%
8.70%
Attrition Rate
19.00%
23.00%
The discount rates reflects the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account, inflation, seniority,
promotions and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market.
The expected rate of return of plan assets is the Company’s expectation of the average long term rate of return
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

(vii) Amounts recognised in current year and previous four years
Year ended Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
Defined Benefit Obligation
13.91
15.61
Plan Assets
0.27
4.78
(Surplus)/Deficit
13.64
10.83
Experience adjustment in plan
(0.15)
5.23
liabilities - (Gains)/Loss
Experience adjustment in plan
(0.22)
(0.24)
assets - Gains/(Loss)
(viii) Expected Contribution to the Funds in the next year
Gratuity
(c)

(d)
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Year ended
March 31,
2013
21.69
9.91
11.78
4.30

Year ended
March 31,
2012
13.83
12.46
1.37
1.26

Year ended
March 31,
2011
12.16
2.98
9.18
0.03

0.03

0.35

0.02

March 31,
2015
5.62

March 31,
2014
5.98

The Liability for Compensated Absences (non-funded) is ` 6.52 million (March 31, 2014: ` 8.89 million) recognised
under:
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
Long Term Provisions (Refer Note 5)
4.50
4.64
Short-term Provisions (Refer Note 8)
2.02
4.25
Total
6.52
8.89
Certain employees of the Company have been granted Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and Restricted Stock
Units (RSUs) of The Walt Disney Company, USA, the ultimate holding company. The Company receives debit notes/
information on the basis of recharge towards ESOPs/RSUs granted by the ultimate holding company to its employees.
Consequently, the Company has debited ‘Salaries, Allowances and Other Benefits’ for a sum aggregating ` 6.99
million (March 31, 2014: ` 5.85 million) towards liability to its ultimate holding company.
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21.

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation on Tangible assets
Amortisation on Intangible assets
Total
22.

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
6.69
9.65
0.99
7.68
9.65

Other Expenses

Rent
Rates and taxes
Communication Expenses
Power and fuel
Insurance
Repairs to plant and machinery
Repairs - others
Legal and professional fees
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees
- Reimbursement of Expenses
Travel, Conveyance and Accommodation
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
Central Support Fees
Bad debts written off
Advertising, publicity and business promotion
Provision for Withholding taxes deducted (Refer Note 5)
Web hosting charges
Sundry Balances Written Off
Fixed assets written off
Fixed assets discarded
Software Expenses
Provision for Onerous Contract of Rent (Refer Note 8)
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
25.48
25.97
1.84
1.15
3.53
4.48
1.70
4.11
6.23
7.46
3.49
6.03
0.12
0.16
13.76
5.58
1.30
0.01
12.61
43.54
0.35
85.75
0.83
8.62
0.02
1.49
9.37
22.85
1.00
7.82
251.71

0.70
0.01
10.76
10.36
17.20
1.01
53.53
1.93
8.90
0.03
1.73
1.59
16.69
179.38
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23.

Expenditure in foreign currency

Royalty/License Fees
Other Direct Cost
Advertising, publicity and business promotion
Other Expenses
Total
24.

Year ended
March 31, 2014
172.14
12.59
4.92
1.38
191.03

Earnings in foreign currency

Sales and Services Revenue
Total
25.

Year ended
March 31, 2015
150.35
5.76
4.01
2.51
162.63

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
37.55
45.50
37.55
45.50

Earnings Per Share (Refer note 2.14)
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Basic & Diluted
Profit after tax
Profit attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the year end (Nos.)
(for Basic/Diluted EPS)
Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) (`)
Nominal value of shares (`)

26.

138

220.39
220.39

29.22
29.22

1,142,860
192.84
10.00

1,142,860
25.57
10.00

Segment Reporting
Business Segment
The Company has considered the business segment as the primary reporting segment on the basis that the risk and
returns of the Company is primarily determined by the nature of services. Consequently, the geographical segment
has been considered as a secondary segment. The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of production
and distribution of Gaming and other content. This, in the context of Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting,
is considered to constitute a single primary segment. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying
amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets,
total amount of charge for depreciation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2015 and as on that date.
Geographical Segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and outside India.
Secondary Segment:
India
Outside India
Total
Geographical Segment
March 31,
March 31,
March 31,
March 31,
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
2015
2014
2015
2014
External Revenue
1,776.91
1,221.29
37.55
45.50
1,814.46
1,266.79
Carrying amount of
1,311.42
842.03
6.32
2.23
1,317.74
844.26
Segment Assets
Addition to tangible and
22.93
15.11
22.93
15.11
intangible asstes
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27.

Related Party Transactions
(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
(i)

Ultimate Holding Company:
The Walt Disney Company
All the Global and other entities under the common control of The Walt Disney Company which do not have any
transactions with the Company during the year are not disclosed here.

(ii)

Intermediate Holding Company :
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited

(iii) Holding Company
UTV Software Communications Limited
(iv) Fellow Subsidiaries
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
Buena Vista Games
Walt Disney Internet Group
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV Entertainment Television Ltd.)
(v)

Key Management Personnel (Non-executive Director)
Mr. Bhushan Kapadia - Director
Mr. Vishwas Joshi - Director
Ms. Lavina Tauro - Director (Upto July 31, 2014)
Ms. Diana Goiporia - Director (w.e.f. July 31, 2014)
Mr. Prem Mehta - Independent Director (w.e.f. March 31, 2015)
Mr. Narendra Ambwani - Independent Director (w.e.f. March 31, 2015)

(vi) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel exercises significant influence
Indiagames Limited Employee’s Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme - wherein Mr. Bhushan Kapadia (w.e.f. April
02, 2012), Mr. Vishwas Joshi (w.e.f. April 02, 2012) and Ms. Lavina Tauro (w.e.f. April 02, 2012) are Trustees.
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(b)

Transactions during the year
Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances as at the year end:
Ultimate Holding
Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiaries Other Related Parties
Company
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015
2014
2015
2014
2015
2014
2015
2014
Service Revenue earned
Buena Vista Games
0.02
0.01
Walt Disney Internet Group
0.01
Interest on Loan
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV
6.50
Entertainment Television Ltd.)
Royalties/License Fees
UTV Software Communications Limited
16.72
12.06
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
14.32
24.98
Share of common expenses recharged by :
UTV Software Communications Limited
4.30
5.90
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
39.20
11.30
Walt Disney Internet Group
0.10
Loan Given:
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (formerly known as UTV
230
Entertainment Television Ltd.)
Accrual for Equity share based compensation  
The Walt Disney Company (Refer note 20(d))
5.67
5.85
Gratuity contribution during the year
Indiagames Limited Employee’s Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme
7.34
Outstanding Balance payable
UTV Software Communications Limited
9.73
8.24
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited
41.44
14.22
Walt Disney Internet Group
0.10
The Walt Disney Company
10.74
8.20
Outstanding Balance receivable
Buena Vista Games
0.01
Walt Disney Internet Group
0.01
The Walt Disney Company
0.86
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited formerly known as UTV
236.50
Entertainment Television Ltd
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Ltd.
1.30
-

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
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28.

Leases
Operating Lease
The Company’s significant leasing arrangement is in respect of office premises which is non-cancellable lease. The
leasing arrangement is for a period of five years and renewable by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms.
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
With respect to all operating leases:
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
25.48
25.97
Sub-lease payments received/receivable recognised in the Statement of Profit
4.65
and Loss during the year
With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease
payments are as follows:
As at
As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Not later than one year
22.85
25.36
Later than one year and not later than five years
80.69
Later than five years
-

29.

The disclosures pursuant under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) are
as follows:
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
i)
the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal
0.25
- Interest due thereon
ii)
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year;
- Principal
- Interest
iii)
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
0.25
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
iv)
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year;
- Total interest Accrued during the year
- Interest remaining unpaid
v)
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding as at March 31,
2015. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 has been determined on the basis of information available with the Company.
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30.

Previous Year Figures
Previous year figures have been reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to conform to current year’s classification.

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements

142

For Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP
Firm Registration No. 007567S/S-200012
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Shah
Partner
Membership No. 046061

Bhushan Kapadia
Director
DIN: 02492753

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 27, 2015

Vishwas Joshi
Director
DIN: 03035208

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

ANNUAL REPORT
OF
ig interactive entertainment Limited
FOR
FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15

143

ig interactive entertainment Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT for the year ended 31 March 2015
The Directors present their report and audited financial statements
of IG Interactive Entertainment Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.
Principle activities, business review and future developments
The principal activity of the Company is that of distribution and
marketing of entertainment software including motion pictures as
well as being an investment holding company.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
incurred expenses under the letters of indemnity issued to Ignition
Entertainment Limited and Ignition London Limited of £19,722
(2014: £18,894) and £675 (2014: £50) to respectively but incurred
no expense due to impairment of inter-company investments or loans.
Post year end the Directors have agreed that the £277,907
intercompany recoverable due from Ignition Entertainment Limited
will be converted into a capital contribution in that entity, removing
the obligation to repay the amount due. Given that the operations
for this company were curtailed in fiscal 2013, the Directors do not
believe this amount will be recoverable and accordingly a provision
of £277,907 (2014: £Nil) was recorded in the 2015 accounts.
The Directors consider the results for the year and the financial
condition of the Company at the end of the year to be satisfactory. It
is considered that the Company’s activities will remain unchanged
for the foreseeable future.
Results and dividends
The profit after tax for the financial year, amounted to £109,742
(2014: £344,492) which has been transferred to reserves.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2014:
£nil).
Principal risks and uncertainties
The activities of the Company are broad and as such a wide
range of factors could materially affect future developments and
performance. The most significant factors affecting our operations
include the following:
(1) Changes in UK, Europe wide, Africa and Asia economic conditions
A decline in economic activity in these markets in which
we do business can adversely affect demand for any of our
businesses, thus reducing our revenues. Economic conditions
can also impair the ability of those with whom we do business
to satisfy their obligations to us. In addition, an increase in price
levels generally could result in a shift in consumer demand
away from the entertainment products we offer, which could
also adversely affect our revenues and, at the same time,
increase our costs. Changes in exchange rates for foreign
currencies may reduce demand or reduce the value of revenue
we receive from other markets.
(2) Changes in public and consumer tastes and preferences
Our businesses distribute entertainment products whose
success depends substantially on consumer tastes and
preferences that change in often unpredictable ways. The
success of our businesses depend on our ability to consistently
distribute filmed entertainment and online material products
that meet the changing preferences of our broad consumer
market.
(3) Changes in technology and in consumer consumption patterns
The media entertainment and internet businesses in which we
participate depend significantly on our ability to exploit new
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technologies to distinguish our products and services from
those of our competitors. In addition, new technologies affect
the demand for our products, the manner and markets in which
our products are distributed to consumers and the time and
manner in which consumers acquire and view some of our
entertainment products.
(4) Intellectual property rights
The value to us of our non-exclusive rights to intellectual
property is dependent on the scope of our rights as defined
by applicable laws in the UK, European and other markets and
the manner in which those laws are construed. If those laws
are drafted or interpreted in ways that limit the extent of our
rights, or if existing laws are changed, our ability to generate
revenue from our intellectual property rights may decrease. The
unauthorized use of intellectual property in the entertainment
industry generally continues to be a significant challenge for
intellectual property rights holders.
With respect to each of the risks noted above the Directors
regularly review such matters to mitigate their respective
impact on the Company.
Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
The Company’s Directors are of the opinion that analysis using KPIs is
not relevant for an understanding of the development, performance
or position of the business and the key financial performance
measurements are reflected in these financial statements.
Financial risk management
The Company’s operations expose it to financial risks. The most
significant are described below.
(1) Credit risk: The Company has implemented policies that require
appropriate credit checks on potential customers before
sales are made. The amount of exposure to any individual
counterparty is subject to a limit, which is assessed continually
by the Company’s credit control function.
(2) Foreign exchange risk: The Company may hold assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. No derivative
financial instruments are used to manage the risk of fluctuating
exchange rates, so no hedge accounting is applied. The
Company has in place a foreign exchange policy, driven by the
ultimate parent company, The Walt Disney Company, and will
reconsider the appropriateness of this policy should operations
change in nature.
Directors
The people who served as Directors of the Company during the
year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as
follows:
Hitesh Chandarana
Jatin Talwar
There was no qualifying third party indemnity provision in force, for
the benefit of any of the Directors, at any time during the financial
year.
Disabled persons
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully
considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of
the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming
disabled whilst in employment, every effort is made to ensure that
their employment with the Company continues and the appropriate
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training is arranged. It is the policy of the Company that the training,
career development and promotion of a disabled person should, as
far as possible, be identical to that of a person who does not suffer
from a disability.
Employee involvement
Consultation with employees has continued at all levels, with the aim
of ensuring that views are taken into account when decisions are
made which are likely to affect their interests, and that all employees
are aware of the financial and economic performance of their
business units, and of the Company as a whole. Communication
with all employees continues through newsletters, briefing groups
and the availability of the annual report.

l

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.
Disclosure of information to auditors

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

l

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

l

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared
the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

the Directors as on the date of signing the report have taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special
provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small
companies.

l

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

l

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

l

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

On behalf of the Board on 12 June 2015.
Jatin Talwar
Director
Registered Office
Amba House 4th Floor
Kings Suite
15 College Road
Harrow, Middlesex
HA1 1BA
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Independent auditors’ report
To the Members of
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited

small companies exemption from preparing a strategic report. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Report on the financial statements

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our opinion

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

In our opinion, IG Interactive Entertainment Limited's financial
statements (the “financial statements”):

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities
set out in the Directors report, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view.

l	give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as

at 31 March 2015 and of its profit for the year then ended;

l	have

been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

l	have

been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

What we have audited
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited’s financial statements comprise:
l

the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2015;

l

the Profit and loss account for the year then ended; and

l	the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

T he financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In applying the financial reporting framework, the Directors have
made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect
of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they
have made assumptions and considered future events.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”).
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An
audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
l

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed;

In our opinion, the information given in the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

l

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the Directors; and

l

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial
statements.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations
received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
in our opinion:
l

we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

l

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

●●

the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.
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We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit
evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Directors’ report and financial statements to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on,
or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report.

Entitlement to exemptions

Nicholas A. Smith (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion, the Directors were not entitled to take advantage of the

London
June 12, 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Profit and loss account

for the year ended March 31, 2015

for the year ended March 31, 2015

4

2015
£
3,664,442
(2,925,555)
738,887
(252,274)
(277,907)

2014
£
2,548,366
(1,899,199)
649,167
(207,565)
-

4

(20,397)

(18,944)

3

188,309

422,658

12
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-

188,457

422,658

(78,715)
109,742

(78,166)
344,492

Notes
Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross Profit
Administrative expenses
Provision on loan to
subsidiary company
Inter-company indemnity
expense
Operating profit
Interest receivable and
similar income
Profit on ordinary
activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary
activities
Profit for the financial year

2

7
14

There is no material difference between the profit on ordinary
activities as reported above and its historical cost equivalent.
There were no recognised gains or losses for the year other than
those included in the profit and loss account above, and therefore
no separate statement of total gains and losses has been presented.
The results shown above are derived from continuing operations.
The notes form part of these financial statements.

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2015
Company Registration No. 05222227
Notes
Fixed assets
Investments
Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year
Net current assets
Total assets less current
liabilities
Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss account
Total Shareholders’ funds

2014
£

2015
£

8

-

-

9
10

7,476,399
4,483,278
11,959,677

120
7,941,034
1,882,621
9,823,775

(4,664,428)
7,295,249

(2,638,268)
7,185,507

7,295,249
7,295,249

7,185,507
7,185,507

11

13
14
15

83,978,665 83,978,665
(76,683,416) (76,793,158)
7,295,249
7,185,507

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
12 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:
Jatin Talwar
Director

1.

Accounting policies
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006, the special provisions of Part 15
of the Companies Act 2006 related to small companies and
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The
following accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered material in relation to
the Company’s financial statements.
a)

Basis of accounting

		The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, under the historical cost convention, in
accordance with applicable accounting standards in the
United Kingdom and under Companies Act 2006. There
are no indications that amounts receivable or payable
by the Company are not going to be received or paid and
therefore support these statements being prepared on a
going concern basis. For the year ended 31 March 2015
the Company has prepared its annual financial statements
in accordance with UK GAAP.
		The financial statements contain information about
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited as an individual
Company and do not contain consolidated financial
information as the parent of a group. The Company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of a group headed by The Walt
Disney Company and is included in the consolidated
financial statements of that company, which are publicly
available. Consequently, the Company is exempt under
section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 from preparing
consolidated financial statements.
		Under the provisions of FRS 1 (Revised) “Cash flow
statements”, the Company has not prepared a cash flow
statement because The Walt Disney Company, a Company
incorporated in the United States of America, has prepared
publicly available consolidated financial statements which
include the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year and which contain a consolidated cash flow
statement.
b)

Revenue recognition

		Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods and
services supplied by the Company, net of value added tax
and trade discounts.
		Revenue from distribution of movies is recognised in
accordance with the distribution agreement or on physical
delivery of the movies, whichever is later.
c)

Stock

		Stocks of finished goods and goods for resale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the price at which stocks can be sold in the
normal course of business after allowing for the costs of
realisation. Provisions have been made for obsolescence,
based upon aging of inventory, historical and forecasted
sales, estimated margins and current events or changes
in market conditions. The cost of stock is determined
through the use of weighted average methodology.
d)

Foreign currencies

		Transactions in foreign currencies are translated using
the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
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Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
expressed in sterling at the appropriate rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. All foreign exchange gains and losses
are taken to the profit and loss account.
e)

Financial instruments

		Cash
		Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand, and bank
overdrafts where there is a right of offset, which have a
maturity of 90 days or less at date of acquisition.
f)

Taxation

		Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits at
the current rate.
		Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date, where transactions or events that
result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a
right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date.

		
A deferred

tax asset is regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than
not that there will be suitable taxable profits against which
to recover carried forward tax losses and from which the
future reversal of underlying timing differences can be
deducted.

		Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that
are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a
non-discounted basis.
2.

Turnover

letter of indemnity to Ignition Entertainment Limited and
£675 (2014: £50) under the letter of indemnity to Ignition
London Limited but the Company incurred no expense due to
impairment of inter-company investments or loans.
	Post year end the Directors have agreed that the £277,907
intercompany recoverable due from Ignition Entertainment
Limited will be converted into a capital contribution in that
entity, removing the obligation to repay the amount due.
Given that the operations for this company were curtailed in
fiscal 2013, the Directors do not believe this amount will be
recoverable and accordingly a provision of £277,907 (2014:
£Nil) was recorded in the 2015 accounts.
5.	Directors emoluments
The Directors did not receive any emoluments in respect of their
services to the Company. Both the Directors are remunerated
by another group undertaking. It is not possible to determine
the allocation of remuneration of the Directors related to the
Company.
6.

Staff costs
2015
2014
£
£
Wages and salaries
6,969
87,128
Social security costs
50
10,763
7,019
97,891
Monthly average number of employees, excluding Directors
during the year

7.

2015
£

Analysis by geographical market:

United Kingdom
EEC & Other
3.

Operating profit
2015
£
Operating profit is stated after
charged:
Net foreign exchange gain
Auditors’ remuneration – audit of
the Company’s and its subsidiary
financial statements

4.

2014
£
1,201,724
1,346,642
2,548,366
2014
£

(22,508)

(129,316)

36,050

35,000

Operating exceptional items

2015
2014
£
£
Inter-company indemnity expense
20,397
18,944
Provision on loan to subsidiary
277,907
	During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
incurred expenses of £19,722 (2014: £18,894) under the
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Number
2
2

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Turnover is attributable to the one continuing activity.
2015
£
2,301,731
1,362,711
3,664,442

Number
1
1

Administration

Analysis of charge in period
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits of the
period
Overseas taxation of the period
Double taxation relief
Overseas taxes

78,738
(23)
(9,232)
9,232
78,715

2014
£

78,166
9,371
(9,371)
78,166

Factors affecting tax charge for period
	The tax assessed for the period is the same (2014: lower) as the
standard effective rate of corporation tax in the UK for the year
ended 31 March 2015 of 21% (2014: 23%). The differences
are explained below:
2015
£
188,457

2014
£
422,658

Standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK

21%

23%

Profit on ordinary activities
multiplied by the standard tax rate
of corporation tax

39,576

97,211

Profit on ordinary activities before
tax

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

2015
£

2014
£

(90,544)

(88,758)

(23)

(8,453)

129,706
78,715
Factors that may affect future tax expense

78,166
78,166

Effects of:
Use of losses brought forward
where deferred tax not provided
Adjustment due to change in
corporation tax rate
Permanent differences

	The Finance Act 2013 received Royal Ascent on 17 July 2013.
It included provisions to reduce the main rate of corporation tax
from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and to 20% from
1 April 2015.
Deferred taxation
	The company utilised its losses carried forward of £431,168
(which includes a prior year adjustment of £75,742) (2014:
£373,195) in the year. Deferred tax had not been recognised
on these losses in the past as the company could not assess
with sufficient certainty the future recoverability.
8.

Fixed asset investments
Investment in
subsidiary undertakings
£
52,765,350
-

Cost
At March 31, 2014
At March 31, 2015
Provision for impairment in value
At March 31, 2014
(52,765,350)
Charge for the year
At March 31, 2015
Net carrying amount
At March 31, 2015
At March 31, 2014
The Company holds directly 20% or more of the share capital of
the following companies:
Shares in group
undertakings

Business

Country of
Proportion of
registration/ nominal value of
incorporation
voting
shares held
2015
2014
England
100%
100%

Ignition Entertainment Curtailed
Limited
operations
The Company indirectly holds:
Shares in group
Business
Country of
Proportion of
undertakings
registration/ nominal value of
incorporation
voting
shares held
2015
2014
Ignition London
Curtailed England
100%
100%
Limited
operations
Ignition Entertainment Curtailed USA
100%
100%
Limited USA
operations

9.

Stock
2014
£
Finished goods and goods for resale
120
120
There are no significant differences between replacement cost
and the value of stocks shown.
2015
£

10.	Debtors
2015
2014
£
£
Trade debtors
164,085
72,449
Amounts owed by group undertakings 7,308,689 7,868,149
Other debtors
43
Prepayments and accrued income
3,625
392
7,476,399 7,941,034
Amounts receivable from group undertakings are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.
A letter of guarantee has been provided to the Company
to support the recoverability of £7,308,689 due from UTV
Communications (USA) LLC.
11. 	Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2015
2014
£
£
Trade creditors
13,356
36,797
Amounts owed to group undertakings 4,065,901 2,311,804
Corporation tax
138,278
68,795
Accruals and deferred income
338,313
220,872
Taxation and social security
108,580
4,664,428 2,638,268
Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, repayable
on demand and interest free.
12. 	Interest receivable and similar income

Interest receivable and similar
income

2015
£
148

2014
£
-

148
13. 	Called up share capital
2015
£

2014
£

Authorised:
3,000,000 Ordinary shares of
3,000,000 3,000,000
£1 each
97,000,000 Preference shares of 97,000,000 97,000,000
£1 each
100,000,000 100,000,000
2015
£

2014
£

Allotted and fully paid:
10,000 Ordinary shares of
33,910,000 33,910,000
£1 each
50,068,665 Preference shares of 50,068,665 50,068,665
£1 each
83,978,665 83,978,665
The preference shares carry the following rights and obligations:
1)	On winding up the holder of the preference shares shall
be entitled to repayment of the capital paid on those
shares in priority to any payment to holder or ordinary
shares or redeemable shares but not in priority of holder
of cumulative preference shares;
2)	The preference share holder are not entitled to attend or
vote at any general meeting.
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14. Reserves

16. Related party transactions
Profit and loss account
£
(76,793,158)

At March 31, 2014
Profit for the year

109,742

At March 31, 2015

(76,683,416)

15. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

17. Ultimate parent undertaking

2015

2014

£

£

109,742

344,492

Opening shareholders’ funds

7,185,507

6,841,015

Closing shareholders’ funds

7,295,249

7,185,507

Profit for the year

	The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate
parent company and utilises the exemption contained in FRS
8, Related party disclosures, not to disclose any transactions
with entities that are included in the financial statements
of the ultimate parent company. The address at which the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent
company are publicly available is included in note 17.
	The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is UTV Software
Communications Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking and
controlling party and the parent of the smallest and largest
group to consolidate these financial statements is The Walt
Disney Company, a company incorporated in the United States
of America. Copies of The Walt Disney Company consolidated
financial statements can be obtained from:
500 South Buena Vista Street Burbank, California 91521.
	The Walt Disney Company is also the largest and smallest
group for which financial statements are prepared and of which
the Company is a member.

150

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

ANNUAL REPORT
OF
Ignition Entertainment Limited (UK)
FOR
FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15

151

Ignition Entertainment Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT For the year ended
31 March 2015
The Director presents his report and audited financial statements
of Ignition Entertainment Limited ('the Company') for the year ended
31 March 2015.
Principle activities, business review and future developments
The Company's principal business was the development, publishing and
distribution of video games. The UTV Group (of which the Company is
a subsidiary of) was acquired by The Walt Disney Company in February
2012. Upon acquisition, the Director completed a strategic review of
the operations of the Company and its future development and took the
decision to curtail operations.
Due to the cessation of trade, the Director has decided to place the
Company into liquidation, although a formal appointment of a liquidator
has not been made.
It is the current intention of the Director to wind-up and liquidate
the Company. Accordingly, the going concern basis of accounting
is no longer appropriate and the financial statements have been
prepared on a basis other than going concern as described in notes
to financial statements.
During the prior financial year, the Company disposed of the intellectual
property associated with the El Shaddai game in May 2013, which
generated a profit on disposal of £105,608.
The Company recharged expenses of £19,722 (2014: £18,894) to the
Company's immediate parent company (in line with an indemnification
letter obtained in the previous financial year), in relation to net costs
incurred in the year, which were not accrued in the prior year to closure.
In addition, the Company transferred £Nil (2014: £6,256,523)
from amounts due to its immediate parent undertaking to the
capital contribution reserve on the agreement of IG Interactive
Entertainment Limited, its immediate parent undertaking.
Results and dividends
The profit for the financial year, amounted to £49,467 (2014:
£178,569) which has been transferred to reserves. The Director
does not recommend the payment of a dividend (2014: £nil).
Principal risks, uncertainties and Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs")
The Company has ceased trading. The Company is not a going
concern and is in the process of realising its assets and settling its
liabilities. Accordingly, the Director does not believe it is necessary to
provide details of KPis in order to understand the basis of realising
its current position.
Financial risk management
The Company's operations (although curtailed) expose it to financial
risks. The most significant are described below.
(1) 	Credit risk: The Company has implemented policies that require
appropriate credit checks on potential customers before
sales are made. The amount of exposure to any individual
counterparty is subject to a limit, which is assessed continually
by the Company's credit control function.
(2) 	Foreign exchange risk: The Company may hold assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. No derivative
financial instruments are used to manage the risk of fluctuating
exchange rates, so no hedge accounting is applied. The
Company has in place a foreign exchange policy, driven by the
ultimate parent company, The Walt Disney Company, and will
reconsider the appropriateness of this policy should operations
change in nature.
Directors
The people who served as Directors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows:
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J Talwar - appointed 2 May 2014
R S Screwvala- resigned 2 May 2014
There was no qualifying third party indemnity provision in force, for
the benefit of any of the Directors, at any time during the financial
year.
Statement of Director's responsibilities
The Director is responsible for preparing the Director's report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.
Company law requires the Director to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the Director has prepared the
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law). Under company law the Director must not approve
the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements,
the Director is required to:
	select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

l

	
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

l

	state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

l

	prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business (see note 1 a)).

l

The Director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.
Disclosure of information to auditors
l

l

So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and
the Director as on the date of signing the report has taken all the
steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special
provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small
companies.
On behalf of the Board on June 12, 2015
Jatin Talwar
Director
Registered Office
9400 Garsington Road
Oxford Business Park
Oxford
OX4 2HN
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Independent auditors’ report
To the Members of
Ignition Entertainment Limited
Report on the financial statements
Our opinion
In our opinion, Ignition Entertainment Limited's financial statements
(the "financial statements"):
	
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as
at 31 March 2015 and of its profit for the year then ended;

l

	
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

l

	
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

l

Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation
In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not
modified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in
note 1 to the financial statements concerning the going concern basis
of accounting. During the period ended 31 March 2013, the Director
decided that the Company would cease trading. Accordingly, the going
concern basis of accounting is no longer appropriate and the financial
statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern
as described in note 1 to the financial statements. No adjustments
were necessary to write down assets to their recoverable value,
to reclassify fixed/non-current assets and long-term/non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities and to provide for
liabilities arising as a result of the decision to cease trading/liquidate
the entity as at 31 March 2015 as these were taken in prior years.
What we have audited
Ignition Entertainment Limited's financial statements comprise:
l

the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015;

l

the Profit and Loss Account for the year then ended; and

	the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

l

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In applying the financial reporting framework, the Director has
made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, he has
made assumptions and considered future events.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the information given in the Director's report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations
received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
in our opinion:
l

l

l

we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors' remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion, certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified
by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.
Entitlement to exemptions
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion, the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the
small companies exemption from preparing a strategic report. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Director's responsibilities
set out in the Directors report, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)"). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An
audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
l	
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed;
l	the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the Director; and
l
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Director's
judgements against available evidence, forming our own judgements,
and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.
We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit
evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Director's report and financial statements to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on,
or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report.
Nicholas A Smith (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors		
London
June 12, 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Profit and loss account

for the year ended March 31, 2015

for the year ended March 31, 2015
Notes

2015
£
4,138
(78)
4,060
27,319
6,148
–
37,527

2014
£
17,557
42,726
60,283
(17,372)
12,678
105,608
161,197

Turnover
2
Cost of sales
Gross Profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Profit on disposal of intangible asset
Operating profit
3
Interest payable and similar
charges
6
(7,782)
(1,522)
Inter-company indemnity income
19,722
18,894
Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation
49,467
178,569
Tax on profit on ordinary
activities
7
–
–
Profit for the financial year
12
49,467
178,569
There is no material difference between the profit on ordinary
activities as reported above and its historical cost equivalent.
There were no recognised gains or losses for the year other than
those included in the profit and loss account above, and therefore
no separate statement of total gains and losses has been presented.
The results shown above are derived from discontinued operations.
The notes form part of these financial statements.

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2015
Company Registration No.: 04293817
Notes
Fixed assets
Investments
Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

2014
£

2015
£

8

–

–

9

56,777
105,064
161,841

32,509
122,498
155,007

Creditors: amounts falling
10
(288,304)
(330,937)
due within one year
Net current liabilities
(126,463)
(175,930)
Total assets less current liabilities
(126,463)
(175,930)
Net liabilities
(126,463)
(175,930)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
11
55,546,018 55,546,018
Share premium
12
2,903,704
2,903,704
Capital contribution
12
21,440,528 21,440,528
Profit and loss account
12
(80,016,713) (80,066,180)
Total Shareholders’ deficit
12
(126,463)
(175,930)
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
12 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:
Jatin Talwar
Director
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1.

Accounting policies

	The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, the special provisions of Part 15 of the
Companies Act 2006 related to small companies and applicable
accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The following
accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
items which are considered material in relation to the Company's
financial statements.
a)

Basis of accounting

		
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention less impairment recognised in
previous years and in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and applicable accounting standards in the United
Kingdom.
		
The Company ceased trading during the financial year ended
31 March 2013 following acquisition of the UTV Group (of
which the Company is a subsidiary of) and a strategic review
of operations of the Company. Accordingly, the going concern
basis of accounting is no longer appropriate as at 31 March
2015. As required by FRS 18.21 and as permitted by Sl
2008/420 Schedule 1 (10) (2), the Director has prepared
the financial statements on the basis that the Company is
no longer a going concern. No adjustments were necessary
to write down assets to their recoverable value, to reclassify
fixed/non-current assets and long-term/non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities and to provide for
liabilities arising as a result of the decision to cease trading/
liquidate the entity as at 31 March 2015 as these were taken
in prior years.
		
The principal accounting policies, which have been applied
consistently throughout the year, are set out below and,
where necessary, have been updated to include any policies
which are now considered significant given the presentation
of the financial statements as at 31 March 2015 on a nongoing concern basis.
		The financial statements contain information about Ignition
Entertainment Limited as an individual Company and do
not contain consolidated financial information as the parent
of a group. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of a
group headed by The Walt Disney Company and is included
in the consolidated financial statements of that company,
which are publicly available. Consequently, the Company is
exempt under section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 from
preparing consolidated financial statements.
		Under the provisions of FRS 1 (Revised) "Cash flow
statements", the Company has not prepared a cash flow
statement because The Walt Disney Company, a Company
incorporated in the United States of America, has prepared
publicly available consolidated financial statements which
include the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year and which contain a consolidated cash flow
statement.
b)

Revenue recognition

		
Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods and services
supplied by the Company, net of value added tax and trade
discounts. Revenue in respect of the sale of video games is
recognised at the point of supplying the completed game
software to the distributor, who in turn has the responsibility
for the manufacture of the game and subsequent sale to
the retail customer and retains the credit and pricing risk
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associated with the onward sale. In this situation revenue
is measured on a net income basis, excluding associated
manufacture costs and other related amounts under the
contract. Where appropriate, price discount provisions are
recognised in accordance with contractual terms.
		
Turnover also includes the sale of intellectual property, which
is recognised at the point risk and rewards of ownership are
transferred.
c)

Foreign currencies

		Transactions in foreign currencies are translated using the
rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Auditor’s remuneration has been borne by the immediate
parent undertaking in the current year due to the cessation of
trading activities.
4.	Director's emoluments
	The Director did not receive any emoluments in respect of
their services to the Company. The Director was remunerated
by another group undertaking. It is not possible to determine
the allocation of remuneration of the Director related to the
Company.
5.

Financial instruments

		Cash
		Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand, and bank
overdrafts where there is a right of offset, which have a
maturity of 90 days or less at date of acquisition.
e)

		
A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore
recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence,
it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will
be suitable taxable profits against which to recover carried
forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of
underlying timing differences can be deducted.
		
Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that
are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a nondiscounted basis.
Turnover
Turnover is attributable to the one activity.
Analysis by geographical market:

United Kingdom
EEC & Other
3.

–

–

–
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The Company had no employees during the year (2014: nil).
6.

Interest payable and similar charges

Interest payable on bank loans

		
Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits at the
current rate.

2.

Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Taxation

		Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences
that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet
date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation
to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the
future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

2015
£
4,138
–
4,138

2014
£
8,414
9,143
17,557

2015

2014

£

£

Operating profit

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after
charged:
Net foreign exchange loss

7,573

13,001

Operating lease rentals – plant and
machinery

1,517

750

2014
£

2015
£

		Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
expressed in sterling at the appropriate rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. All foreign exchange gains and losses
are taken to the profit and loss account.
d)

Staff costs

7.

2015
£
7,782
7,782

2014
£
1,522
1,522

2015
£

2014
£

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Analysis of charge In period
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits of the
period
Other

–
–
–

–
–
–

Factors affecting tax charge for period
	
The tax assessed for the period is the same (2014: lower)
than the standard effective rate of corporation tax in the UK
for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 21% (2014: 23%). The
differences are explained below:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied
by the standard tax rate of corporation
tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes
Use of losses brought forward where
deferred tax not provided
Withholding tax on interest payments
Adjustment due to change in
corporation tax rate

2015
£
49,467
21%

2014
£
178,569
23%

10,388

(47,071)

–

–

(10,388)

(37,499)

–
–

–
(3,572)

–

–

Factors that may affect future tax expense
	The Finance Act 2013 received Royal Ascent on 17 July 2013.
It included provisions to reduce the main rate of corporation tax
from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and to 20% from
1 April 2015.
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Deferred taxation

11. Called up share capital

	The Company has a total loss carried forward of £6,080,641
(2014: £6,130,108) resulting in a potential deferred tax asset
of £1,216,128 at the closing rate of 20% (2014: £1,287,323 at
the closing rate of 21%). This asset has not been recognised as
the Company cannot assess with sufficient certainty the future
recoverability.
Maximum potential
asset
2015
2014
Analysis of charge in period
Losses
8.

1,216,128

Allotted and fully paid:

Shares in group Business Country of
Proportion of
undertakings
registration/ nominal value of
incorporation voting shares held
2015
Ignition London Curtailed
Limited
operations
Ignition
Entertainment
Limited USA

Curtailed
operations

2014

England

100%

100%

USA

100%

100%

9. 	Debtors
2015
2014
£
£
Trade debtors
2,471
5,961
Amounts owed by group undertakings
47,565
18,892
Other debtors
6,741
7,656
56,777
32,509
	
Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, repayable
on demand and interest free.
10. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Corporation tax creditor
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

2015
£
10,280
277,907
–
117
–
288,304

2014
£
19,632
–
271,325
–
39,980
330,937

55,546,018 55,546,018

Ordinary shares of £1 each

12.	
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders' funds and
movement on reserves
Profit and
Share
Capital
premium contribution loss account

Share
capital
£

Investment in subsidiary
undertakings £
1,032
1,032

55,546,018 55,546,018

Ordinary shares of £1 each

1,287,323

At March 31, 2014
At March 31, 2015
Provision for impairment in value
At March 31, 2014
(1,032)
Charge for the year
–
At March 31, 2015
(1,032)
Net carrying amount
At March 31, 2015
–
At March 31, 2014
–
	
The Company holds directly 20% or more of the share capital of
the following companies:
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Authorised:

Fixed asset investments
Cost

2014
£

2015
£

As at
March 31, 2014

£

£

£

55,546,018 2,903,704 21,440,528 (80,066,180)

Profit for the
financial year

–

–

–

Total
£
(175,930)

49,467

49,467

As at
March 31, 2015 55,546,018 2,903,704 21,440,528 (80,016,713)

(126,463)

13. Capital contribution
	During the year, the Company transferred £Nil (2014:
£6,256,523) from Amounts owed to group undertakings to a
Capital Contribution Reserve on the agreement of IG Interactive
Entertainment Limited, its immediate parent undertaking.
14. Related party transactions
	The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate
parent company and utilises the exemption contained in FRS
8, Related party disclosures, not to disclose any transactions
with entities that are included in the financial statements
of the ultimate parent company. The address at which the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent
company are publicly available is included in note 15.
15. Ultimate parent undertaking
	The Company's immediate parent undertaking is IG Interactive
Entertainment Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking and
controlling party and the parent of the smallest and largest
group to consolidate these financial statements is The Walt
Disney Company, a company incorporated in the United States
of America. Copies of The Walt Disney Company consolidated
financial statements can be obtained from:
500 South Buena Vista Street
Burbank, California 91521.
	The Walt Disney Company is also the largest and smallest
group for which financial statements are prepared and of which
the Company is a member.
16. Financial support
	The Company has received assurances of continued financial
support from IG Interactive Entertainment Limited to enable
the Company to settle its liabilities as they fall due.
17. Post balance sheet events
	Following the cessation of trade the Company has received
assurances that the intercompany creditor of £277,907 due to
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited will not need to be repaid
and is to be treated as a capital contribution. As the decision
was taken post year end to do this, it has been disclosed rather
than the designation of the amounts due changed at the
balance sheet date.
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IGNITION ENTERTAINMENT LTD. (Incorporated in USA)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Stockholder,
Ignition Entertainment Ltd. (USA)
Director’s Report to the Financial Statement for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014
The financial statements of Ignition Entertainment Ltd (USA),
a California Corporation, for the years ended March 31, 2015
and March 31, 2014, have been prepared at the direction of the
management of the Company, which is responsible for their integrity
and objectivity. The statements were prepared in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
The financial Statements reflect estimates, where appropriate,
based upon the judgments of management. These statements are
not misstated as a result of material fraud or error. Rajeev Aggarwal,
CPA, New York, the Company’s independent auditor, have audited
the financial statements and have rendered their opinion dated June
18, 2015, which states that the financial statements as of March
31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, present fairly in accordance with US
GAAP, the financial position and the related results of operations for
the years then ended, in all material respects.
Management of the Company has established and maintains a
system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements, the
protection of assets from unauthorized use or disposition, and
the prevention and detection of fraudulent financial reporting.
Management believes that the Company’s system of internal control
is adequate to accomplish the objectives discussed above.
For Ignition Entertainment Ltd. (USA)
Director
June 18, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To
The Stockholders
IGNITION ENTERTAINMENT LTD.
USA
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of IGNITION
ENTERTAINMENT LTD. as of March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014,
and the related statements of income and retained earnings for the
periods then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis of our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above read with
accompanying notes, present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of IGNITION ENTERTAINMENT LTD as of March 31,
2015 and March 31, 2014, and the results of its operations for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
RAJEEV AGGARWAL
Certified Public Accountant
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Balance sheet for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014
March 31,
2014

March 31,
2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents

$79,461

$249,815

–

–

Total Current Assets

$79,461

249,815

TOTAL ASSETS

$79,461

$249,815

Accounts receivable

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER’S EQUITY
Current Liabilities
20,302

20,042

Due to related party

28,826,338

26,591,355

Total Current Liabilities

26,846,640

26,611,397

	Advance preference share
application money

9,584,209

9,584,209

Total Other Liabilities

9,584,209

9,584,209

2,000

2,000

Accruals & deferred income

Other Liabilities:

Stockholder Equity
Share Capital
Retained Earnings
Total Stockholder’s Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES &
STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

(38,353,387) (35,947,791)
(38,351,387) (35,945,791)
$79,461

$249,815

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part
of this statement.

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS
for the years ended March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014
March 31,
2015
Sales

$116,415

March 31,
2014
$347,621

(25,609)

(18,259)

Gross profit (Loss)

90,806

329,363

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

(5,893)

(11,293)

Impairment of Inter-company
receivable

(2,489,983)

–

Profit/(Loss) from Operations

(2,405,070)

318,069

Cost of sales

Interest Income
Income before income taxes
Income Tax Benefits (Provision)
Net Profit/Loss

274

305

(2,404,796)

318,375

(800)

(800)

(2,405,596)

317,575

Stockholder’s equity - P & L - beginning (35,947,791) (36,265,366)
Stockholder’s equity - P & L - ending ($38,353,387) ($35,947,791)
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part
of this statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements:

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COST OF SALES

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014

Nature of Business:

COST OF SALES

Ignition Entertainment, Ltd was formed on May 22, 2006, under
the laws of the State of California, to engage in the business of
distribution, marketing and sale of gaming software and products.
The company curtailed its operations and has limited digital
revenue from its games. The Company is a 100% owned by Ignition
Entertainment Ltd, United Kingdom.

Purchases
Distribution Cost
Cost of Goods Sold

March 31,
2015
$8,149
17,460
$25,609

March 31,
2014
$9,179
9,080
$18,259

Accounts Receivable:

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to
the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is
based on historical collection experience and a review of the current
status of trade accounts receivable.

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

Income Taxes:
The company adopted FASB interpretation No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes”. Under the interpretation, the deferred income
taxes are recognized for the effect of temporary differences between
financial reporting and tax filing. Temporary tax differences primarily
consist of software development costs reported differently for
financial reporting and tax purposes. As of March 2015, there are
no deferred tax benefits.
Foreign Exchange Transaction:

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014

Personnel
Travel Expenses
Premises Cost
Administrative & General Expenses
Total Selling, General &
Administrative Expenses

March 31,
2015

March 31,
2014

$0
0
0
5,893

$0
0
0
11,293

$5,893

$11,293

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part
of this statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Realized foreign exchange gain / loss are
recognized in profit and loss account. Unrealized foreign exchange
gains / losses are reflected in balance sheet.
Related Party Dues:
As of March 31, 2015, the company owes $28.826 million to related
parties (as of March, 31, 2014 the amount due to related parties is
$26.591 million).
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, the bank
balance has not exceeded the FDIC insured limit of $250,000 per
bank.
Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these
estimates.
Contingent Liabilities:
The company assures no events or transactions have occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through this that would
require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT For the year ended
31 March 2015
The Director presents his report and audited financial statements
of Ignition London Limited ('the Company') for the year ended 31
March 2015.
Principle activities, business review and future developments
The Company's principal business was the production of animated
film and video games. The UTV Group (of which the Company is a
subsidiary of) was acquired by The Walt Disney Company in February
2012. Upon acquisition, the Director completed a strategic review of
the operations of the Company and its future development, and took
the decision to curtail operations.
Due to the cessation of trade, the Director has decided to place
the Company into liquidation, although a formal appointment of a
liquidator has not been made.
It is the current intention of the Director to wind-up and liquidate the
Company. Accordingly, the going concern basis of accounting is no
longer appropriate and the financial statements have been prepared
on a basis other than going concern as described in notes to the
financial statements.
During the year, expenses of £675 (2014: £50) were recharged to
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited (another group undertaking) in
line with an indemnification letter obtained in the previous financial
year, in relation to costs incurred in the year, which were not accrued
in the year of curtailment of operations and cessation of trade.
Results and dividends
The result for the financial year amounted to nil (2014: nil).
The Director does not recommend the payment of a dividend (2014:
£nil).
Principal risks, uncertainties and Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs")
The Company has ceased trading. The Company is not a going
concern and is in the processing of realising its assets and settling its
liabilities. Accordingly, the Director does not believe it is necessary to
provide details of KPIs in order to understand the basis of realising
its current position.
Financial risk management
The Company's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances. The purpose of these instruments is to enable the
Company to realise its assets and settle its debts as they fall due
in light of the Company ceasing to trade. Given the status of the
Company and the existence of a support letter from another group
undertaking, IG Interactive Entertainment Limited (note 13), the
Director is of the view that the Company is not exposed to credit or
liquidity risk.

Statement of Director’s responsibilities
The Director is responsible for preparing the Director's report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.
Company law requires the Director to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the Director has prepared the
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Director
must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the Director is required to:
l

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

l

make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

l

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

l

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business (see Note 1 a).

The Director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.
Disclosure of information to auditors
l

So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

l

the Director as on the date of signing the report has taken all
the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order
to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special
provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small
companies.

Directors

On behalf of the Board on June 12, 2015

The people who served as Directors of the Company during the
year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as
follows:

Jatin Talwar
Director

J Talwar- appointed 2 May 2014
R S Screwvala- resigned 2 May 2014
There was no qualifying third party indemnity provision in force, for
the benefit of any of the Directors, at any time during the financial
year.

Registered Office
9400 Garsington Road
Oxford Business Park
Oxford
OX4 2HN
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Independent auditors’ report
To the members of
Ignition London Limited
Report on the financial statements
Our opinion
In our opinion, Ignition London Limited's financial statements (the
"financial statements"):
l

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as
at 31 March 2015 and of its result for the year then ended;

l

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

l

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation
In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not
modified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in
note 1 to the financial statements concerning the going concern basis
of accounting. During the period ended 31 March 2012, the Director
decided that the Company would cease trading. Accordingly, the going
concern basis of accounting is no longer appropriate and the financial
statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern
as described in note 1 to the financial statements. No adjustments
were necessary to write down assets to their recoverable value,
to reclassify fixed/non-current assets and long-term/non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities and to provide for
liabilities arising as a result of the decision to cease trading/liquidate
the entity as at 31 March 2015 as these were taken in prior years.
What we have audited
Ignition London Limited's financial statements comprise:
l

the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015;

l

the Profit and Loss Account for the year then ended; and

l	the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In applying the financial reporting framework, the Director has
made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, he has
made assumptions and considered future events.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the information given in the Director's report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations
received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,in
our opinion:
l

we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

l

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

l
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the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors' remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion, certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified
by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.
Entitlement to exemptions
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,in
our opinion, the Director was not entitled to take advantage of the
small companies exemption from preparing a strategic report. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Director's responsibilities
set out in the Director’s report, the Director is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)"). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An
audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
l

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Company's circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed;

l

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the Director; and

l

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Director's
judgements against available evidence, forming our own judgements,
and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.
We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit
evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Director's report and financial statements to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on,
or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report.
Nicholas Smith (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
June 12, 2015
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Profit and loss account

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2015
Notes

for the year ended March 31, 2015
1.

2014

2015

£

£
Operating costs

(42)

(50)

Operating loss

2

(42)

(50)

Interest payable and similar
charges

4

(633)

–

675

50

Inter-company indemnity
income
Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation

–

–

Tax on profit on ordinary
activities

5

–

–

Profit for the financial year

9

–

–

There is no material difference between the profit on ordinary
activities as reported above and its historical cost equivalent.
There were no recognised gains or losses for the year other than
those included in the profit and loss account above, and therefore no
separate statement of total gains and losses has been presented.
The results shown above are derived from discontinued operations.
The notes form part of these financial statements.

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2015
Company Registration No. 04255453
Notes

2015

2014

£

£

Current assets
Debtors

6

725

150

281

241

1,006

391

(8,950)

(8,335)

Net current liabilities

(7,944)

(7,944)

Total assets less current
liabilities

(7,944)

(7,944)

Net liabilities

(7,944)

(7,944)

5,000

5,000

Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year

7

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

8

Share premium

9

2,561,479

2,561,479

Capital contribution

9

17,282,028

17,282,028

Profit and loss account

9

Total Shareholders’ deficit

9

(19,856,451) (19,856,451)
(7,944)

(7,944)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
12 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:
Jatin Talwar
Director

Accounting policies

	The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006, the special provisions of Part 15
of the Companies Act 2006 related to small companies and
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The
following accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered material in relation to
the Company's financial statements.
a)

Basis of accounting

		The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention less impairment recognised in
previous years and in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and applicable accounting standards in the United
Kingdom.
		The Company ceased trading during the financial year
ended 31 March 2012 following acquisition of the UTV
Group (of which the Company is a subsidiary of) and a
strategic review of operations of the Company. Accordingly,
the going concern basis of accounting is no longer
appropriate as at 31 March 2015. As required by FRS
18.21 and as permitted by Sl 2008/420 Schedule 1 (10)
(2), the Director has prepared the financial statements on
the basis that the Company is no longer a going concern. No
adjustments were necessary to write down assets to their
recoverable value, to reclassify fixed/non-current assets
and long-term/non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities and to provide for liabilities arising as a
result of the decision to cease trading/liquidate the entity
as at 31 March 2015 as these were taken in prior years.
		The principal accounting policies, which have been
applied consistently throughout the year, are set out below
and, where necessary, have been updated to include any
policies which are now considered significant given the
presentation of the financial statements as at 31 March
2015 on a non-going concern basis.
		Under the provisions of FRS 1 (Revised) "Cash flow
statements", the Company has not prepared a cash flow
statement because The Walt Disney Company, a Company
incorporated in the United States of America, has prepared
publicly available consolidated financial statements which
include the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year and which contain a consolidated cash flow
statement.
b)

Financial Instruments

		Cash
		Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand, and bank
overdrafts where there is a right of offset, which have a
maturity of 90 days or less at date of acquisition.
c)

Taxation

		Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits at
the current rate.
		Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date, where transactions or events that
result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a
right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date.
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		A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that
there will be suitable taxable profits against which to recover
carried forward tax losses and from which the future reversal
of underlying timing differences can be deducted.
		Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that
are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a
non-discounted basis.
2.

Operating loss

of £1,139,909 at the closing rate of 20% (2014: £1,196,904
at closing rate of 21%). This asset has not been recognised as
the Company cannot assess with sufficient certainty the future
recoverability.
Maximum potential
asset

Interest payable and similar charges
2015

2014

£

£

Interest payable and similar
charges

Losses

–

633
5

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

1,139,909

£

£
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before tax

–

–

Standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK

21%

23%

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
multiplied by the standard tax rate
of corporation tax

–

–

7.

50

–

100

725

150

Amounts owed to group undertakings

2015

2014

£

£

8,950

–

–

8,335

8,950

8,335

Accruals and deferred income
8.

Called up share capital
2015

2014

£

£

Authorised:
10,000,000 10,000,000

Ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted and fully paid:

5,000

5,000

9.	Reconciliation of movements in shareholders' funds and
movement on reserves
Share
Share
Capital
Profit and
capital premium contribution loss account
£
As at March 31, 2014

£

£

£

Total
£

5,000 2,561,479 17,282,028 (19,856,451) (7,944)

Profit for the financial year

–

–

–

–

–

5,000 2,561,479 17,282,028 (19,856,451) (7,944)

10. Capital contribution
–

–

–

–

Factors that may affect future tax expense
	The Finance Act 2013 received Royal Ascent on 17 July 2013.
It included provisions to reduce the main rate of corporation tax
from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and to 20% from
1 April 2015.
Deferred taxation
	The Company has trading losses to carry forward of £5,699,544
(2014: £5,699,544) resulting in a potential deferred tax asset
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£
725

Creditors:amounts falling due within one year

As at March 31, 2015

Effects of:
Use of losses brought forward
where deferred tax not provided

£

	Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, repayable
on demand and interest fee.

Ordinary shares of £1 each

2014

2015

2014

Other debtors

	The current tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2015 is nil
(2014: nil).
	The tax assessed for the period is the same (2014: lower)
than the standard effective rate of corporation tax in the UK
for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 21% (2014: 23%). The
differences are explained below:

1,196,904

2015
Amounts owed by group undertakings

–

633

£

6. 	Debtors

3. 	Director's emoluments

4.

2014

£
Analysis of charge in period

	Auditor's remuneration has been borne by the immediate
parent undertaking in the current year due to the cessation of
trading activities.
	The Director did not receive any emoluments in respect of
their services to the Company. The Director was remunerated
by another group undertaking. It is not possible to determine
the allocation of remuneration of the Director related to the
Company.

2015

	During the year, the Company transferred nil (2014: nil) from
Amounts due to Parent Undertaking to a Capital Contribution
Reserve on the agreement of Ignition Entertainment Limited,
its immediate parent undertaking.
11. Related party transactions
	The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate
parent company and utilises the exemption contained in FRS
8, Related party disclosures, not to disclose any transactions
with entities that are included in the financial statements
of the ultimate parent company. The address at which the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent
company are publicly available is included in note 12.
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12. Ultimate parent undertaking

13. Financial support

	The Company's immediate parent undertaking is Ignition
Entertainment Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking and
controlling party and the parent of the smallest and largest
group to consolidate these financial statements is The Walt
Disney Company, a company incorporated in the United States
of America. Copies of The Walt Disney Company consolidated
financial statements can be obtained from:

	The Company has received assurances of continued financial
support from IG Interactive Entertainment Limited to enable
the Company to settle its liabilities as they fall due.

500 South Buena Vista Street
Burbank, California 91521.
	The Walt Disney Company is also the largest and smallest
group for which financial statements are prepared and of which
the Company is a member.

14. Post balance sheet events
	Following the cessation of trade the Company has received
assurances that the intercompany creditor of £8,950 due to
Ignition Entertainment Limited will not need to be repaid and
is to be treated as a capital contribution. As the decision was
taken post year end to do this, it has been disclosed rather than
the designation of the amounts due changed at the balance
sheet date.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Member
UTV Communications (USA) LLC
Director’s Report to the Financial Statement for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014
The financial statements of UTV Communications (USA) LLC, a
Delaware Limited Liability Company, for the years ended March 31,
2015 and March 31, 2014, have been prepared at the direction
of the management of the Company, which is responsible for their
integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
The financial Statements reflect estimates, where appropriate,
based upon the judgments of management. These statements are
not misstated as a result of material fraud or error. Rajeev Aggarwal,
CPA, New York, the Company's independent auditor, have audited
the financial statements and have rendered their opinion dated June
18, 2015, which states that the financial statements as of March
31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, present fairly in accordance with US
GAAP, the financial position and the related results of operations for
the years then ended, in all material respects..
Management of the Company has established and maintains a
system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements, the
protection of assets from unauthorized use or disposition, and
the prevention and detection of fraudulent financial reporting.
Management believes that the Company's system of internal control
is adequate to accomplish the objectives discussed above.
For UTV Communications (USA) LLC
Director
Date: June 18, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,
The Member
UTV Communications (USA) LLC
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of UTV
Communications (USA) LLC as of March 31, 2015 and March 31,
2014, and the related statements of income and member’s equity
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis of our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of UTV Communications
(USA) LLC as of March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, and the results
of operations for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
RAJEEV AGGARWAL
Certified Public Accountant
Date: June 18, 2015

BALANCE SHEETS for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014
March 31,
2015

(Amount in USD)
March 31,
2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
$988,977 $6,446,599
Accounts receivable
547,187
2,295,505
Unbilled receivables
947,004
187,118
Acquisition
540,285
1,188,627
Films in progress
4,546
1,099
Total current assets
3,027,999 10,118,948
Other Assets
Security deposits
14,135
14,135
Prepayment and advances
126,945
3,298,888
Total other assets
141,080
3,313,023
Property and equipment, net of
–
–
depreciation
Investments:
Redeemable Preference Shares
9,515,000
9,515,000
Total Investments
9,515,000
9,515,000
TOTAL ASSETS
$12,684,079 $22,946,971
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER’S EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
$577,882
$682,311
Advances from customers
–
4,266
Accrued expenses and taxes
1,032
1,717
Due to related party
17,663,487 26,881,874
Total current liabilities
18,242,400 27,570,169
Member’s Common Equity
(8,396,349) (7,461,225)
Accumulated other Comprehensive
2,838,028
2,838,028
Income (Loss)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER’S $12,684,079 $22,946,971
EQUITY
The accompanying notes and auditors’ report should be read with
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND MEMBER’S EQUITY
for the years ended March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014

(Amount in USD)
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
$8,087,071 $5,010,339
6,103,793
5,393,107
1,983,277
(382,769)
662,147
635,685

Net revenue
Cost of operations
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
expenses
Income from operations
(1,321,130) (1,018,453)
Interest income
6,527
5,238
Foreign Exchange Gains/(Loss)
664,880
–
Impairment of Inter-company
(2,927,660)
–
receivables
Income before income taxes
(935,123) (1,013,215)
Provision for income taxes
–
–
Net income
(935,123) (1,013,215)
Member’s equity - beginning
(7,461,225) (6,448,010)
Member’s equity - end
($8,396,349) ($7,461,225)
The accompanying notes and auditors’ report should be read with
financial statements.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies & Notes on Accounts:
Nature of Business
UTV Communications (USA) LLC ("the Company") was formed on April
26, 2004, under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Company
engages in distribution, marketing and sale of cinematographic
films, including producing, sale, and distribution of films in video
cassettes, video discs, video compact discs and DVD format
throughout the United States and other countries. The Company’s
sole member is UTV Software Communications Ltd. Mumbai, India.
Foreign Currency Translation:
According to SFAS 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”, gain or loss
is realized on the settlement of functional currency. The company’s
related party dues are designated at the local currency of such related
party. The company has not recognized additional appreciation or
depreciation on foreign currency translations during the year as it is
considered by the parent company. The foreign currency translation
adjustments are recorded as foreign currency translation reserve, a
separate component of stockholder’s equity.
Amortization of Acquisition and Deferred Costs and Revenue
Recognition
In accordance with Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 00-2,
“Accounting by Producers or Distributors of Films” (“SOP 00-2”),the
Company capitalizes, and amortizes acquisition and deferred
costs and accrues (expenses) related costs using the individualfilm-forecast-computation method, which amortizes or accrues
(expenses) such costs in the same ratio that current period actual
revenue (numerator) bears to estimated remaining unrecognized
ultimate revenue as of the beginning of the current fiscal year
(denominator).
The Company begins amortization of such capitalized costs when a
film is released and begins to recognize the revenue from that film.
The film cost is stated at the lower of unamortized cost or estimated
fair value on an individual film.
Revenue forecasts for the films are continually reviewed by
management and revised when warranted by changing conditions.
When estimates of total revenues and other events or changes in
circumstances indicate that a film has a fair value that is less than
unamortized cost, a loss is recognized currently for the amount by
which the unamortized cost exceeds the film fair value.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). No provision
for Income tax is required for the current financial year ending March
31, 2015, in view of net operating loss of the company.
Accounts Receivable
The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to
the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is
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based on historical collection experience and a review of the current
status of trade accounts receivable. It is reasonably possible that
the Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will
change. The company has not provided any provision for doubtful
accounts as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, since all debtors are
considered collectible.
Unbilled Receivables
The Company distributes films to movie theatres. When the share
of revenue is not guaranteed to the Company, the Company records
estimated share of revenue based as per industry practice, and
historical experience. The balance of the revenue is recorded when
received.
Property, Equipment and Depreciation
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Major expenditures for
property and expenditures that substantially increase useful lives are
capitalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed
as incurred. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, their
costs and related accumulated depreciation is removed from the
accounts and resulting gains or losses are included in operations.
Depreciation is computed by using straight-line methods over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Company
considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Advertising and Promotion Costs
Advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred and
included in cost of operations.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these
estimates.
Related Party Transaction
During the current year ended March 31, 2015, the company
made purchases for $3,985,184 (previous year $3,721,814) from
related parties. As of March 31, 2015, the due to related parties are
$17,663,487 (previous year $26,881,874).
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the bank balance
exceeded the FDIC insured limit of $250,000 per bank.
Operating Lease
The Company has rented office facilities in New Jersey and in
California with one year lease commitments.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COST OF OPERATIONS
for the years ended March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014

Inventories – Beginning
Purchases – Film rights & prints
Film cost amortization expensed
Shipping & Freight & Logistics Cost
DVD Cost
Advertisement & Promotion Cost
Less: Inventories – End
Cost of Operations

(Amount in USD)
Year ending Year ending
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
$0
$0
4,663,201
3,748,405
648,342
1,110,592
249,525
168,906
0
2,778
542,725
362,426
6,103,793
5,393,107
0
0
$6,103,793 $5,393,107

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES
for the years ended March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014

Personnel
Bonus & Performance Incentives
Welfare
Bank Charges
Box Office & Distribution support
service
Dues & Subscription
Office Supplies
Professional Fee
Rent
Communications
Travel, Entertainment & Conferences
E & O Insurance

(Amount in USD)
Year ending Year ending
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
$416,224
$419,535
$30,053
$29,417
$24,687
23,321
$4,430
2,649
$6,000
6,000
$714
$2,955
$15,000
$71,977
$13,710
$61,480
$14,916
$662,147

814
2,849
17,258
72,048
14,445
33,180
14,170
$635,685
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COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The directors have the pleasure to submit their commentary
together with the audited financial statements of UTV Games Ltd
(“the Company”), for the year ended 31 March 2015.

To the Shareholder of UTV Games Ltd.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the year are as shown in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year under review (2014: Nil).
DIRECTORS
The present membership of the Board is set out below.
Directors
Mrs. Kamalam Pillay Rungapadiachy
Mrs. Savinilorna Payandi Pillay Ramen

Date appointed
05 September 2008
01 September 2010

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year, which present fairly the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are
required to:
l

l

l

l

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;
state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Mauritius Companies Act
2001. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, UTV Games
Ltd has filed with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are
required of the Company under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001
in terms of Section 166(d) for the year ended 31 March 2015.
for CIM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
Corporate secretary
Date: 19 JUN 2015

This report is made solely to the shareholder of UTV Games Ltd,
the “Company”, as a body in accordance with section 205 of the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s shareholder those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015,
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance
with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and
Financial Services Act 2007. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2015, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and Financial
Services Act 2007.
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Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 15 in the financial statements which
indicates that the Company made a net profit of USD 38,024 during
the year ended 31 March 2015 and, as of that date, the Company’s
net liabilities amounted to USD 317,194. The Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern depends entirely on the financial
support of its shareholder. Our report is not qualified in this respect.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT and LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Notes

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

INCOME

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

Exchange gain

l

l

l

we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company
other than in our capacity as auditors;
we have obtained all the information and explanations we have
required; and
in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by
the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those
records.

Morison (Mauritius)		
Nazeer Bhugaloo, FCCA (Licensed by FRC)
Public Accountants		
Signing Partner

500

500

Licence fees

2,060

4,340

Administrative fees

1,220

260

Management fees

4,000

5,666

Audit fees

4,000

4,000

Bank charges

1,123

878

12,903

15,644

38,024

(15,644)

Accountancy fees

–

–

38,024

(15,644)

Other comprehensive income

–

–

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year

38,024

(15,644)

2015

2014

USD

USD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2015

ASSETS
Non current asset
5

1

1

6

7,105

12,080

Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

3,201

11,129

At April 1, 2013

10,306

23,209

10,307

23,210

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Stated
capital

Accumulated
losses

Total

USD

USD

USD

24,718,000 (25,057,574) (339,574)
-

(15,644)

(15,644)

At March 31, 2014

24,718,000 (25,073,218) (355,218)

Capital and reserves

At April 1, 2014

24,718,000 (25,073,218) (355,218)

Stated capital

Total comprehensive income
for the year

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
7

24,718,000

24,718,000

(25,035,194) (25,073,218)

Accumulated losses

(317,194)

(355,218)

323,501

374,428

Non current liability
Loan payable

8

Current liability
Other payables
Total equity and liabilities

9

4,000

4,000

10,307

23,210

Approved by the Board of Directors on June 19, 2015 and signed on
its behalf by
Director			Director
The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
172

10

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Notes

Investment in subsidiary

–

Profit/(loss) for the year

as at March 31, 2015

USD

50,927

Profit/(loss) before taxation

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014

USD

EXPENSES

Taxation

Date: June 19, 2015
Port Louis, Mauritius

2015

At March 31, 2015

-

38,024

38,024

24,718,000 (25,035,194) (317,194)

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
USD

IAS 39
2014
USD

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation
38,024
(15,644)
Adjustments for:
Exchange gain
(50,927)
–
Decrease in other receivables
4,975
4,085
Increase in other payables
–
50
Net cash used in operating activities
(7,928)
(11,509)
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents
(7,928)
(11,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year
11,129
22,638
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year
3,201
11,129
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank
3,201
11,129
The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2015
1.

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
- Amendments for novation’s of derivatives (effective
on or after 1 January 2014)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Amendments resulting
from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle (scope
of the portfolio exception in paragraph 52) (effective
on or after 1 July 2014)
IAS 24
Related Party Disclosures - Amendments resulting
from Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
(management entities) (effective on or after 1 July
2014)
New and revised IFRSs and IFRICs in issue but not yet
effective

COMPANY PROFILE

	
UTV Games Ltd has been incorporated in the Republic of
Mauritius as a private company, limited by shares on 05
September 2008 under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. It
was granted a Category 1 Global Business Licence under the
Financial Services Act 2007.
	The principal activity of the Company is that of investment
holding and its registered office is at C/o CIM CORPORATE
SERVICES LTD, Les Cascades Building, Edith Cavell Street, Port
Louis, Republic of Mauritius.
2.	
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)
	In the current year, the Company has applied all of the new
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
IFRS Interpretations Committee of the IASB that are relevant
to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning
on 01 April 2014.
New and revised IFRSs and IFRICs applied with no material
effect on the financial statements
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments
for investment entities (effective on or after 1
January 2014)
IAS 27
Separate Financial Statements (as amended
in 2011) - Amendments for investment entities
(effective on or after 1 January 2014)
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments
relating to the offsetting of assets and liabilities
(effective on or after 1 January 2014)
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets - Amendments arising from
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets (effective on or after 1 January 2014)

	At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
the following relevant Standards and Interpretations were in
issue but effective on annual periods beginning on or after the
respective dates as indicated:
IFRS 9

Financial Instruments - Deferral of mandatory
effective date of IFRS 9 and amendments to transition
disclosures (effective on or after 1 January 2015)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - New requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities (effective on or after 1 January 2018)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and
amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7, and IAS 39 (2013)
(tentatively effective on or after 1 January 2018)
	The directors anticipate that the application of these Standards
and Interpretations on the above effective dates in future
periods will have no material impact on the financial statements
of the Company.
3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below:
(a) Statement of compliance
		The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
including International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee
(SIC) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).
		The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting date.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
(b) Basis of preparation
		The financial statements are prepared in accordance and
compliance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards. The financial statements are prepared under
the historical cost.
		The preparation of financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
the directors to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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(c)

Foreign currencies

		Functional and presentation currency
		Items included in the financial statements are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in United States
Dollar (‘USD’), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
		Transactions and balances
		Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
(d)

Revenue recognition

		Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following
specific criteria must also be met for revenue recognition:
		–
		
(e)

Interest income - as it accrues unless collectability is
in doubt.

–	Dividend income - when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.
Expense recognition

		All expenses are accounted for profit or loss on an accruals
basis.
(f)

Investment in subsidiary

		Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Company has control. The Company
controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has
the rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Company. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
		When the Company ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss.
(g) Impairment of assets
		The Company assesses at each end of the reporting
date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
		If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined.
		The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use.
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		If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an
impairment loss.
		An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
		An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
		The increased carrying amount of an asset other than
goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior periods.
		A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other
than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is
treated as a revaluation increase.
(h) Cash and cash equivalents
		Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are
short term and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
(i)
		

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

		l

the Company has a present obligation as a result of a
past event;

		l

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and

		l

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

		The amount of a provision is the present value of
the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
		Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when,
and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset.
The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not
exceed the amount of the provision.
		
(j)

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Financial instruments

		Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when the Company has
become a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Company’s policies in respect of the main
financial instruments are as follows:
		l

Other receivables

			Other receivables are stated at their nominal values as
reduced by appropriate allowances for irrecoverable
amounts.
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		l

Loan payable

			

Loan payable to shareholder is stated at principal asset.

		l

Other payables

			

Other payables are stated at their amortised cost.

		l

Cash resources

			

Cash resources are measured at fair values.

		l

Equity instruments

			
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
(k) Taxation
		Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises of
current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected tax
payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years.

differences arising thereon are dependent on the functional
currency selected. As described in Note 3(c), the directors
have considered those factors described therein and have
determined that the functional currency of the Company is the
USD.
Going concern
	The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, which assumes that the Company will continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The validity
of this assumption depends upon the continued support of the
shareholder.
5.

(l)

Redeemable Preference Shares

		The Redeemable Preference Shares of the Company are
redeemable at the option of the Company. The Company
may redeem any Preference Shares at such terms and
conditions determined by the board.
		International Accounting Standard 32 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation (“IAS 32”)
requires entities that issue financial instruments to classify
such instruments as liabilities or equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definitions contained within IAS 32 of a financial liability
and equity instrument.

Unquoted
At start and at end
Name of
company

6.

4.	CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
	
Critical accounting judgements in applying the Company’s
accounting policies
	In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors have made the
following judgements that have the most effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:Determination of functional currency
	The determination of the functional currency of the Company
is critical since recording of transactions and exchange

Common
Stock
Preferred
Stock

No. of
shares
2015 &
2014
300,000

%
Holding
2015 &
2014
100%

1,200,000

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current account with subsidiary
7.

1

1

Country of
Class of
incorporation shares
held

True Games State of
Interactive California

2015
USD
7,105

2014
USD
12,080

STATED CAPITAL

Ordinary shares (i)
Preference shares (ii)

2015
2014
USD
USD
12,000,000 12,000,000
12,718,000 12,718,000
24,718,000 24,718,000
2015
USD

(m) Related party transactions
		For the purpose of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Company if they have
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or
exercise significant influence over the Company in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Company is subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individual or
other entities.

2014
USD

2015
USD

		Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial
reporting purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are used
to determine deferred tax.
		The principal temporary difference arises from the tax
losses carried forward. Deferred tax assets recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

2014
USD

Ordinary shares of USD 1 each
At start and at end
12,000,000 12,000,000
	Ordinary shares shall be issued at the nominal value of US$
1.00 each. Each holder of ordinary shares shall be entitled
to receive notice of and to attend and vote during meetings
of shareholders on any resolutions or other matters affecting
the Company which require the consent and approval of such
shareholders. Each holder of ordinary shares shall be entitled
to a right to an equal share in dividends as authorised by the
board. In the case of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the Company, a holder of ordinary share shall be entitled to an
equal share on any surplus asset attributable to such ordinary
shares, in respect of each ordinary shares held. Ordinary
shares shall not be redeemable.
(i)

2015
USD

2014
USD

(ii) 12,718,000 Preference shares
of USD 1 each
At start and at end
12,718,000 12,718,000
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	Preference shares of nominal value US$ 1.00 each designated
in the capital of the Company, having the rights and being
subject to the restrictions set forth in this Constitution.
Preference shares shall be entitled to dividend distributions
as may be decided by the board at its sole discretion. In the
case of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, a
holder of preference shares shall be entitled to an equal share
on any surplus asset attributable to such preference shares,
in respect of each preference shares held. Preference shares
shall be convertible into ordinary shares at such conversion
rate as may be determined by the board of the Company.
8.

LOAN PAYABLE
2015
2014
USD
USD
Shareholder’s loan
323,501
374,428
The loan is interest free, unsecured and payable on demand.

9.

OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals
10. TAXATION

2015
USD
4,000

2014
USD
4,000

	The taxation of income and capital gains of the Company is
subject to the fiscal law and practice of Mauritius and the
countries in which the Company invests.
	The Company has received a Certificate of Mauritian tax
residence from the Mauritius Revenue Authority which entitles
it to certain reliefs pursuant to the treaties concluded between
Mauritius and the investee countries for the avoidance of
double taxation. The tax residence certification is renewable on
an annual basis, subject to the tax residency conditions being
satisfied. Capital gains from the sale of units and securities are
exempt from Mauritius tax.
	The Company being a Category 1 Global Business Company is
liable to pay income on its net taxable income at a rate of 15%.
The Company is, however, entitled to a tax credit equivalent
to the higher of actual foreign tax suffered or 80% of the
Mauritius tax payable in respect of its foreign source income,
thus reducing its maximum effective tax rate to 3%.
	No provision for tax has been made in the accounts for the
year due to the availability of tax losses. Tax loss suffered in an
income year can be set off against future chargeable income.
In case there is no future chargeable income the tax loss can
be carried for a maximum of 5 years. The tax on the Company’s
loss differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the basic tax rate as follows:

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Add: Non allowable expenses
Less: Exempt income
Loss brought forward
Tax loss freezed
Tax loss carried forward
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2015
USD
38,024
(50,927)
(12,903)
(92,101)
–
(105,004)

2014
USD
(15,644)
(15,644)
(84,545)
8,088
(92,101)

Availability of tax loss for use against future taxable profit

Year of assessment
Tax losses carried forward for next
5 years
Tax losses carried forward for next
4 years
Tax losses carried forward for next
3 years
Tax losses carried forward for next
2 years
Tax losses carried forward for next
1 years
Tax loss carried forward for the year

2015
USD

2014
USD

(12,903)

(15,644)

(15,644)

(12,098)

(12,098)

(10,957)

(10,957)

(15,580)

(15,580)
(37,822)
(105,004)

(37,822)
–
(92,101)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Values of financial instruments
		Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The
Company’s financial assets and liabilities include other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loan payable, and
other payables. The carrying amounts of these assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values.
(b) Currency profile
		The currency profile of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities are summarised as follows:

Indian Rupee
United States
Dollar
(c)

Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets
liabilities
2015
2015
2014
2014
USD
USD
USD
USD
– 323,501
– 374,428

10,306
10,306
Fair value hierarchy

4,000
327,501

23,209
23,209

4,000
378,428

		Fair value measurements are classified into a fair
value hierarchy by reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value.
The hierarchy priorities the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value based on their observable or
unobservable nature. The three levels are as follows:
		Level 1 - v alued using quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets.
		Level 2 - v alued by reference to valuation techniques
using observable inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1.
		Level 3 - v alued by reference to valuation techniques using
inputs that are not based on observable market
data.
31 March 2015
Level 1
USD
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loan payables
Other payables
-

Level 2 Level 3
Total
USD
USD
USD
7,105
7,105
3,201
3,201
- (323,501) (323,501)
(4,000)
(4,000)
3,201 (320,396) (317,195)
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31 March 2014
Level 1
USD
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loan payables
Other payables
(d) Financial risks
		

(i)

Level 2 Level 3
Total
USD
USD
USD
12,080
12,080
11,129
11,129
- (374,428) (374,428)
(4,000)
(4,000)
11,129 (366,348) (355,219)

Currency risk

			The Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange
rate of the USD, relative to INR, may change in a
manner which has a material effect on the reported
value of the Company’s transactions which are
denominated in INR.

(iii) Liquidity risk

			Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation.
			The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of the financial liabilities.
			The table below illustrates the aged analysis of the
Company's financial liabilities.
March 31, 2015
Due < 1 Year Due > 1 Year
USD
USD

			Exposure to currency risk
			
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was
as follows:
2014

2015
USD

USD

INR

INR

Other receivables

7,105

-

12,080

-

Cash and cash
equivalents

3,201

-

11,129

-

-

(323,501)

(4,000)

-

6,306

(323,501)

Loan payable
Other payables
Net exposure

- (374,428)
(4,000)

-

19,209 (374,428)

			Sensitivity analysis
			Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
			A 1 percent strengthening of USD against INR at 31
March would have decreased/increased profit by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables remain constant.
USD/INR
2015

2014

Rate
Before sensitivity analysis

62.53

59.76

Increase 1%

63.16

60.36

Before sensitivity analysis

(323,501)

(374,428)

Increase 1%

(320,274)

(370,721)

3,227

3,707

			A 1 percent weakening of USD against INR at 31
March would have had equal but opposite effect on
INR to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.
		

(ii)

323,501
4,000
327,501

-

March 31, 2014
Due < 1 Year Due > 1 Year
USD
USD
Liabilities
Loan payable
374,428
Other payables
4,000
Total liabilities
378,428
(e) Capital management

-

323,501
4,000
327,501
Total
USD
374,428
4,000
378,428

		
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders.
		The capital structure of the Company consists of equity
and preference shares attributable to the shareholder of
the Company.
		The Company does not have any third party debt due for
the year ended 31 March 2015. Hence it does not have
any capital risk.
12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Amount

Difference

Liabilities
Loan payable
Other payables
Total liabilities

Total
USD

Credit risk

			Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instruments
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities and from its financial activities,
including cash at bank and financial instructions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

	For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company had
transactions and balances with the related entities as follows:
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
Relationship
Shareholder
Subsidiary

Name
UTV Software Communications Ltd
True Games Interactive
2015
USD

2014
USD

Related Party Balances
Owing (to)/by related parties
UTV Software Communications Ltd (323,501) (374,428)
True Games Interactive
7,105
12,080
-	Receivable from True Games Interactive represents
current account with the Company.
-	The loan payable to the UTV Software Communications
Ltd is interest free, unsecured, and payable on demand.
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13. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

	There have been no material events after the reporting date,
which would require disclosure or adjustments to the 31 March
2015 financial statements.

	At 31 March 2015, the Company has no material litigation
claims outstanding, pending or threatened against, which could
have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or
results of operations.

14. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Company has no capital commitments at 31 March 2015.
15. GOING CONCERN
	For the year under review, the Company made a profit of USD
38,024 and had net liabilities of USD 317,194 at 31 March
2015.
	The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, which assumes that the Company will continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The validity
of this assumption depends on the continued support of the
shareholder.
	The directors are of the opinion that this support will be
forthcoming over the next twelve months. They therefore believe
that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared
on a going concern basis.
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17. REPORTING CURRENCY
	The financial statements are presented in the United States
Dollars.
18. HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
	The directors considered UTV Software Communications
Limited, a company incorporated in India, as the holding and
ultimate holding of UTV Games Ltd. On successful completion
of delisting offer on 2nd February, 2012 by The Walt Disney
Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, (TWDCSEA) a company
incorporated in Singapore, TWDCSEA acquired Majority stake in
UTV Software Communications Limited which is a subsidiary of
The Walt Disney Company. As from then, the directors consider
UTV Software Communications Limited as the holding and The
Walt Disney Company as the ultimate holding of UTV Games
Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Stockholder
True Games Interactive, Inc.
Director’s Report to the Financial Statement for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014
The financial statements of True Games Interactive, Inc, a California
Corporation, for the years ended March 31, 2015 and March 31,
2014, have been prepared at the direction of the management of
the Company, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity.
The statements were prepared in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.
The financial Statements reflect estimates, where appropriate,
based upon the judgments of management. These statements are
not misstated as a result of material fraud or error. Rajeev Aggarwal,
CPA, New York, the Company’s independent auditor, have audited
the financial statements and have rendered their opinion dated June
18, 2015, which states that the financial statements as of March
31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, present fairly in accordance with US
GAAP, the financial position and the related results of operations for
the years then ended, in all material respects.
Management of the Company has established and maintains a
system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements, the
protection of assets from unauthorized use or disposition, and
the prevention and detection of fraudulent financial reporting.
Management believes that the Company’s system of internal control
is adequate to accomplish the objectives discussed above.
For True Games Interactive, Inc.
Director
Date: June 18, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To
The Stockholders
TRUE GAMES INTERACTIVE, INC.
USA
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of TRUE GAMES
INTERACTIVE, INC, as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
statements of operations and retained earnings for the years
ending March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis of our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of TRUE GAMES
INTERACTIVE, INC, as of March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, and
the results of its operations for the years ending March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
RAJEEV AGGARWAL
Certified Public Accountant
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BALANCE SHEETS for the years ended March 31,
2015 and March 31, 2014
(Amount in USD)
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
$4,432
Total Current Assets
4,432
Other Assets
Deposits
0
Total Other Assets
0
TOTAL ASSETS
$4,432
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
Accrued liabilities & Deferred
Expenses
$7,800
Total current liabilities
7,800
Long Term Liabilities:
Loan from related party
17,226,459
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value,
3,000,000 shares authorized,
1,200,000 shares issued and
outstanding
12,000,000
Common stock, no par value,
1,000,000 shares authorized,
300,000 shares issued and
outstanding
10,000
Capitalized Cost of Issuance of
Pref Shares
(67,928)
Retained Earnings /
(29,171,899)
(Accumulated Deficit)
Total stockholders’ Equity
(17,229,827)
TOTAL LIABILITIES &
$4,432
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$6,009
6,009
24,538
24,538
$30,547

$50,800
50,800
17,226,459

12,000,000

10,000
(67,928)
(29,188,785)
(17,246,712)
$30,547

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part
of this statement.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014

(Amount in USD)
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
$0
$0
0
0

Revenue
Gross profit / (Loss)
Operating expenses:
Selling, General and
3,577
3,566
Administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
3,577
3,566
Operating Income (loss)
(3,577)
(3,566)
Other income / (expense):
Miscellaneous Income
20,462
0
State & Local Taxes
0
(846)
Total other income (expense)
20,462
(846)
Net Income / (loss)
16,885
(4,413)
Beginning Retained Earnings /
(Accumulated Deficit)
(29,188,785) (29,184,372)
Ending Retained Earnings /
(Accumulated Deficit)
$(29,171,899) $(29,188,785)
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part
of this statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Nature of Business:

for the years ended March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014

True Games Interactive, Inc, was incorporated on December 28,
2007 in the state of California as an S Corporation and subsequently
as of September 11, 2008, converted into a C- Corporation status
upon issuance of majority of company shares to UTV Games
Ltd, Mauritius.
The company was engaged in the business of multi-player interactive
online game publisher and curtailed its business operations since
the games were not economically feasible. The company did not
carry on any business activities during the current year.
Income Taxes:
The company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Under the interpretation
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected
future tax consequences of events that have been included in the
consolidated financial statements or tax returns. The amount of the
deferred tax asset or liability is based on the difference between
the consolidated financial statements and tax basis of assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year and the
differences are expected to reverse. As of March 31, 2015 and
2014, the company does not have any deferred taxes.

March 31,
2014
Communications
154
Professional Fee
2,000
2,000
Bank Charges
1,577
1,412
$3,577
$3,566
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part
of this statement.
March 31,
2015

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these
estimates.
Foreign Exchange Transaction:
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Realized foreign exchange gain / loss are
recognized in profit and loss account. Unrealized foreign exchange
gains / losses are reflected in balance sheet.
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
During the year ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the bank balances
did not exceed the FDIC insured limit of $250,000.
Commitments and Contingencies:
The company has licensed one of its game to a European customer
for a non-refundable license fee of $400,000 and recoupable
royalty advance of $200,000 aggregating to $600,000, out of which
$300,000 was received. The licensee failed to take delivery and
make the remainder payment to the company and instead claimed
refunds of the monies paid. The company believes that the license
fee received is not refundable as the licensee willfully failed to
take delivery. No provision is maintained since there is no claim or
correspondence from the party.
The company had a software maintenance service contract with a
vendor for an amount of $66,000. The company believes that the
vendor has not provided proper and timely service that caused
undue hardship in game development and so the maintenance fee
is not payable. No provision is maintained since there is no claim or
correspondence from the party.
The company assures no events or transactions have occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through this that would
require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES INFORMATION
INTERNATIONAL

INDIA

UNITED KINGDOM

Disney Entertainment (India) Limited

IG Interactive Entertainment Limited

(formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting Limited)

Amba House, 4th Floor, Kings Suite, 15 College Road,
Harrow, Middlesex, HA1 1BA. UK

Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire Corporate Park

Tel: +44 020 8861 3355

Mumbai 400 093

Fax: +44 020 8515 7055

Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (E)
Tel: +91 22 6109 1000 Fax: +91 22 6742 1930

Ignition Entertainment Limited (UK)

Genx Entertainment Limited

9400 Garsington Road

Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire Corporate Park

Oxford Business Park,

Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (E)

Oxford, OX4 2HN

Mumbai 400 093
Tel: +91 22 6109 1000 Fax: +91 22 6742 1930

Ignition London Limited

Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Digi Guys Ltd)

(formerly known as UTV Entertainment Television Limited)

9400 Garsington Road

Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire Corporate Park

Oxford Business Park,

Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (E)

Oxford, OX4 2HN

Mumbai 400 093
Tel: +91 22 6109 1000 Fax: +91 22 6742 1930

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Indiagames Limited

UTV Communications (USA) LLC

Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire Corporate Park

33, Wood Avenue South, 6th Floor

Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (E)

Iselin, NJ 08830

Mumbai 400 093

Tel: 732-218-6032

Tel: +91 22 6109 1000 Fax: +91 22 6742 1930

Fax: 732-626-7001
True Games Interactive
4640 Admiralty Way
Suite # 301, Marina Del Rey
CA 90292
Tel: 310 751 7541
Ignition Entertainment Limited (USA)
4640 Admiralty Way
Suite#301, Marina Del Rey
CA 90292
Tel: 310 751 7541
MAURITIUS
UTV Games Ltd.
C/o CIM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
Les Cascades, Edith Cavell Street,
Port Louis, Mauritius
Tel: +230 212 9800
Fax: +230 212 9833
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